A b

CIBOLA COUNTY
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

Christine Lowery Ralph Lucero Daniel Torrez

Chair 1 Vice Chair 2" Vice Chair
Martha Garcia Robert Windhorst
Commissioner Commissioner

Regular Commission Meeting
Thursday, May 23, 2024
5:00 p.m.
Cibola County Commission Chambers
Call to Order
Roll Call

Pledge of Allegiance

Praver
Approval of Agenda

Public Comment

The Public has the opportunity to provide comment on any subject during the public comment period. Speaker’s
comments will be limited to three minutes unless the Board of County Commissioners requests more information.
The time limit is given in an effort to allow public input but also to move the agenda forward in a prompt yet
efficient manner.

Minutes
a. 04.25.2024 Regular Commission Meeting
b. 05.06.2024 Special Commission Meeting

Reports
a. Budget and Finance Report- Kate Fletcher-County Manager & Paul Ludi-Finance Director

b. Assessor’s Annual Report- Written Report Only

Presentation
a. Acknowledging and Honoring Harry Garcia, George Munoz and Joshua Sanchez for Exceptional Service
to Cibola County

10. New Business — Action May Be Taken

a. Consideration of Route 66 Energy Storage Arrey Summary Review Plat
b. Consideration of Resolution 2024-30 Recognizing The Cibola County Health Council as the Official
Health Council for the Purposes Outlined in the County and Tribal Health Councils Act.
c. Consideration of Resolution 2024-31 FY25 Interim Budget
. Consideration of Resolution 2024-32 FY 24 Budget Adjustment Number #7
e. Consideration of Resolution 2024-33 FY 2026-2030 Infrastructure Capital Improvements Plan

Page 1 of 2



f. Consideration of Resolution 2024-34 Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of a Loan Agreement and
Intercept Agreement by and between Cibola County and the New Mexico Finance Authority
g. Consideration of RFP 2024-004 Selection of Quartz Hill Trail System Trail Construction Firm
h. Consideration of IFB 2024-002 Selection of County Road 5 Bridge Replacement General Contractor and
Direction to Staff to Execute the Final Contract Based on Cost Proposal Provided
i. Consideration of Selection of 2 Board Members to the Ambulance Service Committee
j.  Consideration of MOU between Cibola Sheriff’s Office and 13" Judicial District Juvenile Treatment
Court
k. Consideration of Requisitions over $20,000
1. Fire Equipment/Artesia Fire Equipment/Laguna Fire Protection-$34,800
2. Stonefly 40TB Backup Device/ SHI/Data Processing-$31,219.68

11. Executive Session
Motion and roll call vote to go into executive session and that, pursuant to New Mexico State Statute Section 10-15-
1, only the following matters will be discussed in closed session:

Pursuant to Section 10-15-1 (H) the following matters may be discussed in closed session:
a. Pending or threatened litigation 10-15-1 (H) (7)

b. Real Property 10-15-1 (H) (8)

c. Personnel 10-15-1 (H) (2)

d. other specific limited topics that are allowed or authorized under the stated statute;
Motion and Roll Call Vote to Return to Regular Session

Motion and Roll Call Vote that Matters Discussed In Closed Session Were Limited To Those Specified In
Motion For Closure, and That No Final Action Was Taken, As Per New Mexico Statutes Section §10-15-1.

12. Announcements
a. Cibola County Offices Will Be Closed, Monday, May 27, 2024, In Observation of Memorial Day
Holiday.
b. A Special Canvassing Commission Meeting will be held on Thursday, June 13%, 2024, at 2:00 p.m.
c. The Next Regular Commission Meeting will be held on Thursday, June 27%, 2024, at 5:00 p.m.

13. Adjournment

Note: This agenda is subject to change up to 72 hours prior to the scheduled meeting date and time as deemed necessary by the County Manager. To inquire about
agenda changes, please contact the Grants/Project Manager, Judy Horacek, at 505.285.2557 or judy.horacek@co.cibola.nm.us If you are an individual with a
disability who is in need of a reader, amplifier, qualified sign language interpreter, or any other form of auxiliary aid or service to attend or participate in the hearing or
meeting, please contact the County Manager at least one (1) week prior to the meeting or as soon as possible.

Page 2 of 2



04.25.2024

Regular Commission Meeting




Regular Commission Meeting
Thursday, April 25, 2024
5:00 p.m.
Cibola County Commission Chambers

Elected Officials Present Staff

Christine Lowery, Chair Kate Fletcher, Manager

Ralph Lucero, 1% Vice Chair Paul Ludi, Finance Director
Daniel Torrez, 2" Vice Chair Michelle Dominguez, County Clerk
Robert Windhorst, Commissioner Maria Grijalva, Rec/Filing

Martha Garcia, Commissioner Absent

1. Call to Order
Madam Chair Lowery called the meeting to order at 5:00 pm.

2. Roll Call
Madam Chair Lowery does roll call, Commissioner Martha Garcia, was absent.

3. Pledge of Allegiance
Led by 1% Vice Chair Lucero recited by all.

4. Prayer .
Led by 1* Vice Chair Lucero.

5. Approval of Agenda
Motion to approve agenda made by Commissioner Windhorst
Second was made by Commissioner Lucero 4-0 affirmative.

6. Public Comment
CL Peterson asks once again to have the meetings televised for the public.
Adelaida Yarborough introduced herself and stated that she is running for Commissioner District 4.

Harry Garcia has interest in a facility on old highway 66 being a possible location for a long-term
treatment center. He has been working with Santa Fe on a plan to action to be presented in the next few
months.

7. Minutes
a. 03-28-2024 Regular Commission Meeting.
Motion to approve item A made by Commissioner Lucero
Second by Commissioner Windhorst 4-0 affirmative.

8. Reports
a. Budget and Finance Report- Kate Fletcher- County Manager & Paul Ludi- Finance Director.

Report on File.
Page 1 of 4



9. Presentation
a. Presentation of Awards:
a. Sheriff Diaz presented Detective Brian Gardner with an exceptional job performance
award.
b. Sheriff Diaz presented Deputy April Salazar with an exceptional job performance award.
c. Sheriff Diaz presented Deputy Court Security Charley Wheeler with an exceptional job
performance award.

10. Public Hearing
a. Ordinance 2024-002 Authorizing the issuance and sale of Cibola County, NM Taxable

industrial Revenue Bonds (Route 66 Energy, LLC Project), Series 2024

11. New Business — Action May Be Taken
a. Consideration of Ordinance 2024-002 Authorizing the Issuance and Sale of Cibola

County, NM Taxable Industrial Revenue Bonds (Route 66 Energy Storage, LL.C Project),
Series 2024 in the Maximum Aggregate Principal Amount of $85,000,000 to Provide
Funds to Finance the Acquisition, Construction and Equipping of Energy Storage
Facilities for the Purpose of Storing Photovoltaic Electricity; Authorizing the Execution
and Delivery of an Indenture, a Lease Agreement, a Bond Purchase Agreement, the
Bonds, and Other Documents in Connection with the Issuance of the Bonds and the
Project; Making Certain Determinations and Findings Relating to the Bonds and the
Projects; Ratifying Certain Actions Taken Previously; and Repealing all Actions
Inconsistent with this Ordinance
Motion to approve Item A. made by Commissioner Lucero.
Second made by Commissioner Torrez. 4-0 affirmative.

b. Consideration of Resolution 2024-25 FY24 Budget Adjustment # 6
Motion to approve Item B. made by Commissioner Windhorst.
Second made by Commissioner Torrez. 4-0 affirmative

c. Consideration of Resolution 2024-26 FY24 3rd Quarter Report
Motion to approve Item C. made by Commissioner Windhorst.
Second made by Commissioner Lucero. 4-0 affirmative

d. Consideration of Resolution 2024-27 Auctioning of County Vehicles
Motion to approve item D. was made by Commissioner Torrez
Second by Commissioner Lucero 4-0 affirmative.

e. Consideration of Resolution 2024-28 To Transfer Volvo Grader G940B, GMC C8500
Dump Truck, and Monroe Snow and Ice Salter to the Village of Milan
Motion to approve items E made by Commissioner Lucero.
Second by Commissioner Windhorst 4-0 affirmative.

Page 2 of 4



f. Consideration of a Proclamation Designating the Month of May as Motorcycle
Awareness Month
Motion to approve item F. made by Commissioner Lucero
Second by Commissioner Torrez 4-0 affirmative.

g. Consideration of Contract for Legal Services
Motion to approve item G. made by Commissioner Windhorst.
Second by Commissioner Lucero 4 -0 affirmative.

h. Consideration of Requisitions over $20,000
1. Tanker-Pumper/Midwest Fire/ Fence Lake Vol FD-$351,054
2. T880 Kenworth Truck Cab/Inland Kenworth/Road Dept.-$193,393
3. 2024 Traileze Tri Axe 55 Detachable/MCT, Inc./Road Dept.-$138,320
Motion to approve item H. made by Commissioner Torrez
Second by Commissioner Windhorst 4-0 affirmative.

12. Executive Session No Executive Session

Motion and roll call vote to go into executive session and that, pursuant to New Mexico State Statute Section
10-15-1, only the following matters will be discussed in closed session.

Pursuant to Section 10-15-1 (H) the following matters may be discussed in closed session:

a. Pending or threatened litigation 10-15-1 (H) (7)

b. Real Property 10-15-1 (H) (8)

c. Personnel 10-15-1 (H) (2)

d. Other specific limited topics that are allowed or authorized under the stated statute.
Motion and Roll Call Vote to Return to Regular Session

Motion and Roll Call Vote that Matters Discussed in Closed Session Were Limited to Those Specified In
Motion For Closure and That No Final Action Was Taken. As Per New Mexico Statutes Section §10-15-1.

12. Announcements
a. The Next Regular Commission Meeting will be on Thursday, May 23", 2024, at 5:00 p.m.

13. Adjournment
6:23 p.m.

Page 3 of 4



PASSED, APPROVED, and ADOPTED this 23", day of May 2024

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Christine Lowery, Chair

Ralph Lucero, 1 Vice Chair

Daniel Torrez, 2" Vice Chair

Martha Garcia, Commissioner

Robert Windhorst, Commissioner

ATTEST:

Date:

Michelle E. Dominguez, Cibola County Clerk

SEAL

Page 4 of 4



7b Mmutes

05.06.2024

Special Commission Meeting




Special Commission Meeting
Monday, May 6™ 2024
5:00 p.m.
Cibola County Commission Chambers

Elected Officials Present Staff Kate Fletcher, Manager

Christine Lowery, Chair Paul Ludi, Finance Director
Ralph Lucero, 1% Vice Chairman Natalie Grine, Chief Deputy Clerk
Daniel Torrez, 2" Vice Chairman Maria Grijalva, Rec & Fil Sup

Robert Windhorst, Commissioner
Martha Garcia, Commissioner - Absent

. Call to Order
Madam Chair Lowery called the meeting to order at 5:00 pm.

. Roll Call
Madam Chair Lowery does roll call, Commissioners Garcia was absent.

. Pledge of Allegiance
Led by Commissioner Lowery, recited by all.

. Prayer
Led by Commissioner Windhorst.

. Approval of Agenda
Motion to approve agenda made by Commissioner Torrez

Second made by Commissioner Lucero.4-0 affirmative.

. New Business-Action Mat Be Taken

a. Consideration of Resolution 2024-29, Requesting Modification of Ambulance
Certificate Issued to the City of Grants until Grants Fulfills its Commitment to Provide
Backup Ambulance Services.

Motion to table item A made by Commissioner Torrez, Second by Commissioner Lucero and to

give Manager Kate Fletcher Direction to form a committee with the C1ty of Grants and the

Village of Milan to discuss this matter.4-0 affirmative.

7. Announcements

The next Regular Commission Meeting will be held on Thursday May 23", 2024, at 5:00 p.m.

8. Adjournment

6:24 p.m.

Page 1 of 2



PASSED, APPROVED, and ADOPTED this 23", day of May 2024

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Christine Lowery, Chair

Ralph Lucero, 1% Vice Chair

Daniel Torrez, 2"Vice Chair

Robert Windhorst, Commissioner

Martha Garcia, Commissioner

ATTEST:

Date:

Michelle E. Dominguez, Cibola County Clerk

SEAL

Page 2 of 2



Budget and

Finance Report

As of April 30, 2024




NEW MEXICO -+ EST. 1981

Christine Lowery, Chair

Ralph Lucero, 1st Vice Chair
Daniel Torrez, 2nd Vice Chair
Martha Garcia, Commissioner
Robert Windhorst, Commissioner

Kate Fletcher, County Manager

CIBOLA COUNTY


Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
 Commission Meeting May 23, 2024


Finance
Report

As of April 30, 2024

This Photo by Unknown Author is licensed under CC BY-NC-ND


Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
Finance Report Cover Page


https://www.finsmes.com/2018/08/how-channel-finance-can-facilitate-the-supply-chain.html
https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by-nc-nd/3.0/

FINANCE UPDATES

* Finance Reports & Budgets located on finance
depariment webpage.

 County is reconciled through April 30, 2024 for
the Main Operating account and the
Treasurer’s office is reconciled through April
30, 2024 for the Tax operating account.

« Public Budget Workshop for Final Budget
Coming Soon! Have your voice heard.



Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
 Cibola County Updates
Finance Reports & Budgets located on finance department webpage.
County is reconciled through April 30, 2024 for the Main Operating account and the Treasurer’s office is reconciled through April 30, 2024 for the Tax operating account. Great job.
Public Hearing for Final Budget Coming Soon! We will keep you posted as to when this date is. There may be a quorum and we will post this before the workshop but no action will be taken at this workshop. It is for the public to come and understand what is entailed in the budget and give their thoughts requests to our governing body.


P

GOVERNMENT FINANCE OFFICERS ASSOCIATION

Distinguished

Years | Budgel Presentation

Entity Gov Type Awarded

. N . e Award
Albuguerque Bernalillo County Water Utility Authority Special District 18
North Central Regional Transit District Special District 9 T
City of Albuquerque Municipality 40
City of Las Cruces Municipality 25 County of Cibola
City of Rio Rancho Municipality 18 New Mexico
Incorporated County of Los Alamos County 32

For the Fiscal Year Beginning

SanJuan County County 16
Lea County County 9 sy Dbt 0
Cibola County County 4

Bernalillo County County 2

Chuilophe. P- Montd

Executive Director


Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
GFOA Distinguished Budget Presentation Award
I am pleased to announce Cibola County has earned the Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) Distinguished Budget Presentation Award for the 4th year in a row. A panel of independent reviewers completed their examination of our Annual budget document for the period beginning July 2023 and ending in June 2024. This award is the highest form of recognition in governmental budgeting in the nation and in Canada. Its attainment represents a significant achievement by our county.
It reflects the commitment of the governing body and staff to meeting the highest principles of governmental budgeting. In order to receive the budget award, the entity had to satisfy nationally recognized guidelines for effective budget presentation. These guidelines are designed to assess how well an entity's budget serves as:
a policy document
a financial plan
an operations guide
a communications device


$1,550,000
$1,450,000
$1,350,000
$1,250,000
$1,150,000
$1,050,000
$950,000
$850,000
$750,000
$650,000
$550,000
$450,000
$350,000
$250,000

i

Received GRT Equalization for

$999,871.45 in addition to regular

GRT of $404,153 in September

July August September October November December January February March April May June
2024 YTD Actuals $643,909 $589,026 51,404,025 $518,616 $525,694 $530,938 $637,378 $302,883 $534,154 $542,680 $633,656
==7024 Projected Budget| $549,835 $549,835 $1,357,835 $549,835 $549,835 $549,835 $549,835 $549,835 $549,835 $549,835 $549,835 $549,835
2023 YTD Actuals $536,444 $544,228 $1,296,630 $561,147 $494,626 $533,954 $543,038 $625,741 $536,941 $476,875 $523,283 $527,090
——2022 YTD Actuals $375,851 $531,510 $1,540,013. $614,259 $580,018 $674,226 $535,367 $559,873 $468,410 $501,653 $581,272 $520,659



Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
GRT Tracker
Here is our Gross Receipts history and the red line designates this fiscal year’s GRT up through May of 2024. We have updated our graph to now include the county equalization distribution which is now also represented on the RP 500 reports (shows GRT distribution amounts) that the NM Taxation and Revenue Department (TRD) create. The county Equalization was in the amount of $999,871 for FY24 and is solely dedicated to being used to pay our revenue bonds each year. 
Three months ago we experienced a significant drop in revenue from this distribution due to a legal ruling, but we have bounced back up to our projection in the yellow highlighted line. We will monitor our overall projection and will keep the manager and commission informed on how we do moving forward. We are still on track with our projection.
The bold red line shows our actuals as we track them through fiscal year 2024.
Our budgeted projection is that bold straight yellow line. 
The other lines represent the last 2 years of actual GRT as you can see in the legend.
Our GRT is Broken Down by Increments and are dedicated by ordinance:
The Correctional GRT is dedicated to our inmate costs in the Detention Fund.
The Environmental GRT pays the Northern New Mexico solid waste authority.
The Hold Harmless is dedicated to paying our Series 2014A Bonds which built the detention center.
The County Infrastructure is dedicated for general purposes in the general fund.
The Fire Protection GRT is dedicated to our County Fire Protection Fund.
Our County Share GRT is split into 3 funds. Our Indigent Fund, 2014 B Bond Fund, and general fund. 
The Special County Hospital GRT is a residual type of GRT from when hospital tax was enacted made up of the medical and food hold harmless tax distribution. When the tax increment deactivated the hold harmless portion stayed. It is used in our general fund.
The County Emergency and Medical Services GRT is dedicated to our E-911 program in the consolidated dispatch fund.


5 Year Comparison of Net GRT including Contracts (Intercepts),
Compensating Tax, & Industry Tax
GRT After COVID

$1,700,000

$1,600,000

$1,500,000

$1,400,000

$1,300,000

$1,200,000

$1,100,000

$1,000,000

$900,000

$800,000

$700,000 \

$600,000

$500,000

Ll

$400,000

$300,000

— -

$200,000
$100,000

S0

St K X A D A e Q&
O S 5‘\,9\\“@\0(\ \\3\0%&

S S0 &
v"‘v“'w‘?'oéo'za‘\ro
& 0 i (‘).é\ o)
T FFE L Ly e
A < = Q L 2 = Q

| / =
FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24

——=@Grants =——Cibola =——Miilan


Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
GRT Tracker – All Entities
This slide is to show how the County’s GRT compares to our surrounding municipalities for the past 5 years now. You can see our GRT sustained growth has leveled off and is starting to trend down. We will monitor this closely and keep you informed as we must keep a balanced budget in respect to our expenditures, revenues, and transfers. 
Additionally, you can see, we have added the County Equalization distribution into this graph. To clarify, only counties (not municipalities) receive this GRT equalization distribution, and it is formula driven to assist smaller counties that don’t earn as much GRT as areas with higher populations. The tall spikes in the counties GRT represent this.
Please note this graph doesn’t reflect the Small Cities Assistance the Village and City received in the amounts of $90,000 each for FY24 month of February.



£3,003,068 Property Tax Collections

Last Month

$4,000,000 Current Taxes Delinquent Taxes
$3,500,000 52,622,246 S 2,567,094 $ 526,342
$3,000,000
$2,500,000
$2,000,000 $500,000 S$544,108
$1,500,000
51,000,000

S500,000

$-

Current Taxes Delinquent Taxes

B FY 2024 Budget Projection ®m April 30, 2024 Actuals



Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
Property Tax Collections
Our property tax county portions are coming in. Our actuals as of April 30, 2024 are shown in this graph. Our delinquent taxes are coming in strong will this account’s budget authority will be adjusted in the future.



Cibola County FY2024-2025 Interim Budget Request

Projected Beginning Cash

Ending Cash &

Active Funds Beginning Investments Revenues Transfers Expenditures
- Balance Investments
101 - INVESTMENT FUND $0.00 $5,700,000.00 $250,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,950,000.00
401 - GENERAL FUND $4,700,000.00 $0.00 $11,056,105.46 ($1,165,846.00) ($10,089,527.53) $4,500,731.93
402 - ROAD $1,000,000.00 $0.00 $1,343,675.00 $443,186.00 ($2,786,861.00) $0.00
403 - FARM & RANGE $0.00 $0.00 $9,500.00 $19,500.00 ($29,000.00) $0.00
406 - INDIGENT $550,000.00 $0.00 $605,005.00 $0.00 ($1,155,005.00) $0.00
407 - SAN RAFAEL VFD $200,000.00 $0.00 $223,452.00 ($111,726.00) ($156,082.00) $155,644.00
408 - BLUEWATER VFD $120,000.00 $0.00 $111,726.00 ($25,720.00) ($106,937.00) $99,069.00
409 - LOBO CANYON VFD $280,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $111,726.00 ($234,540.00) $157,186.00
413 - LAGUNA EMS $5,675.00 $0.00 $11,147.00 $0.00 ($16,822.00) $0.00
415 - PINEHILL EMS $10,585.22 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($10,467.30) $117.92
416 - FENCE LAKE VFD $570,000.00 $0.00 $67,393.00 $0.00 ($603,355.00) $34,038.00
418 - CANDY KITCHEN VFD $350,000.00 $0.00 $136,552.00 ($38,209.00) (5443,877.00) $4,466.00
419 - LAGUNA VFD $1,016,500.00 $0.00 $404,340.00 $0.00 ($1,023,340.00) $397,500.00
416 - FENCE LAKE EMS $0.00 $0.00 $14,200.00 $0.00 ($14,200.00) $0.00
424 - CUBERO VFD $470,000.00 $0.00 $101,085.00 ($13,798.00) ($350,739.00) $206,548.00
425 - CUBERO EMS $6,500.00 $0.00 $8,511.00 $0.00 ($8,511.00) $6,500.00
427 - EL MORRO VFD $500,000.00 $0.00 $67,393.00 ($4,229.00) ($444,416.00) $118,748.00
428 - SUPERIOR AMBULANCE $7.55 $0.00 $51,856.45 $0.00 ($51,864.00) $0.00
429-CIBOLA ADMIN EMS $1.90 $0.00 $33,478.00 $0.00 ($33,479.90) $0.00
430 - LAGUNA VFD - VALENCIA STATION $81,565.00 $0.00 $105,553.00 $0.00 ($105,550.00) $81,568.00
435 - CONSOLIDATED DISPATCH $90,000.00 $0.00 $1,151,171.00 $365,854.00 ($1,607,025.00) $0.00
438 - DWI GRANT $69,000.00 $0.00 $118,928.00 $0.00 ($118,928.00) $69,000.00
439 - DWI DISTRIBUTION $200,000.00 $0.00 $324,735.00 $0.00 ($324,735.00) $200,000.00
475 - COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION $1,600,000.00 $0.00 $263,730.00 $0.00 ($579,347.00) $1,284,383.00
500 - CLERK RECORDING/FILING $100,000.00 $0.00 $30,000.00 $0.00 ($79,100.00) $50,900.00
569 - 2014A BOND INCOME FUND $0.00 $0.00 $1,213,058.00 ($642,187.00) ($570,871.00) $0.00
570 -2014B BOND INCOME FUND $0.00 $0.00 $1,907,380.00 ($1,140,054.00) ($767,326.00) $0.00
575 - NMFA LOANS $0.00 $360,000.00 $20,000.00 $322,048.00 ($322,048.00) $380,000.00
604 - FIRE MARSHAL $84,300.00 $0.00 $106,585.00 ($13,286.00) ($159,077.00) $18,522.00
605 - LAW ENFORCEMENT PROTECTION $0.00 $0.00 $125,000.00 ($20,000.00) ($105,000.00) $0.00
606 - NMDOT LOCAL GOV. TRANS. GRANT $119,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $30,200.00 ($149,200.00) $0.00
607 - QUARTZ HILL PROJECT $145,500.00 $0.00 $420,478.35 ($120,500.00) (5445,478.35) $0.00
614 - DETENTION CENTER $0.00 $0.00 $3,469,805.00 $1,825,771.00 ($5,295,576.00) $0.00
620 - 1% REAPPRAISAL FUND $63,000.00 $0.00 $62,000.00 $0.00 ($57,277.00) $67,723.00
646 - LG ABATEMENT $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
647 - LATCF GRANT $5,411,336.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($5,411,336.00) $0.00
648 - TPF COUNTY ROAD GRANTS FUND $2,562,811.00 $0.00 $1,900,000.00 $177,270.00 ($4,640,081.00) $0.00
649 - AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT $1,124,758.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($1,087,928.00) $36,830.00
651 - CAPITAL OUTLAY PROJECTS $0.00 $0.00 $670,000.00 $0.00 ($670,000.00) $0.00
TOTALS= $21,430,539.67 $6,060,000.00 $26,383,842.26 $0.00 ($40,054,907.08) $13,819,474.85



Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
Fiscal Year 2024 - 2025 (FY25) Interim Budget
We have a state approvable interim budget shown here. 
In the highlighted yellow cells you see our transfers equal zero which is mandatory.
In the highlighted rust cells we show our projected beginning cash balances. Our final budget which is due July 31st will have actual cash balances.
In the highlighted blue cells you can see our projected ending cash balances are not in a deficit which is mandatory. 
In the highlighted green cells you can see this is a very balanced budget. Projected expenditures and transfers are only 1.77% over projected revenues. This means we won’t get the language in our approval letter that we are depleting our general fund cash balances.
Remember, this is an interim budget and serves as a placeholder until our final budget is approved. This budget is due on or before June 1. DFA reviews it and gives us approval by June 30 so we can hit the ground running on July 1st with paying our salary and benefits, reopen purchasing, and pay bills. 
Approval of the interim budget is recommended.



Cibola County Operating Cash Recap - April 30, 2024

5 Beginning Cash Balance . i i Ending Cash &
Active Funds asof 7.1.2023 | Beginning Investments | YTD Revenues YTD Transfers YTD Expenditures YTD Adjustments Investments
101 - INVESTMENT FUND $0.00 $5,436,019.96 $245,055.73 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,681,075.69
401 - GENERAL FUND $8,562,611.58 $0.00 $5,289,437.17 ($1,649,081.49) ($7,324,829.26) ($2,798,370.50) $2,079,767.50
402 - ROAD $152,649.28 $0.00 $2,087,960.10 $0.00 ($1,082,145.31) $3,937.72 $1,162,401.79
403 - FARM & RANGE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $19,076.69 ($28,031.44) $0.00 ($8,954.75)
406 - INDIGENT $692,889.38 $0.00 $540,304.20 $0.00 ($697,731.02) $0.00 $535,462.56
407 - SAN RAFAEL VFD $255,329.45 $0.00 $167,142.00 ($55,416.00) ($154,957.23) ($50.00) $212,048.22
408 - BLUEWATER VFD $89,784.17 $0.00 $111,726.00 ($25,251.00) ($54,204.93) ($420.00) $121,634.24
409 - LOBO CANYON VFD $295,777.14 $0.00 $56,310.00 $55,416.00 ($126,578.43) $0.00 $280,924.71
413 - LAGUNA EMS $5,674.63 $0.00 $11,147.00 $0.00 (54,445.03) $0.00 $12,376.60
415 - PINEHILL EMS $1,546.22 $0.00 $9,039.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,585.22
416 - FENCE LAKE VFD $521,084.69 $0.00 $67,418.65 $0.00 ($14,640.69) ($259.34) $573,603.31
418 - CANDY KITCHEN VFD $341,301.63 $0.00 $136,552.00 ($37,531.00) ($73,151.91) $0.00 $367,170.72
419 - LAGUNA VFD $859,195.51 $0.00 $404,340.00 $0.00 ($231,593.08) $0.00 $1,031,942.43
424 - CUBERO VFD $172,179.27 $0.00 $341,085.00 ($13,541.00) ($25,914.09) $0.00 $473,809.18
425 - CUBERO EMS $2,249.64 $0.00 $5,000.00 $0.00 ($652.64) $0.00 $6,597.00
427 - EL MORRO VFD $195,363.40 $0.00 $327,393.00 $0.00 ($16,361.92) $0.00 $506,394.48
428 - SUPERIOR AMBULANCE $1,766.53 $0.00 $14,945.00 $0.00 ($16,557.65) $0.00 $153.88
429-CIBOLA ADMIN EMS $0.85 $0.00 $5,000.00 $0.00 ($4,872.95) ($0.00) $127.90
430 - LAGUNA VFD - VALENCIA STATION $0.00 $0.00 $105,553.00 $0.00 ($11,156.49) $0.00 $94,396.51
435 - CONSOLIDATED DISPATCH $194,548.33 $0.00 $1,049,501.90 $57,000.00 ($1,296,153.13) ($26.44) $4,870.66
438 - DWI GRANT $56,841.28 $0.00 $56,238.21 $0.00 ($42,610.87) $0.00 $70,468.62
439 - DWI DISTRIBUTION $143,059.42 $0.00 $273,827.00 $0.00 ($257,276.19) $0.00 $159,610.23
475 - COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION $1,208,050.12 $0.00 $246,845.95 $0.00 ($17,585.98) $0.00 $1,437,310.09
500 - CLERK RECORDING/FILING $97,714.69 $0.00 $31,446.00 $0.00 ($19,984.45) $0.00 $109,176.24
569 - 2014A BOND INCOME FUND $0.00 $0.00 $1,000,109.63 $0.00 ($107,156.21) $0.00 $892,953.42
570-2014B BOND INCOME FUND $0.00 $0.00 $1,810,327.95 $0.00 ($224,879.07) $0.00 $1,585,448.88
575 - NMFA LOANS $0.00 $377,669.77 $16,747.23 $280,316.16 ($24,191.00) $0.00 $650,542.16
604 - FIRE MARSHAL $76,707.40 $0.00 $176,724.24 ($12,970.00) ($67,737.94) $0.00 $172,723.70
605 - LAW ENFORCEMENT PROTECTION $0.00 $0.00 $119,000.00 ($18,018.36) ($38,338.35) $0.00 $62,643.29
606 - NMDOT LOCAL GOV. TRANS. GRANT $798,831.02 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($679,630.91) $0.00 $119,200.11
607 - QUARTZ HILL PROJECT $144,034.31 $0.00 $1,553.30 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $145,587.61
614 - DETENTION CENTER $0.00 $780,003.86 $7,473,593.19 $1,400,000.00 ($8,608,526.34) ($866,597.40) $178,473.31
616 - LERF $0.00 $0.00 $11,367.08 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $11,367.08
620 - 1% REAPPRAISAL FUND $15,961.85 $0.00 $64,063.21 $0.00 ($14,823.00) $0.00 $65,202.06
646 - LG ABATEMENT $0.00 $0.00 $790,636.02 $0.00 ($790,636.02) $0.00 $0.00
647 - LATCF GRANT $3,151,902.50 $0.00 $3,151,902.50 $0.00 ($924,697.81) $0.00 $5,379,107.19
648 - TPF COUNTY ROAD GRANTS FUND $1,505,488.13 $0.00 $1,187,500.00 $0.00 ($130,177.38) $0.00 $2,562,810.75
649 - AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT $2,414,398.12 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($1,455,924.26) $0.00 $958,473.86
651 - CAPITAL OUTLAY PROJECTS $0.00 $0.00 $304,317.29 $0.00 ($53,156.51) $0.00 $251,160.78
TOTALS= $21,956,940.54 $6,593,693.59 $27,691,108.55 $0.00 ($24,621,309.49) ($3,661,785.96) $27,958,647.23


Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
April 30, 2024 – Monthly Finance Recap 
Here is our April 30, 2024, monthly financial report. As you can see, we are maintaining our investments and required reserves. We keep all our bond and state reserves in our investment fund, so we are not dipping into them. Our general fund is doing fine, and we are strong with operating cash to support our recurring expenditures. Please note we don’t receive our PILT of $2,000,000 until June and are projected to transfer back $1.5 million from our overages of revenue in our bond fund until June. There will also be other revenues which will bolster our ending cash balance at the fiscal year’s end.
Our transfers equal zero, which is mandatory.
The is one fund deficit in the Farm and Range fund but we will wait to see how much Taylor Grazing Fees we will receive in June and then cover any deficit at year end. This is normal.
This recap is developed using three reports:
The pooled cash report gives what our beginning and ending cash balances should be. This should be reconciled to your bank statements every month.
The Detail Vs. Budget report gives the revenue, transfer, and expenditure activity.
The balance sheets give us our adjustments to get from pooled cash to pooled cash and gives us our investments. This also reconciles to our bank statements.
The county is in great fiscal shape and is following GAAP, GASB, and all state laws and requirements. We have also addressed our last 2 audit findings.



ENTITY NAME: CibolaCounty e e
FISCAL YEAR: FY 2023-24 Page 1 of 1
RESOLUTION #: 2024-32
BAR SCHEDULE: 2024-32A
REVENUE
TY;:ROF COUNTY EXPENDITURE CIBOLA COUNTY DESCRIPTION APPROVED ADJUSTMENT ADJUSTED
LOCAL (L)
OR STATE DEPARTMENT TRAN?;E;)(TO or ACCOUNT# OF ACCOUNT BUDGET BUDGET PURPOSE
(S)
S GF Revenue 101-23-360-18000 Income on Investments $250,000.00 $25,000.00 $275,000.00 Increase revenues to actuals
S Bluewater Revenue 408-30-300-56000 Bluewater $105,900.00 $5,850.00 $111,750.00 Increase revenues to actuals
S 1% Reappraisal Revenue 620-40-300-57600 Fee Collections $45,000.00 $30,000.00 $75,000.00 Increase revenues to actuals
S Detention Revenue 614-85-380-30100 Care of Prisoners--Municipality $150,000.00 $120,000.00 $270,000.00 Increase revenues to actuals
S Cubero VFD 424-020-499-09604 From 604 to 424 $0.00 $18,810.00 $18,810.00 Cubero grant posted in 604 inadvertently
S Fire Marshal 604-018-499-90424 From 604 to 424 $0.00 $18,810.00 $18,810.00 Cubero grant posted in 604 inadvertently

7



Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
Budget Adjustment #7 – Reso 2024-32
This is our budget adjustment schedule for BAR #7 Resolution 2024-32. 
The first 4 adjustments are to revenues to bring them to actuals. This way we don’t exceed budget authority.
The second two are to transfer a grant amount that was incorrectly deposited into the Fire Marshal’s Fund instead of the Cubero VFD. Since this occurred in prior years we can’t just do a correction, we have to get budget authority to move the cash from fund to fund.



MONTHLY QUESTION

Af the end of the year, whatever is not spent by the
departments in the General Fund (GF), they get 1o roll

over their remaining cash balcmces into the budget of
the new year? P _

1. Yes
2. No

SHOW ME ¢
THE MONEY! ,%

Al . e \ il

ANSWER IS: 2. THEY WISH! No, each GF department builds a new budget each year.
There is one big cash account for the general fund and what is not spent remains as
cash balance. We do however re-issue purchase orders that have committed the cash
balance so if they don’t budget for that too it will eat out of their new budget.



Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
Monthly Question
At the end of the year, whatever is not spent by the departments in the General Fund (GF), they get to roll over their balance into budget of the new year?
Yes
No
ANSWER IS: 2. NO! Each GF department builds a new budget each year. There is one big cash account for the general fund and what is not spent remains as cash balance. We do however re-issue purchase orders that have committed the cash balance so if they don’t budget for that too it will eat out of their new budget.



Questions
Comments



Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
Questions, Comments, or Concerns?



Slide Outline and Notes of Cibola County Finance Report

From July 1, 2023, through March 31, 2024, Finance Report

Commission Meeting April 25, 2024

Finance Report Cover Page

Cibola County Updates

Finance Reports & Budgets located on finance department webpage.

County is reconciled through April 30, 2024 for the Main Operating account and the Treasurer’s office is
reconciled through April 30, 2024 for the Tax operating account. Great job.

Public Hearing for Final Budget Coming Soon! We will keep you posted as to when this date is. There may be
a quorum and we will post this before the workshop but no action will be taken at this workshop. It is for the
public to come and understand what is entailed in the budget and give their thoughts requests to our
governing body.

GFOA Distinguished Budget Presentation Award

| am pleased to announce Cibola County has earned the Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA)
Distinguished Budget Presentation Award for the 4™ year in a row. A panel of independent reviewers
completed their examination of our Annual budget document for the period beginning July 2023 and ending
in June 2024. This award is the highest form of recognition in governmental budgeting in the nation and in
Canada. Its attainment represents a significant achievement by our county.

It reflects the commitment of the governing body and staff to meeting the highest principles of
governmental budgeting. In order to receive the budget award, the entity had to satisfy nationally
recognized guidelines for effective budget presentation. These guidelines are designed to assess how well an
entity's budget serves as:

e apolicy document

e afinancial plan

e an operations guide

e acommunications device

GRT Tracker

Here is our Gross Receipts history and the red line designates this fiscal year’s GRT up through May of 2024.
We have updated our graph to now include the county equalization distribution which is now also
represented on the RP 500 reports (shows GRT distribution amounts) that the NM Taxation and Revenue
Department (TRD) create. The county Equalization was in the amount of $999,871 for FY24 and is solely
dedicated to being used to pay our revenue bonds each year.

Three months ago we experienced a significant drop in revenue from this distribution due to a legal ruling,
but we have bounced back up to our projection in the yellow highlighted line. We will monitor our overall
projection and will keep the manager and commission informed on how we do moving forward. We are still
on track with our projection.

The bold red line shows our actuals as we track them through fiscal year 2024.



Our budgeted projection is that bold straight yellow line.
The other lines represent the last 2 years of actual GRT as you can see in the legend.

Our GRT is Broken Down by Increments and are dedicated by ordinance:

The Correctional GRT is dedicated to our inmate costs in the Detention Fund.

The Environmental GRT pays the Northern New Mexico solid waste authority.

The Hold Harmless is dedicated to paying our Series 2014A Bonds which built the detention center.
The County Infrastructure is dedicated for general purposes in the general fund.

The Fire Protection GRT is dedicated to our County Fire Protection Fund.

Our County Share GRT is split into 3 funds. Our Indigent Fund, 2014 B Bond Fund, and general fund.

The Special County Hospital GRT is a residual type of GRT from when hospital tax was enacted made up of
the medical and food hold harmless tax distribution. When the tax increment deactivated the hold harmless
portion stayed. It is used in our general fund.

The County Emergency and Medical Services GRT is dedicated to our E-911 program in the consolidated
dispatch fund.

GRT Tracker — All Entities

This slide is to show how the County’s GRT compares to our surrounding municipalities for the past 5 years
now. You can see our GRT sustained growth has leveled off and is starting to trend down. We will monitor
this closely and keep you informed as we must keep a balanced budget in respect to our expenditures,
revenues, and transfers.

Additionally, you can see, we have added the County Equalization distribution into this graph. To clarify, only
counties (not municipalities) receive this GRT equalization distribution, and it is formula driven to assist
smaller counties that don’t earn as much GRT as areas with higher populations. The tall spikes in the
counties GRT represent this.

Please note this graph doesn’t reflect the Small Cities Assistance the Village and City received in the amounts
of $90,000 each for FY24 month of February.

Property Tax Collections

Our property tax county portions are coming in. Our actuals as of April 30, 2024 are shown in this graph. Our
delinquent taxes are coming in strong will this account’s budget authority will be adjusted in the future.

Fiscal Year 2024 - 2025 (FY25) Interim Budget
We have a state approvable interim budget shown here.
In the highlighted yellow cells you see our transfers equal zero which is mandatory.

In the highlighted - cells we show our projected beginning cash balances. Our final budget which is due
July 31°* will have actual cash balances.

In the highlighted blue cells you can see our projected ending cash balances are not in a deficit which is
mandatory.



In the highlighted green cells you can see this is a very balanced budget. Projected expenditures and
transfers are only 1.77% over projected revenues. This means we won’t get the language in our approval
letter that we are depleting our general fund cash balances.

Remember, this is an interim budget and serves as a placeholder until our final budget is approved. This
budget is due on or before June 1. DFA reviews it and gives us approval by June 30 so we can hit the ground
running on July 1°* with paying our salary and benefits, reopen purchasing, and pay bills.

Approval of the interim budget is recommended.
April 30, 2024 — Monthly Finance Recap

Here is our April 30, 2024, monthly financial report. As you can see, we are maintaining our investments and
required reserves. We keep all our bond and state reserves in our investment fund, so we are not dipping
into them. Our general fund is doing fine, and we are strong with operating cash to support our recurring
expenditures. Please note we don’t receive our PILT of $2,000,000 until June and are projected to transfer
back $1.5 million from our overages of revenue in our bond fund until June. There will also be other
revenues which will bolster our ending cash balance at the fiscal year’s end.

Our transfers equal zero, which is mandatory.

The is one fund deficit in the Farm and Range fund but we will wait to see how much Taylor Grazing Fees we
will receive in June and then cover any deficit at year end. This is normal.

This recap is developed using three reports:

The pooled cash report gives what our beginning and ending cash balances should be. This should be
reconciled to your bank statements every month.

The Detail Vs. Budget report gives the revenue, transfer, and expenditure activity.

The balance sheets give us our adjustments to get from pooled cash to pooled cash and gives us our
investments. This also reconciles to our bank statements.

The county is in great fiscal shape and is following GAAP, GASB, and all state laws and requirements. We
have also addressed our last 2 audit findings.

Budget Adjustment #7 — Reso 2024-32
This is our budget adjustment schedule for BAR #7 Resolution 2024-32.
The first 4 adjustments are to revenues to bring them to actuals. This way we don’t exceed budget authority.

The second two are to transfer a grant amount that was incorrectly deposited into the Fire Marshal’s Fund
instead of the Cubero VFD. Since this occurred in prior years we can’t just do a correction, we have to get
budget authority to move the cash from fund to fund.

Monthly Question

At the end of the year, whatever is not spent by the departments in the General Fund (GF), they get to roll over
their balance into budget of the new year?

Yes

No



ANSWER IS: 2. NO! Each GF department builds a new budget each year. There is one big cash account for the
general fund and what is not spent remains as cash balance. We do however re-issue purchase orders that
have committed the cash balance so if they don’t budget for that too it will eat out of their new budget.



8b. Reports

Assessor’s
Annual Report

Written only FY2024




10Ssassy. finda
zanblipoy euus|t

91-9¢-L VSIAN

L86) 'LS3 . OJIX3IW M3IN

10SSaSSY
sola]|ep s3l0j0@

joday |pnuuy ¥20¢
S 10Ssassy AlUNOD




INJBA

"PISY
%189 L9S°C6T 9T § L19°180°THCS 0S L ARS Sres -UON
[ej0].
IN[BA
%89°9 ORMe el $ SPTIOTTE]IS 6SL°88S0LIS "PISY
[ejof,
MaN JON
929°126'8$ oNfeA
%€0°L 0+8°800°0€ $ 6rE'S8Y 9T $ 60S°9LP 96E$ | dIqexe],
[ejoL,
dsuey) suey)) v20T €707
o/ $ IBIX XEJ, 183X XeJ.

uosLredwo)) uonene A d[qexe] 19N




3
~v
L
-

=

s

g

*

5

H

3

H

L i

|
|




“ |:
|




"SONBA CZ()Z 199[J1 03 ()] IOLISIP Xe) ur 90e[d aYe) pjnom
pUeB 4707 JO YoIelAl Ul urdaq o3 pauue[d AJ[euI3IIo sem G 9Seydy

20T 1oquiaidag

u1 pajuawrdwr oq 03 Jasreidde Joryo oyl JO UONIAIIP Y}

1opun ueld [esteiddear mou € SurjedId pue SUOISIAAI SULYRUW dI8 9M
‘Kreurwuns Uf “dIgsIopes] Aau ) Jopun SQUI[oWI) Pue ‘S9A1}03[q0
‘SO0IN0SI JO JUSUWISSISSBAL PUB UOIIOAIIPAT JI3RIIS B JO dANDI[JL
ST POPUIUL AJ[BIIIUL SB POUAUWILIOD Jou Ssey ue[d [esrerddear

3} JO G ISBY{ 1Y) 198} U ], "SI[NPAYIS PUe ‘SAIS0JOPOT oW
‘sonjrzorxd ur S)IYS 0) pedl Al JI S JUIWOW [BONLID

© 9g ued porrad uonisues) SIy [, ‘SOZURYD JURDIJIUSIS 0FIopUn

0 ‘sue]d Tesrerddeas Surpnjour ‘suefd pue s9ss9501d J0OJ UOWLIOOUN
10U SJI ‘901 J19Y} ojur sdags Josterddy Jorg) mou e Usyp ‘€707

J0 Ang ur 1asteaddy Jory)) se zniQ Apues “IJA paIIy 991J0 InQ

snje)S ueld resrexddeay]



EEL 1SR - ODIXIW MIN




9a. Presentation

Acknowledging &
Honoring

1. George Munoz-State Senator District 4
2. Harry Garcia-State Representative 69
3. Joshua Sanchez-State Senator District 30



10a. New Business

Route 66 Energy
Storage Arrey

Summary Review Plat




APPENDIX “B»

DISCLOSURE STATEMENT
FOR

Route 66 Energy Storage Array

YOU SHOULD READ THIS DISCLOSURE STATEMENT BEFORE YOU SIGN ANY
DOCUMENTS OR AGREE TO ANYTHING,

This disclosure statement is intended to provide you with enough information to make an informed decision on
the purchase, lease or acquisition of the property described in this statement, IT SHOULD FULLY DESCRIBE
THE DUTIES OF THE DEVELOPER AND YOUR OBLIGATIONS AS A PROPERTY OWNER IN THIS
SUBDIVISION. You should read carefully all of the information contained in this disclosure statement before
you decide to buy, lease or otherwise acquite the described property. You should read carefully all the
documents mentioned in this disclosure statement, :

Various p\ublic agencies may have issued opinions on both the subdivision proposal and the information
contained in this disclosute statement, Summaries of these opinions are contained in this disclosurs statement,
They may be favorable or unfavorable. You shonld read them closely.

The Board of County Commissioners has examined this disclosure statement to determine whether the
subdivider can fulfill what subdivider has said in this disclosure statement. However, the Board of County
Commissioners does not vouch for the accuracy of what is said in this disclosure statement. In addition, this
disclosure statement is not a recommendation or endorsement of the subdivision by either the County or the
State. Ttis informative only.

The Board of County Commissioners recommends that you inspect the property before buying, leasing or
otherwise acquiting it,

It you have not inspected the parcel before purchasing, leasing or otherwise acquixing it, you have six
(6) months from the time of purchase, lease or other acquisition to pexsonally inspect the property.
After inspecting the parcel within the six (6) month period, you have three (3) days to rescind the
transaction and receive all your money back from the snbdivider swhen merchantable title is vested in
the subdivider. To rescind the transaction, you must give the subdivider written notice of your intent
to rescind within three (3) days after the date of your inspection of the property. (Section 47-6-23,
NMSA 1978),

County regulations require that an)} deed, real estate contract, lease or other instrument conveying an interest in
a parcel in the subdivision be recorded with the County Clerk.

Building permits, wastewater permits ox other use permits must be issved by the proper government
officials before improvements are construeted. You should investigate the availability of such permits
before you purchase, lease, or otherwise acquire an interest ju the land. Youn should alse determine
whether such permits are requirements for constroction of additional improvemenis before you
occupy the property.

69




L

2,

3

5‘

7.

NAME OF SUBDIVISION

(nano of subdivision); (dats of all approvel resolutions)

Route 66 Energy Storage Array

NAME AND ADDRESS OF SUBDIVIDER
(name and addtess of subdivider)
Boulevard Assoclates, LLC {700 Universe Blvd., Juno Beach FL 33408}

D. Patrick McCullough (905 Parkway Dr., St. Paul MN 55117)

NAME AND ADDRESS OF PERSON IN CHARGE OF SALES, LEASING OR OTHER
CONVEYANCE IN NEW MEXICO

(name, address and tefophone nurober of persor in clidrgs of seles, leasing or other conveyance)
Boulevard Associates, LLC as Agent for D. Patrick McCullough

SIZE OF SUBDIVISION BOTH PRESENT AND ANTICIPATED

Prgsont Auicipated
(number of parcels) {number of pascels)

1 2
(oumber of acres in subdivislon) (number of acres in subdivision)
450 17.66

SIZE OF LARGEST PARCEL OFFERED FOR SALE, LEASE OR CONVEYANCE
WITHIN THE SUBDIVISION '

(size of largest paccel in Zeres)

nfa

SIZE OF SMALLEST PARCEL OFFERED FOR SALE, LEASE OR CONVEYANCE
WITHIN THE SUBDIVISION

{size of smallest parcel in acres) |

nfa

PROPOSED RANGE OF PRICES FOR SALES, LEASES OR OTHER

CONVEYANCES

($=lawest amount) (size of parcel sald, leased or conveyed)
n/a nfa

($=highest amount) (size of parcel sold, leased or conveyed)

n/a n/a




9

10,

11,

12.

13.

14,

FINANCING TERMS

(interest rate); (term of loan or contract); {minimym down prymient); (service ¢harges and/or escrow fees); (premium for credit life or other
tnsurance if it is a condition for giving credit); (closing ¢osts); (any other information required by the Truthin Lending Act and Regulation Z if
not set forth abovs),

nfa

NAME AND ADDRESS OF HOLDER OF LEGAL TITLE

(name: and current address of person who is secorded as having legal title): (if any of the holders of legal title named sbove is & corpomtion, Ust
the names and addeesses of all officers of that corporation) .

D. Patrick McCullough (905 Parkway Dr., St. Paul, MN 55117)

NAME AND ADDRESS OF PERSON HAVING EQUITABLE TITLE

(name and eurrent address of person who is rerorded 48 having equitable title) (i€ any of the holders of equitabletitle named above is a
ceorporation, Yist the vames and addresses of all offleers of that corpotation)

nfa

CONDITION OF TITLE

Include at least the following information whete applicable; (number of mortgages); (dame and address of each morlgagee); (balance awing on
each mongage); (summnary of refeaso provisions of each mortgage); (mumber of reaf estate contracts on the divided land for which the
subdivider is making payments as a purchase); (name and addtess of each person holding a veal estate contract as owner of the subdivided Jand
for which tho subdivider is making payments as & purchases); (balance owing on each real eatate contract); (summary of default provisions of
cach real estate contract); (summary of release provisions of eacl: real estate contract); (statement of any other encumbrances on'the land);
(statement of any other conditions relevant to the state of title).

D, Patrick McCullough possesses fee simple absolute Title, which shall be conveyed fo Boulevard Associates in thp same

condition.

STATEMENT OF ALL RESTRICTIONS OF RESERVATIONS OF RECORD THA'T
SUBJECT THE SUBDIVIDED LAND TO ANY CONDITIONS AFFECTING ITS USE
OR GCCUPANCY

(list all deed and plat restrictions, restrictive covenants, ming requirements, eto, affeeting the subdivided land)
nia

ESCROW AGENT

(nasme and address of escrow agent} (statement of whather or not the subdivider has any interest in or financisl ties to the escrow agent)

N/A

UTILITIES
(name of entity providing (estimatzd monthly cost
electricity, if avallable) per pareel)

Socorro Electric Cooperative, Inc. n/a
(name of ¢ntity providing (estimated monthly cost)
aas sexvice, if avallable)

n/ a n/a
name of entity providing (estimated monthly costy

water, If avallable}




rfa nfa
(name of entity providing {estimated montlily cost)
telephone secvics, if available)

n/a nfa

(name of entity providing (estimated monthly cost)
lquid waste disposal, if availnble)

nfa nia
{nante of entity providing (estimated monthly vost)
solid waste ciisposal, {f availablz)

nfa n/a

15, INSTALLATION OF UTILITIES:
State with speclficity the person or entity which bears the cost of installation, and the date of any proposed instatkation.

(electricity) (date)

N/A

(gas) (date)
N/A

{water) (date) )
N/A '

(telephone) (date)
N/A

(liquid waste gisposal) (date)
N/A

(solld waste disposal} {dntc)
N/A

16.  UTILITY LOCATION

{list documents describing cxact location of all eascments); (if all utilities sve to be provided to each pareed in the subdivision, please state
hera); (if utititlos st to be pravided to some but not 211 parcels in the subdivision, state which utilities will be provided to each parcel).

See attached Survey depleting utility location

(state whether each utility will be above ground or underground)

Above Gronnd Underground
Electricity
Gag
Water
Telephone
Liguid Waste Disposal

77




17.

18.

19,

20,

21.

22'

23,

Solid Waste Disposal

WATER AYAILABILITY

(deseribe the miximum annual water requirements of the subdivision inelnding water for indoor nnd ontdoor domestic uses as if the land were
fully developed and occupled); (describe the availzbility und soucces of water to meet the subdivisions maximum annuat water requirements);
{deseribe the means of water delivery within the subdivision); (describe any Bmitations and resttictions on water use in the subdiviston);
(summarize the provislons of any covenants or other restrictions requiring the use of water saving fixtures and other water consorvation
measures); (deseribe what measures, if any, will bo employed to monitar or restrict water use in the subdivision); (cxtimate monthily cost of
water or well maintenasce); {estimate cost of well ingtaflation),

N/A--Applicant will supply own water via water transport system.

FOR SUBDIVISIONS WITH COMMUNITY WATER SYSTEMS (if applicable)

Cutme and address of entity providing water); (source of water and weans of delivery); (summary of any legal restrictions on ither indoot or
otitdoor usage); (statement that individual wells are prohibited, if such is the case),

N/A

FOR SUBDIVISIONS WITH INDIVIDUAL DOMESTIC WELLS OR SHARED
WELLS (if applicable) : .

(stole whether wells will be provided by the subdivider or by the prospective pucchaser/ lesseejonnveyen); (wells are provided by
purchaser/lessee/convayee, state the estimated cost to complete ¢ domestic well, including driller, pressure tank, control devices, storage and
treatent facilities); G wells are provided by the subdivider, stale the cost, if any to the purchasen/Tessee/ conveyes) (summery of logal

testrictions on either indoor or outdoor usage); (average depth to gronndwater and the minirmum and maximum weHl depths to be reasonably

expected); (recommended total depths of well); {estimated vield in gallons pec minute of wells completed to recommended total depth,
N/A

LIFE EXPECTANCY OF WATER SUPPLY

]

{state the life expectaucy of cach source of water supply for the subdivision under full development of (he subdiviston)

N/A

SURFACE WATER*
*Not applicable where subdivider intends to provide watex for domestic use,

(provide adetailed statement the source and yield of the surface water supply and any restrictions to which the surfase watee supply is sabjecty

N/A

NEW MEXICO STATE ENGINEER’S OPINION ON WATER AVAILABILITY

Include herg the approved summary of the opinion received by the Board of Conaty Commissioners from the New Mexico State Bngineer
repgarding: (wisether or not the subdivider can furmish water sufficient in quantity to fulfill the maxisoum annval water requirements of the
subdivision, including water for indoor and outdoor domestic uses); {whether or hot the subdivider can fulfill the proposals in this disclogure
statorment conceming water, excepting water quality)

N/A

WATER QUALITY

(describe the quality of water In the subdivision available for human consumption); (describe any quality that would make the water wisuitable
for use within the subxtivision); (state each maximum allowsble water quality parameter that has bean excesded and the nome of the elament,
conpound or standard that has exceeded that patameter) X

NIA




24.

25,

26‘

27.

28.

29‘

30.

N.M. ENVIRONMENT DEPARTMENT*S OPINION ON WATER QUALITY

inolude here the approved summzry of the optnion received by the Board of Comnty Commissioners from the New Mexico Environment
Department os: (whether or not the subdivider can fumish wates of an acceptable quality for kuman consamption and mieasures to protect the
water supply from contamination in conformity with state regulations}; (whether or not the subdivider can fulfill the water quality proposal
made in this disclosure statement)

N/A

LIQUID WASTE DISPOSAL
{desexibe the precise type of liquid waste dispasal system that is proposed and that lies bean approved by the appropriate governmental agency
for use within the subdivision)

N/A

NOTE: NO LIQUID WASTE DISPOSAL SYSTEM MAY BE USED IN THIS
SUBDIVISION OTHER THAN A SYSTEM APPROVED OR USE IN THIS
SUBDIVISION IN THIS SUBDIVISION BY THE NEW MEXICO ENVIRONMENT
DEPARTMENT ‘

N.M. ENVIRONMENT DEPARTMENT’S OPINION ON LIQUID WASTE DISPOSAL

(Include hete the approved summary of the opition teceived by the Baard of County Cominissioners from the N.M. Environment Departiient
on: (whetties there ae sufficient liquld waste disposal facllities to fulfill the requirements of the subdivision in conformity with state
regulations); (whether or not the subdivider can fulfill the liquid waste proposals made in this disclosare staternent)

N/A

SOLIN WASTE DISPOSAL

(describe the means of solid wasteincluding the permitted Jandfill) that is proposed for use within the subdivision); (state the monthly cost for
solid waste cotlection and disposal); (stato ol] available solid wasts collentors with capacity to setve the subdivision)

N/A

N.M. ENVIRONMENT DEPARTMENT’S OPINION ON SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL

(Include here the approved summary of the opinion recetved by the Boawd of County Commissioners from the N.M, Environment Department
on: {whether there ara sufficient solid wasto disposat facilithes to fulfill the requirements of the subdivision in conformity with state
regulations); (whether or not the subdivider can fulfill the solid waste proposals made in this disclosure statemont}

N/A

TERRAIN MANAGEMENT .

(descyibe the suitability for residential use of the solls in the subdivision as defined in the Nutural Resource Conservation District's soit survey
for Cibola County); (describe any meusures necessary for overcoming soil and topographic limitations, and who will be responsible for
implementing these mensures); (identify by lot and block numbers a1] parcels within the subdivision that are subject to flooding); (identify by
lot and block numbers all pareels within the subdivision located in whole or in part on slopes ln excess of 8%); (describe the surface drainage
for all los in the subdivision); (deseribe the subsurface drainnge for all lots in the subdivision); (desoribe the aature, lovation and completion
dates of all storm drainage systems constructed or wquired to be constructed in the subdivision)

N/A
NATURAL RESOURCE CQNSERVATIOK DISTRfC’I‘S OPINION ON TERRAIN
MANAGEMENT
(Include hecy the approved ry of the opinlon received by the. Board of County Commissionees from the Soil & Watee Conservation

Distriet on: (whether or not the subdivider can fumnish terrain management suffleient to protect agalnst flooding, inadequate dealnage and soil
erusiony; (whether or not the subdivider can satisfy the terain manngement proposals mads in this disclosure statement)

74




N/A

31.  SUBDIVISION ACCESS

)

{name of town nearest to subdivision); (distance from nearest town to subdivision and fhe route over which that distance is computed);
(describe aceess roads to subdivision); (state whether or not subdivision fs accessible by conventional vehicle): (state whether or not
subdivigion is ordinarily rccessible at all flmes of the year and under all weather condifions); (describe the width and sucfacing of alt roads
within the subdivislon); (state the required rond for the subdivision); (atats whether the roads within the subdivision have been aceepted for
maintenance by the County and identify the acceptance documents); (f the roads within e subtivision have not been accepted for
maintermice by the County, stale hiow the ronds will be matatained and describe lot owners® responsibilities nnd obligations with respect to
toad malntenance, !

Nearest town: San Fidel (~1.5 miles); Highway 124 to Private Road (privately maintained dirt road).
A : icle ve in a f weather.

32. MAINTENANCE

(state whettter the roads and other nfrastructure improvements within the subdivisions will be matmained by the County, the subdivider or an
assoclation of Tot owners, aud what measures have been takent to make sure that maintenance (ke plice); (dentify any documents of
aceeptance for maintenance or creation of association}

Private Road--N/A

33. STATE HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT’S OPINION ON ACCESS
(Include hote the approved summary of the opinion teceived by the Board of County Commissionsrs from the State Department of
Transpottation on; (whether or not the subdivider can fulfil (e state highway access requirements for the subdivision in conformity with state
regulations); (whether or not the subdivider can satisfy the acoess proposal made In ths disclostre statement)

Access Permit from State Hioshway Department has been approved and obtained,

34. CONSTRUCTION GUARANTEES (if applicable)

(describe any proposed roads, drainage structures, water treatment facilities or other improvements that will fiot be completed befors parcels in
the subdlvision are offered for sale); (desorlbe all performance bonds, or other collateral securing the completion of cach proposed
improvement) .

N/A -

NOTE: UNLESS THERE XS SUFFICIENT BOND, OR OTHER ADEQUATE
COLLATERAL TO SECURE THE COMPLETION OF PROPOSED
IMPROVEMENTS, IT IS POSSIBLE THAT THE PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS
WILL NOT BE COMPLETED. CAUTION IS ADVISED.

35. ADVERSE OR UNUSUAL CONDITIONS

(state any activities or conditions adjacent to or nearby the subdivision, such as feed {ots, daires, cement plants or nirports, that would subject
tha subdivided land ta any wnnsal sonditions sffecting its use or vecupancy)

N/A

s

36. ARCHAEOLOGICAL SITES AND UNMARKED HUMAN BURTALS

,!.'

(state the results of any archaeologleal survey and envi tal assessment); (desoribe th general locations of any sites within the
Gt mae s onbdivision). <, & o5 4 g oo L
¢ - None. '
¢ LT e R
» 37, RECREATION FACILITIES

Toee e r L . .
T AT L B e et




{describe all recreation facilities, actual and proposed in the subdivision); (state the estimated date of completion of each proposed recreational
facility); (state whether or not there are any bonds, or other collateral securing the construction of each proposed necreational facility and
describe any such bond, or other collateral)

N/A

38. FIRE PROTECTION
(distance to nearest fire station from subdivision); (route over which that distance is computed); (state whether the fire department is full-time
or volunteer); (state source and quantity of water available for fire suppression in the subdivision)

Cubero Fire Department (~5.2 miles). Accessed via Water Canyon Rd to Cubero Loop to NM 124.
The source of the water is the Cibola County water system.

39. POLICE PROTECTION

(list the various police units that have jurisdiction and will pairol the subdivision)

Cibola County Sheriff

40. PUBLIC SCHOOLS
(name of and distance to nearest public elementary school serving the subdivision); (name of and distance to nearest public junior high or
middle school serving the subdivision); (name of and distance to nearest public high school serving the subdivision)

N/A

41. HOSPITALS

(name of nearest hospital); {distance ta nearest hospital and route over which that distance is computed); (number of beds in nearest hospital)

Cibola General Hospital (~16.8 miles) via Interstate 40.

42. SHOPPING FACILITIES
(description of nearest shopping facilities including ber of stares); (di to nearest shopping facilities and route over which that
distance is computed)

N/A

43, PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION

(deseribe all public transportation that serves the subdivision on a regular basis)

N/A

SIGNED W DATED

This Disclosure %tatement was anBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me on this _/ 2 day
of ia] 20
1

LY

Qy

Notary Publiﬁ

SN
8 Notary Public State of Flonda
My Commission Expires: _ 0“2 (-2 g g L4 Jennier Reynoso 4
¢ &My Commussion HH 00142
3 B Expires 0212112025

76




(describe all recreation facilities, actual and proposed in the subdivision); (state the estimated date of completion of each proposed recreational
facility); (state whether or not there are any bonds, or other collateral securing the construction of each proposed recreational facility and
describe any such bond, or other collateral)

N/A

38. FIRE PROTECTION
(distance ta nearest fire station from subdivision); (route over which that distance is computed); (state whether the fire department is full-time
or volunteer); (state source and quantity of water available for fire suppression in the subdivision)

Cubero Fire Department (~5.2 miles). Accessed via Water Canyon Rd to Cubero Loop to NM 124,
The source of the water is the Cibola County water system.

39.  POLICE PROTECTION

(list the various police units that have jurisdiction and will patrol the subdivision)

Cibola County Sheriff

40. PUBLIC SCHOOLS

(name of and distance to nearest public elementary school serving the subdivision); (name of and distance to nearest public junior high or
middle school serving the subdivision); (name of and distance to nearest public high school serving the subdivision)

N/A

41. HOSPITALS

(name of nearest hospital); (distance to nearest hospital and route over which that distance is computed); (number of beds in nearest hospital)

Cibola General Hospital (~16.8 miles) via Interstate 40.

42. SHOPPING FACILITIES

(description of nearest shopping facilities including number of stores); (distance to nearest shopping fucilities and route over which that
distance is computed)

N/A

43. PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION
(deseribe all Wmnspomﬁon that serves the subdivision on a regular basis)

N/A

7 7
/ /.

SIGNED |/ ,//

£ / 2o ¥
4 | p
This Disclosure Statement was EUBSCREED AND SWORN to before me on this day

of , 2024

El;tary Public
My Commission Expires: / ’3 (F J/ s

\MI\I\MN\’\NMWMAM
M. SEEMAN
DNEE:‘?E\AN‘C-M"“W"
Expives

Jan 31, 2025

76




(describe all recreation facilities, actwal and proposed in the subdivision); (state the estimated date of completion of each proposed recreational
Facility); (state whether or not there arc any bonds, or other collatera} securing the coustruction of each proposed recreational facility and
describe any such bond, or other collateral)

N/A

38. FIRE PROTECTION
(distance to nearest fire station from subdivision); (route over which that distance is computed); (state whether the fire depariment is full-time
or volunteer); (state source and quantity of water available for fire suppression in the subdivision)

Cubero Fire Department (~5.2 miles). Accessed via Water Canyon Rd to Cubero Loop to NM 124,
The source of the water is the Cibola County water system.

39.  POLICE PROTECTION

(list the various police units that have jurisdiction and will patrol the subdivision)

Cibola County Sheriff

40. PUBLIC SCHOOLS

(name of and distance to nearest public elementary school serving the subdivision); (name of and distance to nearest public junior high or
middle school serving the subdivision); (name of and distance to nearest public high school serving the subdivision)

N/A

41. HOSPITALS

{name of nearest hospital); (distance 10 nearest hospital and route over which that distance is computed); (number of beds in nearest hospital)

Cibola General Hospital (~16.8 miles) via Interstate 40.

42.  SHOPPING FACILITIES

{description of nearest shopping facilities including number of stores); (distance to nearest shopping facilities and route over which that
distance is computed)

N/A

43. PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION

(describe all public transportation that serves the subdivision on a regular basis)

N/A

SIGNED/YV\O\/&*&(%(\&\MQM’\L% DATED. = /i / 3094

. J
This Dis;ﬁsure Statement was SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me on this /
of , 209_0./

Notary Public

My Commission Expires: [ 52 g5

day

4% DENISE M. SEEMAN

Notary Public-Minnesota
76




DocuSign Envelope ID: 01E18F28-1E89-456C-A007-8DDE1CCC1C3B

CIBOLA COUNTY SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS APPLICATION FOR SUMMARY
REVIEW PLAT APPROVAL

INSTRUCTIONS

Print or type clearly. Use additional sheets if necessary. All required attachments shall be submitted with
this application form. Incomplete or inaccurate applications may delay decision dates. The completed
application package must be submitted to the appropriate County staff person, by the subdivider or a
designated agent and shall be in compliance with the requirements of the Cibola County Subdivision
Regulations. Each application must be accompanied by the required administrative fee.

APPLICANT INFORMATION

1. Subdivider Name, Address and Phone Number

Boulevard Associates, LLC (700 Universe Blvd., Juno Beach, FL 33408) as Agent for D. Patrick McCullough (905 Parkway Dr.,
St. Paul, MN 55117)

Signature M%{Ar\ o Date ff«[jl‘—gz(//

Engineer/Surveyor Name, Add1 ess and Phone Number

o

Jennifer Ward-NuFZ—(B&.SMde Ste. 2000, Midland, TX 79705. P: 432-699-9040)

L wuifur (NWA»MLSA) April 17, 2024
Signature\__ 1573585852245

Date

SUBDIVISION INFORMATION

3. Location of Subdivision (attach map if necessary) Please see attached piat.

4. This is a Type Three Five X Subdivision (check one), requiring type Private  roads.
5. Number of lots: 1 ; Total acreage: 17.66 acres; Size of smallest lot: 17.66 acres

6. Municipal planning and platting jurisdiction (if applicable): N/A

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

7. If it is determined by the County to be necessary, attach an improvement agreement to ensure
completion of required improvements.

8. All affidavits, certificates, permits and statements required for summary review plats as defined by
the Cibola County Subdivision Regulations shall be attached to this application.

9. The original drawing and required number of copies of the summary review plat map shall be
attached to this application.

8. The final disclosure statement shall be attached to this application.

9. The County Assessor’s Account number(s) for the parcel or parcels. Parcel No: R10711;
Alt Parcel No.: 2042059132264



12. Parcel tracking sheet setting out property taxes paid in advance

I certify that the information provided by me in this Application for Summary Plat Approval is true
and correct and that all documents attached to or enclosed with this Application are originals or

true, complete and correct copies of the originals. E/ %—7

“Signatifre

This Application for Summary Plat Approval was SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me on
0 WNoo , 2004
\sm NN OGN

Notary Public

My Commission Expires: STATE OF NEW MEXICO
NOTARY PUBLIC
(. - 2 e 2K~ TAMMY L. MORGAN
f A}%\ffM SSION # 1128974

************w******************************awm*iﬁ\&w&%!w@jiw_i*

PROCEDURAL INFORMATION (to be completed by County Staff)

1. Date of pre-application conference
Signed

12. Date application ree/ved by Cour (feepaid? )
Signed / o /// 77/ é%/

13. Date summary review pé/ deemed complete:
Signed

14. Date of public meeting before the Subdivision Review Committee :

15. Date summary review plat filed with County Clerk:




Parcel tracking sheet setting out property taxes paid in advance

I certify that the information provided by me in this Application for Summary Plat Approval is true
and correct and that all documents attached to or enclosed with this Application are originals or

true, complete and correct copies of the originals.

==y
_Sigusture

This Application for Summary Plat Approval was SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me on

(D May, ;200 4.

)

;\'\\C A )\C"\g‘k\/ ’\\

Notary Public
My Commission Expires:
§§§"§}{\T% QFR%E&}}%ALE“})(SCO '
I ARy A NOTA -
(e~ 20 -JOSH TAMMY L MORGAN -
COMMISSION ’3128974
***********’k*?k************************************3{%*»& gk\i‘b w***‘k**ﬁ &
PROCEDURAL INFORMATION (to be completed by County Staff)
11. Date of pre-application conference
Signed
12. Date application received by County: m (fee paid? )
st Aot ATl lndy
13. Date summary review plat deemed complete:
Signed
14, Date of public meeting before the Subdivision Review Committee :
15. Date summary review plat filed with County Clerk:




BacuSign Envelope 1D: FD2ZEA1F5-B1F5-42E9-B70C-815E0FAFB772

M

MODRALL SPERLING

LAWY EBRS

January 26, 2024

Re. Appointment of Agent on Behalf of Mr, Patrick McCullough
To Whom it May Concern:

This letter sets forth my authorization for Boulevard Associates, LL.C, its agents
and representatives, and the Modrall Sperling Law Firm, through Bayard Roberts
(collectively “Agents”), to act as agents for me and on my behalf for the purpose of

_ applying for and seeking a subdivision of my land pursuant to the Cibola County
Subdivisions Regulations, I consent to and authorize the Agents to sign and file
permits, applications, and other necessary material, as well as meet with any County
officials and appear at any necessary public hearings on my behalf. I further authorize
any third parties to disclose to the Agents any information relevant to the land use
permits, approvals, decisions, etc. and to provide r'elevan/t documents, when issued,

directly to Agents.
A Bocusigned by:
PAT MLLUULBUEH
By: . oo BSFBOIOATIIONAEA
Name: - D, Patrick McCullough

January 26, 2024
Date:




BosuSign Envelope ID: D594DG71.‘-1 807-4F40-9309-E2BAA3F13D60

MODRALL SPERLING

LAWYERS

February ° 2024

Re. Appomtment of Agent on Behalf of Mrs. Marlys McCullough
To Whom it May Concem

This letter sets forth my authorization for Boulevard Associates, LLC, its agents -
and representatives, and the Modrall Sperling Law Firm, through Bayard Roberts
(collectively “Agents™), to act as agents for me and on my behalf for the purpose of
applying for and seeking a subdivision of my land pursuant to the Cibola County
Subdivisions Regulations. I consent to and authorize the Agents to sign and file
permits, applications, and other necessary material, as well as meet with any County

- officials and appear at any necessary public hearings on my behalf. I further authorize
any third parties to disclose to the Agents any information relevant to the land use
permits, approvals, decisions, etc. and to provide relevant documents, when issued,

directly to Agents.
Wi‘),’ocuSIgmd by:
v
By: __EQLQ&EE&E4
Name: .~ Marlys McCullough

February 8, 2024
Date:




LOCATION MAP

ol

TLADE OF £

AFFIDAVIT, FREE WILL, CONSENT, AND DEDICATION STATEMENT:

N:1495199.87
£2730038.93

7 EAT035. 10388050
LoN:#107.60950252.

SHEET 0t
OF

SITE,

e E 49315

E g
S o
/ e i
: / SO%s
¢ : =i
g Dlrziz3
TERSTATE HICHWAY G0 SNA—nWIva%m
8 NEEB,_,.N_._.I._C
A ([Ggosst
e e 0, Tt
= 0zFg
Qb0g#ze
|ook5E B
o} @ <
589°36'18°w 1806.67" {TE) SR N m
/ =
i /% =
_ /3
__ /]
| b \« 5

ra

H _ CIOiA ©

NEXTe
ENER

5
2 Wl 12 | el
1R E
S|
22 1 mmm EM
pp— ol
e kLR 2
P 8k
Lnwi07 61187575 u e
gl o
o g 22
M |
£ K3
2 T
8 £g..3 ¢
w il g
g 255t 55 8
3 H 8 &
WL i dl g
H

vm.u_mwm\ xTxﬂasnmN Thaved

POR FOUND 1/2~1
SOFOFOUE #9318

LEGEND AND ABBREVIATIONS: Pag Tema Gustamonte 5/2/24
© Fr—— NeS Migeogas
o noane o | rmpar :
A CALCULATED CORNER

CERTIFICATION: /

= . waTERLE
g - easement
2 - oVERHEAD ELECTRIC
g N secTioNUNE
BOUNDARY
e e -~ ROUTESGSOUARARRAY
OFFICE OF THE COUNTY CLERK - CIBOLA COUNTY, NM
50 190 200
W Feen)
T o = 100 FEET




10b. New Business

Resolution 24-30

Cibola County Health Council as Official Health
Council Per County and Tribal Health Councils
Act




WEW W MG . LAANEE L 2]

CIBOLA COUNTY RESOLUTION #2024-30

A RESOLUTION RECOGNIZING THE CIBOLA COUNTY HEALTH COUNCIL AS THE
OFFICIAL HEALH COUNCIL FOR THE PURPOSES OUTLINED IN THE COUNTY AND
TRIBAL HEALH COUNCILS ACT.

WHEREAS, in 2019, the New Mexico Legislature repealed the Maternal and Child Health
Plan Actand enacted the County and Tribal Health Councils Act, §24-1J-1 through 24-1J-6 NMSA
1978, as amended; and

WHEREAS, the purpose of County and Tribal Health Councils are to improve the health of
New Mexicans by encouraging the development of comprehensive, community-based health planning
councils to identify and address local health needs and priorities; and

WHEREAS, the Act requires the Board of County Commissioners of a county or leadership
of atribe to recognize only a single health council for its jurisdiction; and

WHEREAS, a board shall recognize only a county or tribal health council whose members
represent a diverse spectrum of community interests, including individuals and public, private, and
nonprofit entities, and

WHEREAS, the health council shall be responsible for conducting all activities as
required by the Act, and its amendments, and

WHEREAS, the NM Department of Health shall ensure long-term viability of health
councils, provide training and other support, administer funding, and adopt and promulgate rules as
necessary to carry out the purposes of the Act to health councils, and

WHEREAS, the Cibola County Health Council has operated since the early 1990’s in Cibola
County under the Maternal and Child Health Plan Act and has continued under the County and Tribal
Health Councils Act,

WHEREAS, to avoid duplicative health assessment and planning efforts, the health council and
other community agencies will partner to conduct health assessment and planning efforts; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CIBOLA COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS, that the Cibola County Community Health Council is recognized as the health
council for the jurisdiction of Cibola County for the purpose of fulfilling requirements of the County
and Tribal Health Councils Act.

Page 1 of 2



Resolution #2024-30 Passed, approved, and adopted this 23 day of May 2024

CIBOLA COUNTY COMMISSION

COUNTY/JURISDICAITON, NEW MEXICO

Christine Lowery, Chair

Ralph Lucero, 1% Vice-Chair

Daniel J. Torrez, 2™ Vice-Chair

Martha Garcia, Member

Robert Windhorst, Member .

[SEAL)

Michelle E. Dominguez, Cibola Counfy Clerk

. Page 2 of 2



eonopo. /] KR Cibola County Data
B ORI "31:"_,‘»7",{ .| NMHuman Services 2022 Data
S e B,.;,‘ LS5 Poverty Rate: NM 18.6 Cibola County 25.5 4t highest in NM.
4 e e L "™ Per Capita Income: NM $46,333  Cibola $32,755 the lowest of all 33 Counties
C o i o, pwew 1| Children Raised by Grandparents 20200 NM 10%  Cibola 19.5 % (Highest in NM)
/ .V"US:}INLQV:‘_ ‘\B‘?TVA‘) | .ijlylw\ {
} B ¢/ Mt{ i NSAN MiGUEDs | tpdh o
E > PR SRR et NM DOH State of Mental Health 2022
B1E SRS e sk .. | Thought about Attempting Suicide Age 18+: NM 6.9% Cibola 8.4%(Med-High Range)
e =L Depressive Disorders Age 18+:  NM 17.4% Cibola 20.8% (High Range)
e mf?'m 'WW“\:é”fa:: NM has the 4t Highest Rates of Suicide of all US states
GRANT ‘mn - Aamogorda . A iy . . .
it Wl Gl e SUTE (i NM Substance Use Epidemiology Profile Aug 2022
ity | e ‘:; LEEEE e Amphetamine Overdose based on ED visits NM rate 10 Cibola 44.9 per 100,000 (Highest)
B o jose e - Alcohol Related Chronic Disease Deaths per 100,000 NM 39.8  Cibola 62.7
ol { rexas Youth Currant Marijuana Use 9t to 12 grade NM 27.7% Cibola 42%
’I‘ n$f xitco ':‘fr:ls"“‘mmlmmmu
Lesp om0 —

Additional Cross Systems Collaborators

Strategies to Address Behavioral Health

* Increase Access by:

Marketing resources available, Encourage well-checkups, Assist with Medicare/Medicaid Applications, Research Funding and
Resources to start up School-Based Health Centers, Increase Telehealth, Research Transportation Options & Improvements,

« Raise Awareness and Reduce Stigma by:

Public Awareness Campaign, Social Marketing & Media Messages, Host Community Events, Conduct Trainings for Community
Service Providers.

* Increase Community Engagement & Coordinated Networks Working
Together by:

Building a Strong & Diverse Behavioral Health Taskforce, Engage Representatives Across Sectors, Use Community Data to
Identify Needs, Conduct Focus Groups & Forums, Establish Goals, Priorities & a Plan of Action.



7
S
2024 CIBOLA COUNTY

HEALTH COUNCIL

VISION: PRIORITIES

Working together for a safer, healthler, and Behavioral Health ........Substance Misuse

more equitable Cibola County. Education

| MISSION:

To strengthen a network of community partnerships working to
promote, advocate and improve the health and well-being of all
| residents in Cibola County.

OBJECTIVES

* Planning- Recognized as a
community health planning and
information hub.

+ Develop a Diverse and Growing
Membership.

¢ Conduct Health Assessments to
Identify Strengths, Needs, and

Resources.
* Monitoring Progress Toward Successes
Achieving Outcomes.
+ Reviewed Community Data
hd i . .
Respond fo Emerging Issues. + Develop and Implement Community
* Take Action for Community Health Improvement Plan
p . . .
Improvements » Strengthen Community Partnerships
« Advocate for needed Policy + Leveraged over $3 million dollars since
Change, 2001

« |ldentify and Secure Resources.




Resolution 24-31

FY25 Interim Budget




Cibola County Commission Cib ola COllIlty

Christine Lowery, Chair 700 E. Roosevelt Ave., Suite 50

Ralph Lucero, 1st Vice-Chair Grants, New Mexico 87020

Daniel J. Torrez, 2nd Vice-Chair Phone (505) 287-9431 — Fax (505) 285-5434 A
Martha Garcia, Commissioner -
Robert Windhorst, Commissioner Kate Fletcher

County Manager

Resolution No. 2024-31
2024-2025 INTERIM OPERATING BUDGET RESOLUTION
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2025

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners for the County of Cibola of the State of New Mexico, has
developed an interim operating budget for fiscal year 2024-2025; and

WHEREAS, the interim operating budget was developed on the basis of need and through
cooperation with all Elected Officials and Department Managers, and;

WHEREAS, it is the opinion of the Board of Commissioners that the proposed interim operating
budget meets the requirements as currently determined for fiscal year 2024-2025.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS of the
COUNTY OF CIBOLA, STATE OF NEW MEXICO, ex officio COUNTY BOARD OF FINANCE,
hereby adopts and approves the interim operating budget hereinafter described as
Attachment "2024-31A" and respectfully requests approval from the Local Government Division
of the Department of Finance and Administration of the State of New Mexico.

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED by the governing body at a regular meeting on the 23rd day

of May 2024.
THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS:
Dr. Christine Lowery, Chairman
Ralph Lucero, 15t Vice-Chair
ATTEST:
Daniel J. Torrez, 2™ Vice-Chair
Michelle E Dominguez, County Clerk Martha Garcia, Commissioner

Robert Windhorst, Commissioner



Cibola County FY2024-2025 Interim Budget

Projected Beginning Cash

Ending Cash &

f’ffkf») LEMR  Active Funds Beginning Investments Revenues Transfers Expenditures
o/ Balance Investments
101 - INVESTMENT FUND $0.00 $5,700,000.00 $250,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,950,000.00
401 - GENERAL FUND $4,700,000.00 $0.00 $11,056,105.46 ($1,165,846.00) ($10,089,527.53) $4,500,731.93
402 - ROAD $1,000,000.00 $0.00 $1,343,675.00 $443,186.00 ($2,786,861.00) $0.00
403 - FARM & RANGE $0.00 $0.00 $9,500.00 $19,500.00 ($29,000.00) $0.00
406 - INDIGENT $550,000.00 $0.00 $605,005.00 $0.00 ($1,155,005.00) $0.00
407 - SAN RAFAEL VFD $200,000.00 $0.00 $223,452.00 ($111,726.00) ($156,082.00) $155,644.00
408 - BLUEWATER VFD $120,000.00 $0.00 $111,726.00 ($25,720.00) ($106,937.00) $99,069.00
409 - LOBO CANYON VFD $280,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $111,726.00 ($234,540.00) $157,186.00
413 - LAGUNA EMS $5,675.00 $0.00 $11,147.00 $0.00 ($16,822.00) $0.00
415 - PINEHILL EMS $10,585.22 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($10,467.30) $117.92
416 - FENCE LAKE VFD $570,000.00 $0.00 $67,393.00 $0.00 ($603,355.00) $34,038.00
418 - CANDY KITCHEN VFD $350,000.00 $0.00 $136,552.00 ($38,209.00) ($443,877.00) $4,466.00
419 - LAGUNA VFD $1,016,500.00 $0.00 $404,340.00 $0.00 ($1,023,340.00) $397,500.00
416 - FENCE LAKE EMS $0.00 $0.00 $14,200.00 $0.00 ($14,200.00) $0.00
424 - CUBERO VFD $470,000.00 $0.00 $101,085.00 ($13,798.00) ($350,739.00) $206,548.00
425 - CUBERO EMS $6,500.00 $0.00 $8,511.00 $0.00 ($8,511.00) $6,500.00
427 - EL MORRO VFD $500,000.00 $0.00 $67,393.00 ($4,229.00) ($444,416.00) $118,748.00
428 - SUPERIOR AMBULANCE $7.55 $0.00 $51,856.45 $0.00 ($51,864.00) $0.00
429-CIBOLA ADMIN EMS $1.90 $0.00 $33,478.00 $0.00 ($33,479.90) $0.00
430 - LAGUNA VFD - VALENCIA STATION $81,565.00 $0.00 $105,553.00 $0.00 ($105,550.00) $81,568.00
435 - CONSOLIDATED DISPATCH $90,000.00 $0.00 $1,151,171.00 $365,854.00 ($1,607,025.00) $0.00
438 - DWI GRANT $69,000.00 $0.00 $118,928.00 $0.00 ($118,928.00) $69,000.00
439 - DWI DISTRIBUTION $200,000.00 $0.00 $324,735.00 $0.00 ($324,735.00) $200,000.00
475 - COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION $1,600,000.00 $0.00 $263,730.00 $0.00 ($579,347.00) $1,284,383.00
500 - CLERK RECORDING/FILING $100,000.00 $0.00 $30,000.00 $0.00 ($79,100.00) $50,900.00
569 - 2014A BOND INCOME FUND $0.00 $0.00 $1,213,058.00 ($642,187.00) ($570,871.00) $0.00
570 - 2014B BOND INCOME FUND $0.00 $0.00 $1,907,380.00 ($1,140,054.00) ($767,326.00) $0.00
575 - NMFA LOANS $0.00 $360,000.00 $20,000.00 $322,048.00 ($322,048.00) $380,000.00
604 - FIRE MARSHAL $84,300.00 $0.00 $106,585.00 ($13,286.00) ($159,077.00) $18,522.00
605 - LAW ENFORCEMENT PROTECTION $0.00 $0.00 $125,000.00 ($20,000.00) ($105,000.00) $0.00
606 - NMDOT LOCAL GOV. TRANS. GRANT $119,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $30,200.00 ($149,200.00) $0.00
607 - QUARTZ HILL PROJECT $145,500.00 $0.00 $420,478.35 ($120,500.00) ($445,478.35) $0.00
614 - DETENTION CENTER $0.00 $0.00 $3,469,805.00 $1,825,771.00 ($5,295,576.00) $0.00
620 - 1% REAPPRAISAL FUND $63,000.00 $0.00 $62,000.00 $0.00 ($57,277.00) $67,723.00
646 - LG ABATEMENT $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
647 - LATCF GRANT $5,411,336.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($5,411,336.00) $0.00
648 - TPF COUNTY ROAD GRANTS FUND $2,562,811.00 $0.00 $1,900,000.00 $177,270.00 ($4,640,081.00) $0.00
649 - AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT $1,124,758.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($1,087,928.00) $36,830.00
651 - CAPITAL OUTLAY PROJECTS $0.00 $0.00 $670,000.00 $0.00 ($670,000.00) $0.00
TOTALS= $21,430,539.67 $6,060,000.00 $26,383,842.26 $0.00 ($40,054,907.08) $13,819,474.85

ATTEST:

Clerk

Date




10d. New Business

Resolution 24-32

FY24 Budget Adjustment #7




Cibola County

Cibola County Commission 700 E. Roosevelt Ave., Suite 50
Christine Lowery, Chair Grants, New Mexico 87020
Ralph Lucero, 1% Vice-Chair Phone (505) 287-9431 — Fax (505) 285-5434 AN
Daniel J. Torrez, 2" Vice-Chair T .
Martha Garcia, Commissioner Kate Fletcher
Robert Windhorst, Commissioner County Manager

Resolution No. 2024-32 BAR #7

Fiscal Year 2024

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of the County of Cibola is the duly
constituted governing body of the County and serves ex officio as the County
Board of Finance with authority for establishing, monitoring, and adjusting the
County’s budget; and

WHEREAS, budgetadjustments are required to establish correct beginning cash balances;
allow for new transfers; to allow for budget increases and decreases to
revenues and expenditures to offset any unanticipated revenues and/or
expenditures; and to correct amounts when required; and

WHEREAS, the budget adjustments and the associated line items with amounts stated on
the attached, Schedule of Budget Adjustments 2024-32A is essential.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
of the COUNTY OF CIBOLA, STATE OF NEW MEXICO, ex officio COUNTY BOARD OF
FINANCE that the adjustments included in this document are deemed necessary to the
operations of the County for the 2024 fiscal year ending June 30, 2024.

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED by the governing body at a regular meeting on the
23rd day of May, 2024.

THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS:

Dr. Christine Lowery, Chair

Ralph Lucero, 15t Vice-Chair

ATTEST:

Daniel J. Torrez, 21d Vice-Chair

Michelle E Dominguez, County Clerk Martha Garcia, Commissioner

Robert Windhorst, Commissioner



Department of Finance and Administration

Local Government Division
Budget Finance Bureau

SCHEDULE OF BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS

ENTITY NAME: Cibola County
FISCAL YEAR: FY 2023-24 Page 1 of 1
RESOLUTION #: 2024-32
BAR SCHEDULE: 2024-32A
REVENUE
TY;EROF COUNTY EXPENDITURE CIBOLA COUNTY DESCRIPTION APPROVED ADJUSTMENT ADJUSTED
LOCAL (L)
OR STATE DEPARTMENT |TRANSFER (TO or FROM) ACCOUNT# OF ACCOUNT BUDGET BUDGET PURPOSE
(S)
S GF Revenue 101-23-360-18000 Income on Investments $250,000.00 $25,000.00 $275,000.00 Increase revenues to actuals
S Bluewater Revenue 408-30-300-56000 Bluewater $105,900.00 $5,850.00 $111,750.00 Increase revenues to actuals
S 1% Reappraisal Revenue 620-40-300-57600 Fee Collections $45,000.00 $30,000.00 $75,000.00 Increase revenues to actuals
S Detention Revenue 614-85-380-30100 Care of Prisoners--Municipality $150,000.00 $120,000.00 $270,000.00 Increase revenues to actuals
S Cubero VFD 424-020-499-09604 From 604 to 424 $0.00 $18,810.00 $18,810.00 Cubero grant posted in 604 inadvertently
S Fire Marshal 604-018-499-90424 From 604 to 424 $0.00 $18,810.00 $18,810.00 Cubero grant posted in 604 inadvertently

ATTEST:

County Clerk

218,470.00

Board Chairman

Date




10e. New Business

"Resolution 24-33

FY 2026-2030 ICIP




NOISSINENS
ANV S3ANITAV3IA 0€0¢-9¢0¢ dV3A 1VISI4

¢0d 10310dd didI NV ATNOHS 1VHM

¢LNVLHOdIAI d1D1 3HL SI AHM
¢didI NV SI IVHM

dlO]




B L T




(@917) "Ld3A LNIINNYIAOD VD01 OL ATIVNNNY
d3L1INGNS ANV A31vadn ‘d3d013AId

(0€0T ‘0€ INNI-STOT ‘T AINT)
0€02-920C A4 AOIY3d T¥ISI4 YVIA-S V SHIAOD

S10370¥d TVLIdVI d31VdIDILNY 404
SIILIYOIdd OSNINNVY1d SIHSITaV1SI 1IVHL NV1d V

7SI dIDI NV




G ASE - UDIKEW MEM

304N0S SNIANN4

NOILLVYII1ddV ONIANN

1SIT HSIM

10N SI dIDI NV




S3ILINNLYOddO
ONIANNA
SASVIYUONI «»

S31LIHOIYd
SIHSINAVLST

¢LNVLIHOdINI
didl
NV SI AHM

sees ik o

oriEm MmEN




s109(oud paau |B213142 UO SNJ04

s103loud
Ayliolid saius unoA aseamoys 031|003 e si D] 9yl

HVv1S3




S12370dd SNILLIA
NIHM NOILVOIDIdNd dID1 FIHL
S3SN 321440 S, HONYIAOD IHL =

SAVA\ ANVIAL NI dIDI
FHL 3Z171LN SFIDONIDV ONIANNS =

d39VHNOIN3T ATONOYLS
SIdIDI IHL NI NOILVdIDILYVd =

SIILINNLYOddO ONIANNS ISYIYONI




A INOHS
17410dd dIJI NV

17410dd dIOl

NV d1NOHS
IVHM




d33004d OL AdV3Y 39

S SYV3A 0T 1SV31

1V 40 ADNVLI3dX3 3417V IAVH
-

-
:1S3SSV

A3XId ONILISIX3 NV 3DNVHNA

-

-

40 13SSV @3xI4 MIN V 31v3IHD

-

ATNOHS 1203r0dd dIdI NV



4 3ZITYNOID3Y
7, 2 7u
KN

S324NO0S
ONIANN4 AdILN3AI

000°0TS ¥3IAO 1SOD

11VINILS3 dOOD V JAVH

..... OS1V d1TNOHS
19370dd dIJI NV

&




ALITIOV4 HOVH 404 SA33dN

F4NLONYLSVHANI 40 LNIINSSISSY T1N4 V NIVO OL LdINFLIV NV J1VIS

JHL ‘OS ALILNI LNIINYIAOD 1vO01 HITHL INOY4 A13LVHVdHIS dIDI NV
LI9INNS ATNOHS S3LITIOVA N3ZILID YOINIS T1V-S3LIMIOV4 NIZILID YOIN3S =

dV3IA HOV3 dIDI NV LIWENS SAILIVAIDINNIA
00T 43N0 ANV S3LINNOD €€ TIV-SAILITVAIDINNIN ANV SIILNNQOD =

S3914.L ANV ‘SNOILVYN ‘SO193Nd-SLNINNYIAOD Tvdldl =

S1OMY1SId 3414 ANV “TOYLNOD
dOOT4 ALILITLN ‘SLNVYD ANV ‘SYINDIDIV ‘SNOILVIDOSSY YINNSNOD
d31VM DILSINOA TVNLNIA :3ANTINI HOIHM-SLO141SId TVID3dS =

dI21 IHL NI 3LVdIDILYVd ATNOHS OHM




¥c0c¢

v20z ¢T XINr
><Q_~_u_ SAILIVAIDINNW ANV S3ILNNOD

¥c0c
TT KINM AVAIY4-SININNYINOD TvaIYL

¥20Z ‘YT ANNT ‘AVAIY4-S101¥1SId 1VID3dS

20T ‘ST
AYIN 'AVASINGIM-SILITIOVA NIZILID YOIN3IS

-dI91 0€02-9¢0¢ Ad
SIHL 404
SANIMAVIA MAN




€ 620¢ |led opuopay of0-S|ied| UIIUNOA lUNZ
G 6202 syuswanoidw| AemAg Aiuno) yoeg - i ¥

.

T 620t J93Ua) BuISnoH |euol}isue. |

: 8202 SjuBWaA0IdW| PEOY SUNYT - b7 ¥D 7, [/N] 4./&&

¢ 820¢ |led] J91eman|g-12a[0ud S|ied] UIeluUNO|A IUnz

5 820¢ J91U3) ASNQY 32UrISGNS

. Aade 1uswdolaAa( dded |elisnpul uejiiAl

(4 L20T peoy easoAl e 01 syuswanoidw|

1 L20¢ dinb3 pue sa)a1ysA Japuodsay IST 18 Hl3YS )
¢ 9¢0¢ sjuswanoldw| peoy JayiQ pue ageurelg-v€ ¥ / b
1 9¢0¢ |I!H Z34enD-S|ieJd| UleluNoA lunz o
8 S20T dinb3 scueuajuiey peoy AreaH -

L Se0t Jojesausn Aduagiswg j|eIsul pue aseyaind &

4 e A1ajeS 211qNnd 40} WI1SAS olpey |endig - P
S S¢0cC S)jue| [an4 punois snoqy / < : 3

14 rdord Ayijioe4 Bujuies| asodingd 13NN A1ayes aijgnd

€ SE0C sjuswanoidw| peoy pue a8plg peoy zanbueA-T-4D

4 sz0z 3IMdNJISEIHU| pUBGPROIG e

il §¢0¢

sjuswanoldw| peoy 1 98plig ,peoy ouinboA, - S 4D 4 ‘
Jjuey Jes) 109(oud 9111 193l04d SN A S S

620¢-SC0C-4V3IA 1SV SIILIYOIdd ALNNOD V10491D




BEEL X8R . ODINEM MAw

£S9C-58¢-505-2U0Yyd

SN"WU e|0qId 00 @3 2Jel0yApnl -jiew3

8]
SNOILSIND ANV

yo3eldoH Apnr




Cibola County

Cibola County Commission 700 E. Roosevelt Ave., Suite 50
Daniel J. Torrez, Chairman Grants, New Mexico 87020
Martha Garcia, 1°* Vice-Chair Phone (505) 287-9431 — Fax (505) 285-5434 ]
Christine Lowery, 2" Vice-Chair NAWHRRshe - av. ioet
Ralph Lucero, Commissioner . Kate Fletcher
Robert Windhorst, Commissioner County Manager

Resolution 24-33
A RESOLUTION
ADOPTING AN INFRASTRUCTURE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN (ICIP)
Whereas, the County of Cibola recognizes that the financing of public capital projects has become a
major concern in New Mexico and nationally; and

Whereas, in times of scarce resources, it is necessary to find new financing mechanisms and maximize
the use of existing resources; and '

Whereas, systematic capital improvements planning is an effective tool for communities to define their
development needs, establish priorities and pursue concrete actions and strategies to achieve necessary
project development; and

Whereas, this process contributes to local and regional efforts in project identification and selection in
short and long-range capital planning efforts

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of County Commissioners of Cibola County,

New Mexico that:
1. Cibola County has adopted the attached FY 2026-2030 Infrastructure Capital Improvements Plan,
and

2. Itis intended that the Plan be a working document and is the first of many steps toward
improving rational, long-range capital planning and budgeting for New Mexico’s infrastructure.

3. This Resolution supersedes Resolution 23-32.

THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS:

Dr. Christina Lowery, Chairman

Ralph Lucero, 1% Vice-Chair

ATTEST:

Daniel Torrez, 2™ Vice-Chair

Michelle E Dominguez, County Clerk Martha Garcia, Commissioner

Robert Windhorst, Commissioner



NEW MEXICO DEPARTMENT OF

FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION

ICIP - Projects List

| Print Summary | [ Insert New Project |

Page 1 of 1

g::’i;y Agency/Local Government Project Title ;P';gect Rank Project 1D
23000 Cibola County CR-8 Drainage, & Road Improv, 2026 001 42410
33000  Cibola County Digital Radio System for Public Safety 2026 D02 35095
23000 Cibola County Sheriff & 1st Responder Vehicles and Equip 2026 003 17352
23000 Cibola County CR 34 - Drainage and Other Road Imp 2026 004 38679
39000 Cibola County Tt X AT Sl & Ros 2026 . 0os 17333
#2000 Cibola County Purchasa and Install Emergency Generator 2026 006 42228
33000  Cibola County gff;;v:’rgg,‘:g" Road’ Bridge & Road 2026 007 38680
43000 Cibola County Above Ground Fuel Tanks 2027 001 40018
23000 Cibola County Public Safety Multi Purpose Training Fac, 2027 002 41162
23000  Cibola County Transitional Housing Center 2027 003 19759
33000 Cibola County Subtance Abuse Center 2027 004 28060
23000 Cibola County Women's Shelter Facility 2027 005 42411
23000 Cibola County Street Lighting within Unincorp. Areas 2027 006 32929
33000 Cibols County CR 24 - Elkins Road Improvements 2028 001 38683
33000 Cibola County Health Trail \ 2028 002 42412
23000 Cibola County Broadband Infrastructure 2028 003 9567
23000 Cibola County Improvements to La Mosca Road 2028 004 35821
5000  Cibela County Zupi Mountain Trails-Quartz Hill 2029 001 33478
23000  Cibola County Heavy Road Maintenance Equip 2029 002 12895
23000 Cibola County CR 42 - Back Country Byway Improvements 2030 001 29931
33000 Cibola County Zuni Mountain Trails Project Bluewater Trail 2030 002 38669
23000  Cibola County Zuni Mountain Trails-Ojo Redondo Trail 2030 003 38663



Resolution 24-34

Auth Exec. of NMFA Loan




$210,600
CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO
EL MORRO VALLEY VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT
NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY LOAN

STATE OF NEW MEXICO )
)ss. DELIVERY, DEPOSIT AND
CIBOLA COUNTY ) CROSS-RECEIPT CERTIFICATE

IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED by the undersigned, the duly chosen, qualified and acting
Chairman, County Manager, and Finance Director of the Cibola County, New Mexico
(the “Governmental Unit”):

1. On the date of this Certificate, the Governmental Unit executed and delivered, or
caused to be executed and delivered, a Loan Agreement between the Governmental Unit and the
New Mexico Finance Authority (the “Finance Authority”), in the aggregate principal amount of
$210,600, to the Finance Authority (the “Loan Agreement”), as authorized by Governmental Unit
Resolution No. 2024-34 (the “Resolution”) adopted on May 23, 2024 relating to the execution
and delivery of the Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement. The undersigned have received
$210,600 as proceeds from the Loan Agreement, being the full purchase price therefore.

2. The proceeds of the Loan Agreement will be placed in the funds and accounts
created for the deposit of such moneys under the General Indenture of Trust and Pledge dated as
of June 1, 1995, as amended and supplemented, or the Subordinated General Indenture of Trust
and Pledge dated as of March 1, 2005, as supplemented, each by and between the Finance
Authority and BOKF, NA, as Trustee and its successors and assigns, as determined by the Finance
Authority pursuant to a Pledge Notification or Supplemental Indenture, as follows:

Governmental Unit’s

Account in the Program Fund: $210,600.00
Total: $210,600.00
3. The proceeds of the Loan Agreement will be available to the Governmental Unit

upon submittal of a Requisition Form to the Finance Authority in the form attached to the Loan
Agreement as Exhibit “C” and will be used as set forth in the Resolution and the Loan Agreement.

Delivery, Deposit and Cross-Receipt Certificate
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-6218



WITNESS our hands this July 5, 2024.

[SEAL]

6976645

Delivery, Deposit and Cross-Receipt Certificate
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-6218

CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO

By

Christine Lowery, Chairman of
the Board of County Commissioners

By

Kate Fletcher, County Manager

By.

Paul Ludi, Finance Director



It is hereby certified by the undersigned, a duly qualified and acting official of the New
Mexico Finance Authority, that, the undersigned has, on the date of this Certificate, received from
the Cibola County, New Mexico the Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement.

NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY

By:

Marquita D. Russel, Chief Executive Officer

6976645

Delivery, Deposit and Cross-Receipt Certificate
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-6218



$210,600
CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO
EL MORRO VALLEY VOLUNTEER DEPARTMENT
NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY LOAN

STATE OF NEW MEXICO )
CIBOLA COUNTY . )ss. GENERAL AND NO LITIGATION
) CERTIFICATE

IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED by the undersigned, the duly elected and chosen, Chairman,
County Manager, and Finance Director and Attorney for Cibola County, New Mexico (the
“Governmental Unit”) in Cibola County, and the State of New Mexico (the “State”) (provided,
that the Attorney for the Governmental Unit is certifying only as to Paragraphs 1,2, 3, 5, 6, 7, 8,
9,10, 11, 13, 14, 16, 17, 18, 20, 21, 22, 24 and 25 hereof):

Capitalized terms used in this Certificate have the same meaning as defined in
Governmental Unit Resolution No. 2024-34 adopted on May 23, 2024 (the “Resolution”) unless
otherwise defined in this Certificate or the context requires otherwise.

1. The Governmental Unit is a political subdivision of the State and is duly organized
and validly existing under and pursuant to the laws of the State, its full name being “Cibola
County.”

2. The Governmental Unit was established in the year 1981, Section 4-3A-1, NMSA
1978, as amended.

3. From at least March 28, 2024 (except as otherwise noted), to and including the date
of this Certificate, the following were and now are the duly chosen, qualified and acting officers
of the Governmental Unit:

Chairman: Christine Lowery
Vice Chairman: Ralph Lucero
Commissioners: Robert Windhorst
Martha Garcia
Daniel Torrez
County Manager: Kate Fletcher
Finance Director: Paul Ludi
Attorney: Nance Pato & Stout
County Clerk: Michelle Dominguez

General and No Litigation
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-6218



4. The population of the Governmental Unit’s jurisdictional and service area is not
less than seventy-five percent (75%) English speaking and is less than twenty-five percent (25%)
Spanish speaking.

5. There is no reason within our knowledge, after due inquiry with respect thereto,
why the Governmental Unit may not enter into the Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement
with the New Mexico Finance Authority (the “Finance Authority”), as authorized by the
Resolution. .

6. - The Governmental Unit has duly authorized the execution, delivery and
performance of its obligations under the Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement. The Loan
Agreement and the Intercept Agreement have been duly authorized, executed and delivered by the
Governmental Unit.

7. The Resolution has been duly signed and adopted in accordance with all applicable
laws and has not been repealed, rescinded, revoked, modified, amended or supplemented in any
manner except as set forth in the Resolution. The Resolution constitutes valid and sufficient legal
authority for the Governmental Unit to carry out and enforce the provisions of the Loan Agreement
and Intercept Agreement. No referendum petition has been filed with respect to the Resolution
under the provisions of the laws, bylaws or regulations or charter of the Governmental Unit and
the laws of the Governmental Unit or the State.

8. No event will result from the execution and delivery of the Loan Agreement or the
Intercept Agreement that constitutes a default or an event of default under either the Loan
Agreement, the Intercept Agreement or the Resolution, and no event of default and no default
under the Loan Agreement, the Intercept Agreement or the Resolution has occurred and is
continuing on the date of this Certificate.

9. The Governmental Unit has duly authorized and approved the consummation by it
of all transactions and has complied with all requirements and satisfied all conditions, which are
required by the Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement to have been authorized, approved,
performed or consummated by the Governmental Unit at or prior to the date of this Certificate.
The Governmental Unit has full legal right, power and authority to carry out and consummate the
transactions contemplated by the Resolution, the Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement.

10. A. All approvals, consents and orders of any governmental authority having
jurisdiction in the matter which would constitute a condition precedent to the enforceability of the
Loan Agreement or the Intercept Agreement or to any of the actions required to be taken by the
Resolution, the Loan Agreement or the Intercept Agreement on or prior to the date of this
Certificate have been obtained and are in full force and effect; and ’

B. All approvals, consents and orders of any governmental authority having
jurisdiction in the matter which would constitute a condition precedent to the financing of the
Project have been obtained and are in full force and effect.

11. None of the following does or will conflict with, or constitute a breach by the
Governmental Unit of, or default by the Governmental Unit under any law, court decree or order,

2

General and No Litigation
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-6218



governmental regulation, rule or order, resolution, agreement, indenture, mortgage or other
instrument to which the Governmental Unit is subject or by which it is bound:

A. The Governmental Unit’s adoption of the Resolution; or

B. Any action contemplated by or pursuant to the Resolution, the Loan Agreement, or
the Intercept Agreement.

12. No material adverse change has occurred, nor has any development occurred

involving a prospective material and adverse change in, or affecting the affairs, business, financial
condition, results of operations, prospects, or properties of the Governmental Unit or the Pledged
Revenues since the date of the Resolution.

13.  To the best of our knowledge and belief, after due inquiry with respect thereto, none
of the events of default referred to in Article X of the Loan Agreement has occurred.

14. Subsequent to the adoption of the Resolution, the Governmental Unit has not
pledged or otherwise encumbered the Pledged Revenues. On the date of this Certificate there are
no other outstanding obligations with a lien or encumbrance against the Pledged Revenues senior
to or on a parity with the lien of the Loan Agreement except as set forth in the Term Sheet attached
as Exhibit “A” to the Loan Agreement.

15.  The Loan Agreement prohibits the Governmental Unit from issuing any bonds or
other obligations with a lien on Pledged Revenues senior to the lien thereon of the Loan Agreement
on the Pledged Revenues. The Loan Agreement permits the Governmental Unit to issue additional
bonds or other obligations with a lien on the Pledged Revenues on a parity with or subordinate to
the lien of the Loan Agreement on the Pledged Revenues upon satisfaction of the conditions set
forth in the Loan Agreement.

16.  There is no threatened action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation against the
Governmental Unit, at law or in equity, by or before any court, public board or body, nor to the
Governmental Unit’s knowledge is there any basis therefor, affecting the existence of the
Governmental Unit or the titles of its officials to their respective offices, or seeking to prohibit,
restrain or enjoin the pledge of revenues or assets of the Governmental Unit pledged or to be
pledged to pay the principal, premium, if any, and interest on the Loan Agreement, or in any way
materially adversely affecting or questioning: (a) the territorial jurisdiction of the Governmental
Unit; (b) the use of the proceeds of the Loan Agreement for the Project and to pay certain costs of
the Finance Authority associated with the administration of its public projects revolving fund loan
program; (c) the validity or enforceability of the Loan Agreement, the Intercept Agreement or any
proceedings of the Governmental Unit taken with respect to the Loan Agreement, the Intercept
Agreement or the Resolution; (d) the execution and delivery of the Loan Agreement or the
Intercept Agreement; or (e) the power of the Governmental Unit to carry out the transactions
contemplated by the Loan Agreement, the Intercept Agreement or the Resolution.

17.  The Governmental Unit has complied with all the covenants and satisfied all the
conditions on its part to be performed or satisfied at or prior to the date hereof, and the
representations and warranties of the Governmental Unit contained in the Loan Agreement and in
the Resolution are true and correct as of the date hereof.

3

General and No Litigation
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-6218



18.  The Governmental Unit is not in default, and has not been in default within the ten
(10) years immediately preceding the date of this Certificate, in the payment of principal of,
premium, if any, or interest on any bonds, notes or other obligations which it has issued, assumed
or guaranteed as to payment of principal, premium, if any, or interest except that no representation
is made with respect to industrial revenue bonds or conduit bonds payable solely from installment
sale or lease payments, loan repayments or other amounts received by the Governmental Unit from
private entities.

19. To the best of our knowledge and belief, neither the Chairman, City Manager,
Finance Director, any member of the Governing Body, nor any other officer, employee or other
agent of the Governmental Unit is interested (except in the performance of his or her official rights,
privileges, powers and duties), directly or indirectly, in the profits of any contract, or job for work,
or services to be performed and appertaining to the Project.

20.  Regular meetings of the Governing Body have been held at 700 East Roosevelt,
Suite 50, Grants, New Mexico 87020, New Mexico, the principal meeting place of the Governing
Body.

21.  The Governing Body has no rules of procedure which would invalidate or make
ineffective the Resolution or other action taken by the Governing Body in connection with the
Loan Agreement. Open Meetings Act Resolution No. 24-05, as adopted and approved by the
Governing Body on January 25, 2024, establishes notice standards as required by Sections 10-15-
1 through 10-15-4, NMSA 1978. Open Meetings Act Resolution No. 24-05 has not been amended
or repealed. All action of the Governing Body with respect to the Loan Agreement, the Intercept
Agreement and the Resolution was taken at meetings held in compliance with Open Meetings Act
Resolution No. 24-05.

22.  The Cibola Citizen is a legal newspaper which maintains an office and is of general
circulation in the Governmental Unit’s jurisdictional and service area.

23.  The Pledged Revenues from the Fiscal Year immediately preceding the Closing
Date were equal to or exceeded, and, on an ongoing basis during each year of the Loan Agreement
Term, are reasonably expected to equal or exceed the coverage requirement of one hundred and
twenty-five percent 125% of the maximum Aggregate Annual Debt Service Requirement.

24.  The Pledged Revenues may lawfully be pledged to secure the payment of amounts
due under the Loan Agreement.

25.  The Chairman and County Clerk, on the date of the signing of the Loan Agreement
and the Intercept Agreement and on the date of this Certificate, are the duly chosen, qualified and
acting officers of the Governmental Unit authorized to execute such agreements.

26.  The Governmental Unit understands that Sutin, Thayer & Browne A Professional
Corporation represents the Finance Authority in this Loan and the Governmental Unit has had the
opportunity to consult other counsel in connection with the Loan.

27.  This Certificate is for the benefit of the Finance Authority.

4

General and No Litigation
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF- 6218



28.  This Certificate may be executed in counterparts.

[Signature page follows]

General and No Litigation
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-6218



WITNESS our hands and the seal of the Governmental Unit this 5® day of July, 2024.

CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO

By

Christine Lowery, Chairman of
the Board of County Commissioners

By

Paul Ludi, Finance Director

By

Kate Fletcher, County Manager

[SEAL]

APPROVED:

Paragraphs 1,2,3,5,6,7,8,9,10,11, 13, 14, 16, 17, 18, 20, 21, 22, 24 and 25 are approved
and confirmed.

NANCE, PATO & STOUT, LLC

By
Adren Nance, Esq., Attorney for the
Cibola County, New Mexico

General and No Litigation
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-6218



INTERCEPT AGREEMENT

This INTERCEPT AGREEMENT is made and entered into July 5, 2024, by and between
the NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY (the “Finance Authority”), a public body politic
and corporate constituting a governmental instrumentality separate and apart from the State of
New Mexico (the “State”) under the laws of the State and the CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW
MEXICO, a political subdivision duly organized and existing under the laws of the State (the
“Governmental Unit”). ’

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, Sections 6-21-1 through 6-21-31, NMSA 1978, as amended, authorized the
creation of the Finance Authority within the State to assist in financing the cost of public projects
of participating qualified entities, including the Governmental Unit, such as the acquisition of a
new firefighting apparatus and related equipment for use by the Governmental Unit and the El
Morro Valley Volunteer Fire Department; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Sections 6-21-1 through 6-21-31, NMSA 1978, as amended, and
Sections 4-62-1 through 4-62-10 for county, NMSA 1978, as amended (collectively, the “Act”),
the Finance Authority and the Governmental Unit are authorized to enter into agreements to
facilitate the financing of the Project as described in the Loan Agreement by and between the
Finance Authority and the Governmental Unit of even date herewith (the “Loan Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, the Governmental Unit desires to acquire the Project and such acquisition is
permitted under the Act; and

WHEREAS, the Finance Authority has established its Loan Program (the “Program”)
funded by its public project revolving fund (as defined in the Act) for the financing of infrastructure
and equipment projects upon the execution of the Loan Agreement and the assignment of loan
agreements to a trustee (the “Trustee”); and

WHEREAS, the Governmental Unit desires to borrow $210,600 from the Program for the
purpose of financing the acquisition of the Project, which Loan is to be governed by this Intercept
Agreement and by the Loan Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Act confers upon the Finance Authority the authority to loan funds to the
Governmental Unit to finance the Project, and Section 59A-53-7, NMSA 1978, as amended,
authorizes the Governmental Unit to direct that its distribution of State Fire Protection Fund
Revenues (the “Pledged Revenues”) from the State Treasurer (the “Distributing State Agency”)
be paid to the Finance Authority or its assignee, to secure payments under the Loan Agreement;

NOW THEREFORE, the parties hereto agree:

Unless otherwise defined in this Intercept Agreement and except where the context by clear
implication otherwise requires, capitalized terms used in this Intercept Agreement shall have for
all purposes of this Intercept Agreement the meanings assigned thereto in the Loan Agreement and
the Indenture, as defined in the Loan Agreement.

PPRF-6218



Section 1. Authorization to the Finance Authority. The Governmental Unit hereby
recognizes that the Finance Authority has made a Loan to the Governmental Unit in the amount
of $210,600 to finance the acquisition of the Project. Pursuant to the Loan Agreement and this
Intercept Agreement, the Loan and all Loan Agreement Payments on the Loan made by or on
behalf of the Governmental Unit shall be collected by the Finance Authority and remitted to the
Trustee. All payments due on the Loan from the Pledged Revenues shall be paid by the
Distributing State Agency to the Finance Authority or its designee, on behalf of the Governmental
Unit, from scheduled distributions of the Pledged Revenues in accordance with the Intercept
Schedule attached hereto as Exhibit “A” (the “Intercept Schedule”) if fire or law enforcement,
add:, or shall be made from special reserve funds of the Finance Authority (as determined by the
Finance Authority, and subject to repayment from the Pledged Revenues).

This Intercept Agreement shall be deemed a written certification, authorization and request
by the Governmental Unit to the Distributing State Agency to pay to the Finance Authority, on
behalf of the Governmental Unit, sums shown on the Intercept Schedule from periodic
distributions of the Pledged Revenues pursuant to Section 59A-53-7, NMSA 1978, as amended,
or from special reserve funds of the Finance Authority (as determined by the Finance Authority,
and subject to repayment from the Pledged Revenues) to insure compliance with the Loan
Agreement and repayment of the Loan. Upon written notice to the Distributing State Agency from
the Finance Authority, the amount of the Pledged Revenues to be paid to the Finance Authority
shall be increased from the amounts shown on Exhibit “A” to defray any delinquencies in the
Finance Authority Debt Service Account or Loan Agreement Reserve Account, if any, established
for the Governmental Unit. Any accumulation of the Pledged Revenues in an amount in excess of
the next Loan Agreement Payment and the Loan Agreement Reserve Requirement, if any, shall be
redirected by the Finance Authority to the benefit of the Governmental Unit on a timely basis as
provided in Section 5.2 of the Loan Agreement.

To the extent applicable and to the extent that the Pledged Revenues are insufficient to
meet the debt service requirements due on the Loan and other Parity Obligations (as defined in the
Loan Agreement) now or hereafter issued or incurred, the amounts intercepted under this Intercept
Agreement shall be applied to allow partial payment on a pro-rata basis of the debt service due and
owing on the Loan Agreement and other Parity Obligations.

Section 2. Term; Amendments. This Intercept Agreement will remain in full force and
effect from its effective date as herein provided until such time as the Loan made pursuant to the
Loan Agreement and this Intercept Agreement have been paid in full. Nothing herein shall be
deemed in any way to limit or restrict the Governmental Unit from issuing its own obligations,
providing its own program or participating in any other program for the financing of public projects
which the Governmental Unit may choose to finance. This Intercept Agreement may be amended
only by written instrument signed by the parties hereto.

Section 3. Authorization. The execution and performance of the terms of this Intercept
Agreement have been authorized and approved by Resolution No. 2024-34, passed and adopted
on May 23, 2024 by the Governing Body of the Governmental Unit, which Resolution is in full
force and effect on the date hereof.

Intercept Agreement , 2
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-6218



Section 4. Severability of Invalid Provisions. If any one or more of the provisions
herein contained shall be held contrary to any express provisions of law or contrary to the policy
of express law, though not expressly prohibited, or against public policy, or shall for any reason
whatsoever be held invalid, then such provision shall be null and void and shall be deemed
separable from the remaining provisions and shall in no way affect the validity of any of the other
provisions hereof. 4

Section 5. Counterparts. This Intercept Agreement may be simultaneously executed
in several counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one
and the same instrument.

Section 6. Further Authorization. The Governmental Unit agrees that the Finance
Authority shall do all things necessary or convenient to the implementation of the Program to
facilitate the Loan to the Governmental Unit.

Section 7. Effective Date. This Intercept Agreement shall take effect on the Closing
Date of the Loan.

Section 8. Initial Intercept Date. As indicated on the Intercept Schedule, the periodic
distribution of the Pledged Revenues that is to be intercepted by the Distributing State Agency
under the terms of this Intercept Agreement consist of Pledged Revenues due to the Governmental
Unit distributed in in the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2026.

Section 9. Final Intercept Date. Once the Loan has been fully paid off and satisfied,
Finance Authority shall provide written notice to the Distributing State Agency to discontinue the
interception of the Governmental Unit’s Pledged Revenues.

[Remainder of page left intentionally blank]

[Signature page follows]

Intercept Agreement 3
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-6218



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties to this Intercept Agreement have caused their names
to be affixed hereto by the proper officers thereof as of the date first above written.

. NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY

By

Marquita D. Russel, Chief Executive Officer
CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO

By:
Christine Lowery, Chairman of
the Board of County Commissioners

[SEAL]

ATTEST:

By

Michelle Dominguez, County Clerk

Acknowledged:

By

Randy Varela, State Fire Marshal

Date

Intercept Agreement 4
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-6218



EXHIBIT “A”

INTERCEPT SCHEDULE

CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO

Fiscal Year Ending June Pledged Revenues | Annual' Amount
30
Payment Dates
2026 The distribution of State Fire Protection $18,593.66
Fund Revenues to Cibola County and the
2027 District, pursuant to Section 59A-53-7, $18,915.86
NMSA 1978, which distributions are
2028 made periodically by the State Treasurer. $18,966.02
2029 $19,023.02
2030 $19,086.14
2031 $19,112.16
2032 $19,112.92
2033 $19,112.14
2034 $19,112.72
2035 $19,112.50
2036 $19,112.36
2037 $19,112.16
2038 $19,112.76
6976647
Intercept Agreement 5

Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-6218




$210,600

LOAN AGREEMENT

dated

July 5, 2024

by and between the
NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY
and the

CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO

Certain interests of the New Mexico Finance Authority under this Loan Agreement
may be assigned to BOKF, NA as trustee under the Indenture, as defined in Article
I of this Loan Agreement.

PPRF-6218



LOAN AGREEMENT

THIS LOAN AGREEMENT dated July 5, 2024 is entered into by and between the NEW
MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY (the “Finance Authority”), and the CIBOLA COUNTY,
NEW MEXICO (the “Governmental Unit”), a political subdivision duly organized and existing
under the laws of the State of New Mexico (the “State™).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Finance Authority is a public body politic and corporate constituting a
governmental instrumentality, separate and apart from the State, duly organized and created under
and pursuant to the laws of the State, particularly Section 6-21-1 et seq., NMSA 1978, as amended
(the “Finance Authority Act”); and

WHEREAS, one of the purposes of the Finance Authority Act is to implement a program
to permit qualified entities, such as the Governmental Unit, to enter into agreements with the
Finance Authority to facilitate financing of public projects; and

WHEREAS, the Governmental Unit is a political subdivision duly organized and existing
under and pursuant to the laws of the State and is a qualified entity under the Finance Authority
Act; and

WHEREAS, the Governing Body of the Governmental Unit, has determined that it is in
the best interests of the Governmental Unit and its residents that the Governmental Unit enter into
this Loan Agreement with the Finance Authority and accept a loan from the Finance Authority to
finance the costs of purchasing a new firefighting apparatus and related equipment as more fully
described on the Term Sheet attached hereto as Exhibit “A”; and

WHEREAS, the Act authorizes the Governmental Unit to use the Pledged Revenues to
finance the Project and to enter into this Loan Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Finance Authority has determined that the Project is important to the
overall capital needs of the residents of the State and that the Project will directly enhance the
health and safety of the residents of the Governmental Unit; and

WHEREAS, the Governmental Unit is a disadvantaged qualified entity within the meaning
of Section 8(B)(4)(a) of the Finance Authority’s Amended and Restated Rules and Regulations
Governing the Public Project Revolving Fund Program.

WHEREAS, the Governmental Unit has entered into the Intercept Agreement by and
between the Finance Authority and the Governmental Unit whereby the Pledged Revenues due to
the Governmental Unit from the Distributing State Agency are intercepted by the Finance
Authority, or the Trustee, as its assignee, to make payments due under this Loan Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Finance Authority may assign and transfer this Loan Agreement to the
Trustee pursuant to the Indenture; and

Loan Agreement
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-6218



WHEREAS, except as described on the Term Sheet, the Pledged Revenues have not been
pledged or hypothecated in any manner or for any purpose at the time of the execution and delivery
of this Loan Agreement, and the Governmental Unit desires to pledge the Pledged Revenues
toward the payment of this Loan Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the obligation of the Governmental Unit hereunder shall constitute a special,
limited obligation of the Governmental Unit, limited to the Pledged Revenues, and shall not
constitute a general obligation or other indebtedness of the Governmental Unit or a charge against
the general credit or ad valorem taxing power of the Governmental Unit or the State; and

WHEREAS, the execution, performance and delivery of this Loan Agreement and the
Intercept Agreement have been authorized, approved and directed by all necessary and appropriate
action of the Governing Body pursuant to the Resolution; and

WHEREAS, the execution and performance of this Loan Agreement and the Intercept
Agreement have been authorized, approved and directed by all necessary and appropriate action
of the Finance Authority; and

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the premises and the mutual promises
and covenants herein contained, the parties hereto agree:

ARTICLE I
DEFINITIONS

Capitalized terms defined in the foregoing recitals shall have the same meaning when used
in this Loan Agreement, unless the context clearly requires otherwise. Capitalized terms not
defined in the recitals and defined in this Article I shall have the same meaning when used in this
Loan Agreement, including the foregoing recitals, unless the context clearly requires otherwise.

“Act” means the general laws of the State, including Sections 4-62-1 through 4-62-10 and
Sections 59A-53-1 through 59A-53-19, NMSA 1978, as amended, and enactments of the
Governing Body relating to this Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement, including the
Resolution

“Additional Payment Obligations” means payments in addition to Loan Agreement
Payments required by this Loan Agreement, including, without limitation, payments required
pursuant to the provisions of Article IX and Article X hereof.

“Aggregate Annual Debt Service Requirement” means the total principal, interest, and
premium payments, if any, due and payable pursuant to this Loan Agreement and on all Parity
Obligations secured by a pledge of the Pledged Revenues for any one Fiscal Year.

“Authorized Officers” means, in the case of the Governmental Unit, Chairman, Vice
Chairman, Finance Director, County Manager, and County Clerk and, in the case of the Finance
Authority, the Chair, Vice-Chair and Secretary of the Board of Directors and the Chief Executive
Officer or any other officer or employee of the Finance Authority designated in writing by an
Authorized Officer.

Loan Agreement
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-6218



“Blended Interest Rate” means the rate of interest on this Loan Agreement as shown on the
Term Sheet.

“Bond Counsel” means nationally recognized bond counsel experienced in matters of
municipal law satisfactory to the Trustee and listed in the list of municipal bond attorneys, as
published semi-annually by The Bond Buyer’s Municipal Marketplace, or any successor
publication, acting as Loan Counsel to the Finance Authority.

“Bonds” means public project revolving fund revenue bonds, if any, issued hereafter by
the Finance Authority to fund or reimburse this Loan Agreement.

“Closing Date” means the date of execution, delivery and funding of this Loan Agreement
as shown on the Term Sheet.

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the applicable
regulations thereunder.

“District” means the E1 Morro Valley Volunteer Fire Department within the Governmental
Unit.
} “Distributing State Agency” means the department or agency of the State, as described on
the Term Sheet, authorized to distribute the Pledged Revenues to or on behalf of the Governmental
Unit. :

“Event of Default” means one or more events of default as defined in Section 10.1 of this
Loan Agreement.

“Expenses” means the costs of issuance of this Loan Agreement and the Bonds, if any, and
periodic and regular fees and expenses incurred by the Finance Authority in administering this
Loan Agreement, including legal fees.

“Finance Authority Debt Service Account” means the debt service account established in
the name of the Governmental Unit within the Debt Service Fund, as defined in the Indenture, held
and administered by the Finance Authority to pay principal and interest, if any, on this Loan
Agreement as the same become due.

“Fiscal Year” means the period beginning on July 1 in each calendar year and ending on
the last day of June of the next succeeding calendar year, or any other twelve-month period which
any appropriate authority may hereafter establish for the Governmental Unit as its fiscal year.

“Governing Body” means the duly organized Board of County Commissioners of the
Governmental Unit and any successor governing body of the Governmental Unit.

“Indenture” means the General Indenture of Trust and Pledge dated as of June 1, 1995, as
amended and supplemented, by and between the Finance Authority and the Trustee, or the
Subordinated General Indenture of Trust and Pledge dated as of March 1, 2005, as supplemented,
by and between the Finance Authority and the Trustee, as determined by the Finance Authority
pursuant to a Pledge Notification or Supplemental Indenture (as defined in the Indenture).

3
Loan Agreement _
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-6218



“Independent Accountant” means: (i) an accountant employed by the State and under the
supervision of the State Auditor; or (ii) any certified public accountant or firm of such accountants
duly licensed to practice and practicing as such under the laws of the State, appointed and paid by
the Governmental Unit who (a) is, in fact, independent and not under the domination of the
Governmental Unit; (b) does not have any substantial interest, direct or indirect, with the
Governmental Unit; and (c) is not connected with the Governmental Unit as an officer or employee
of the Governmental Unit, but who may be regularly retained to make annual or similar audits of
the books or records of the Governmental Unit.

“Intercept Agreement” means the Intercept Agreement, dated July 5, 2024, between the
Governmental Unit and the Finance Authority providing for the direct payment by the Distributing
State Agency to the Finance Authority of the Pledged Revenues in amounts sufficient to pay Loan
Agreement Payments, and any amendments or supplements to the Intercept Agreement.

* “Interest Component” means the portion of each Loan Agreement Payment paid as interest
on this Loan Agreement as shown on Exhibit “B” hereto.

“Loan” means the funds in the Loan Agreement Principal Amount to be loaned to the
Governmental Unit by the Finance Authority pursuant to this Loan Agreement.

“Loan Agreement” means this loan agreement and any amendments or supplements hereto,
including the exhibits attached to this loan agreement.

“Loan Agreement Balance” means, as of any date of calculation, the Loan Agreement
Principal Amount less the aggregate principal amount paid or prepaid pursuant to the provisions
of this Loan Agreement.

“Loan Agreement Payment” means, collectively, the Principal Component and the Interest
Component, if any, to be paid by the Governmental Unit as payment of this Loan Agreement as
shown on Exhibit “B” hereto.

“Loan Agreement Payment Date” means each date a payment is due on this Loan
Agreement as shown on Exhibit “B” hereto.

“Loan Agreement Principal Amount” means the original principal amount of this Loan
Agreement as shown on the Term Sheet.

“Loan Agreement Term” means the term of this Loan Agreement as provided under
Article III of this Loan Agreement.

“NMSA” means the New Mexico Statutes Annotated, 1978 compilation, as amended and
supplemented.

“Parity Obligations” means this Loan Agreement, and any other obligations, now
outstanding or hereafter issued or incurred, payable from or secured by a lien or pledge of the
Pledged Revenues and issued with a lien on the Pledged Revenues on a parity with this Loan
Agreement, including any such obligations shown on the Term Sheet.

4
Loan Agreement
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-6218



“Permitted Investments” means securities which are at the time legal investments of the
Governmental Unit for the money to be invested, as applicable, including but not limited to the
following, if permitted by law: (i) securities that are issued by the United States government or
by its agencies or instrumentalities and that are either direct obligations of the United States, the
federal home loan mortgage association, the federal national mortgage association, the federal
farm credit bank, federal home loan banks or the student loan marketing association or that are
backed by the full faith and credit of the United States government; (ii) negotiable securities of the
State; (iii) money market funds which invest solely in obligations described in clause (i) above
which are rated in the highest rating category by Moody’s Investors Service, Inc., or S&P Global
Ratings; and (iv) the State Treasurer’s short-term investment fund created pursuant to Section 6-
10-10.1, NMSA 1978, and operated, maintained and invested by the office of the State Treasurer.

“Pledged Revenues” means revenues distributed to the Governmental Unit for the District
pledged to payment of the Loan Agreement Payments pursuant to the Resolution and described on
the Term Sheet.

“Principal Component” means the portion of each Loan Agreement Payment paid as
principal on this Loan Agreement as shown on Exhibit “B” hereto.

“Program Account” means the account in the name of the Governmental Unit established
pursuant to the Indenture and held by the Trustee for the deposit of the net proceeds of the Loan
Agreement for disbursal to the Governmental Unit for payment of the costs of the Project.

“Project” means the project(s) described on the Term Sheet.

“Resolution” means the Governmental Unit Resolution No. adopted by the
Governing Body on May 23, 2024 approving this Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement
and pledging the Pledged Revenues to the payment of the Loan Agreement Payments as shown on
the Term Sheet.

“Term Sheet” means Exhibit “A” attached hereto.

“Trustee” means BOKF, NA, Albuquerque, New Mexico, or any successor trust company,
national or state banking association or financial institution at the time appointed Trustee by
Finance Authority.

“Unassigned Rights” means the rights of the Finance Authority to receive payment of
administrative expenses, reports and indemnity against claims pursuant to the provisions of this
Loan Agreement which are withheld in the granting clauses of the Indenture from the pledge,
assignment and transfer of this Loan Agreement to the Trustee.

ARTICLE II
REPRESENTATIONS, COVENANTS AND WARRANTIES

Section 2.1  Representations, Covenants and Warranties of the Governmental Unit. The
Governmental Unit represents, covenants and warrants:

Loan Agreement
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-6218



(a) Binding Nature of Covenants. All covenants, stipulations, obligations and
agreements of the Governmental Unit contained in this Loan Agreement shall be deemed to be the
covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreements of the Governmental Unit to the full extent
authorized or permitted by law, and such covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreements shall
be binding upon the Governmental Unit and its successors and upon any board or body to which
any powers or duties affecting such covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreements shall be
transferred by or in accordance with law. Except as otherwise provided in this Loan Agreement,
all rights, powers and privileges conferred and duties and liabilities imposed upon the
Governmental Unit by the provisions of this Loan Agreement and the Resolution shall be exercised
or performed by the Governmental Unit or by such members, officers, or officials of the
Governmental Unit as may be required by law to exercise such powers and to perform such duties.

(b) Personal Liability. No covenant, stipulation, obligation or agreement
contained in this Loan Agreement shall be deemed to be a covenant, stipulation, obligation or
agreement of any officer, agent or employee of the Governmental Unit or member of the
Governing Body in his or her individual capacity, and neither the members of the Governing Body
nor any officer, agent or employee of the Governmental Unit executing this Loan Agreement shall
be liable personally on this Loan Agreement or be subject to any personal liability or accountability
by reason of the execution and delivery thereof.

(©) Authorization of Loan Agreement and Intercept Agreement. The
Governmental Unit is a political subdivision of the State and is duly organized and existing under
the statutes and laws of the State. Pursuant to the Act, as amended and supplemented from time
to time, the Governmental Unit is authorized to enter into the transactions contemplated by this
Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement and to carry out its obligations hereunder and
thereunder. The Governmental Unit has duly authorized and approved the execution and delivery
of this Loan Agreement, the Intercept Agreement, and the other documents related to the
transaction.

(d) Use of Loan Agreement Proceeds. The Govemmental Unit shall proceed
without delay in applying the proceeds of this Loan Agreement to the acquisition of the Project.

(e) Payment of Loan Agreement. The Governmental Unit shall promptly pay
Loan Agreement Payments, as specified in Exhibit “B” hereto, according to the true intent and
meaning of this Loan Agreement. Loan Agreement Payments are payable solely from (i) the
Pledged Revenues, (ii) special reserve funds of the Finance Authority (as determined by the
Finance Authority, and subject to repayment from the Pledged Revenues), or (iii) the proceeds of
refunding bonds or other refunding obligations which the Governmental Unit may hereafter issue
in its sole discretion and which are payable from the Pledged Revenues; and nothing in this Loan
Agreement shall be construed as obligating the Governmental Unit to pay Loan Agreement
Payments from any general or other fund of the Governmental Unit other than such special funds.
Nothing contained in this Loan Agreement, however, shall be construed as prohibiting the
Governmental Unit in its sole and absolute discretion, from making such payments from any
moneys which may be lawfully used, and which are legally available, for that purpose.

® Acquisition and Completion of Project. The Project will consist of
acquiring and completing the purchase of a new firefighting apparatus and related equipment. The

6

Loan Agreement
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-6218



Project will be acquired and completed so as to comply with all applicable ordinances, resolutions
and regulations, if any, and any and all applicable laws relating to the acquisition and completion
of the Project and to the use of the Pledged Revenues. The Project complies with Sections 59A-
53-1 through 59A-53-19, NMSA 1978, as amended.

(8)  Necessity of Project. The acquisition of the Project under the terms and
conditions provided for in this Loan Agreement is necessary, convenient and in furtherance of the
governmental purposes of the Governmental Unit and is in the best interests of the Governmental
Unit and its residents.

(h) Legal, Valid and Binding Special Obligation. The Governmental Unit has
taken all required action necessary to authorize the execution and delivery of this Loan Agreement
and the Intercept Agreement, and this Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement constitute
legal, valid and binding special obligations of the Governmental Unit enforceable in accordance
with their terms.

1) Loan Agreement Term. The weighted average maturity of 8.294 years of
the Loan Agreement does not exceed 120% of the reasonably expected life of the Project which is
years.

)] Use of Project. During the Loan Agreement Term, the Project will at all
times be used for the purpose of benefiting the Governmental Unit as a whole.

(k)  No Private Activity. The Governmental Unit is a “governmental unit”
within the meaning of Sections 103 and 141(b)(6) of the Code. In addition, no amounts disbursed
from the Program Account and used to finance the Project shall be used in the trade or business of
a person who is not a “governmental unit” within the meaning of Sections 103 and 141(b)(6) of
the Code.

) No Excess Loan Agreement Proceeds. The amount loaned to the
Governmental Unit under this Loan Agreement as set forth on the Term Sheet does not exceed the
sum of: (i) the cost of the Project; and (ii) an amount necessary to pay the costs related to issuance
of the Bonds, if any.

(m)  No Breach or Default Caused by Loan Agreement or Intercept Agreement.
Neither the execution and delivery of this Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement, nor the
fulfillment of or compliance with the terms and conditions in this Loan Agreement and the
Intercept Agreement, nor the consummation of the transactions contemplated herein and therein,
conflicts with or results in a breach of terms, conditions or provisions of any restriction or any
agreement or instrument to which the Governmental Unit is a party or by which the Governmental
Unit is bound or any laws, ordinances, governmental rules or regulations or court or other
governmental orders to which the Governmental Unit or its properties are subject, or constitutes a
default under any of the foregoing.

(n) Irrevocable Enactments. While this Loan Agreement remains outstanding
and unpaid, any ordinance, resolution or other enactment of the Governing Body applying the
Pledged Revenues for the payment of this Loan Agreement, including the Resolution shall be

7
Loan Agreement
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-6218



irrevocable until this Loan Agreement has been paid in full as to both principal and interest, and
shall not be subject to amendment or modification in any manner which would in any way
jeopardize the timely payment of Loan Agreement Payments.

(0) Outstanding Debt. Except for the Parity Obligations, if any, described on
the Term Sheet, there are currently no outstanding bonds, notes or other obligations of the
Governmental Unit which are payable from and secured by a parity lien on the Pledged Revenues.
No additional indebtedness, bonds or notes of the Governmental Unit payable on a priority ahead
of the indebtedness herein authorized out of the Pledged Revenues shall be created or incurred
while this Loan Agreement remains outstanding. No additional indebtedness, bonds or notes of
the Governmental Unit payable on a priority ahead of the indebtedness herein authorized out of
the Pledged Revenues shall be created or incurred while this Loan Agreement remains outstanding.
Prior to entering into additional indebtedness to be secured by a parity lien on the Pledged
Revenues, the Governmental Unit shall comply with the terms of Section 5.5 hereof and shall seek
the written consent of the Finance Authority, such consent shall not be unreasonably
withheld. During the term of this Loan Agreement, prior to entering into any indebtedness secured
by a subordinate lien on the Pledged Revenues or a lien on any revenues of the Governmental Unit
other than the Pledged Revenues, the Governmental Unit shall notify the Finance Authority in
writing of such indebtedness.

()  No Litigation. To the knowledge of the Governmental Unit, no litigation
or proceeding is pending or threatened against the Governmental Unit or any other person affecting
the right of the Governmental Unit to execute or deliver this Loan Agreement or the Intercept
Agreement or to comply with its obligations under this Loan Agreement or the Intercept
Agreement. Neither, the execution and delivery of this Loan Agreement or the Intercept
Agreement by the Governmental Unit, nor compliance by the Governmental Unit with the
obligations under such agreements, requires the approval of any regulatory body, or any other
entity, which approval has not been obtained or which is not reasonably expected to be obtained.

‘ (@ No Event of Default. No event has occurred and no condition exists which,
upon the execution and delivery of this Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement, would
constitute an Event of Default on the part of the Governmental Unit under this Loan Agreement or
the Intercept Agreement.

(v) Pledged Revenues Not Budgeted. The portion of the Pledged Revenues
necessary to pay the Loan Agreement Payments, as and when due, is not needed or budgeted to
pay current or anticipated operational or other expenses of the Governmental Unit.

(s) Expected Coverage Ratio. The Pledged Revenues (giving credit for any
increase in the Pledged Revenues which has received final approval of the Governing Body and
become effective) from the Fiscal Year immediately preceding the Closing Date were equal to or
exceeded and, on an ongoing basis during each year of the Loan Agreement Term, are reasonably
expected to equal or exceed, one hundred twenty-five percent (125%) of the maximum Aggregate
Annual Debt Service Requirement.

t) No Extension of Interest Payments. The Governmental Unit will not extend
or be a party to the extension of the time for paying any interest on this Loan Agreement.

8

Loan Agreement
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-6218



() Governmental Unit’s Existence. The Governmental Unit will maintain its
corporate identity and existence so long as this Loan Agreement is unpaid, unless another political
subdivision by operation of law succeeds to the liabilities and rights of the Governmental Unit
without adversely affecting to any substantial degree the privileges and rights of the Finance
Authority.

(v)  Continuing Disclosure. The Governmental Unit covenants that it shall
provide continuing disclosure to the Finance Authority, as the Finance Authority may require, that
shall include, but not be limited to, annual audits, operational data required to update information
in any disclosure documents used to assign or securitize the Loan Agreement Payments by
issuance of Bonds by the Finance Authority pursuant to the Indenture, and notification of any event
deemed material by the Finance Authority.

(w)  Tax Covenants. The Governmental Unit covenants that it shall restrict the
use of the proceeds of this Loan Agreement in such manner and to such extent, if any, as may be
necessary so that this Loan Agreement will not constitute an arbitrage bond under Section 148 of
the Code and that it shall pay any applicable rebate to the Internal Revenue Service. Authorized
Officers of the Governmental Unit are hereby authorized and directed to execute an Arbitrage and
Tax Certificate as may be required by the Finance Authority and such additional certificates as
shall be necessary to establish that this Loan Agreement is not an “arbitrage bond” within the
meaning of Section 148 of the Code and the Treasury Regulations promulgated or proposed with
respect thereto, including Treasury Regulation Sections 1.148-1 through 1.148-11, 1.149 and 1.150
as the same currently exist, or may from time to time hereafter be amended, supplemented or
revised. The Governmental Unit covenants to comply with the provisions of any such Arbitrage
and Tax Certificate and the provisions thereof will be incorporated herein by reference to the same
extent as if set forth herein. The Governmental Unit covenants that no use will be made of the
proceeds of this Loan Agreement, or any funds or accounts of the Governmental Unit which may
be deemed to be Gross Proceeds (as defined in Treasury Regulation Section 1.148-1(b)) of this
Loan Agreement, which use, if it had been reasonably expected on the Closing Date, would have
caused this Loan Agreement to be classified as an “arbitrage bond” within the meaning of Section
148 of the Code. Pursuant to this covenant, the Governmental Unit obligates itself to comply
throughout the Loan Agreement Term with the requirements of Sections 103 and 141 through 150
of the Code and the regulations proposed or promulgated with respect thereto. The Governmental
Unit further represents and covenants that no bonds or other evidence of indebtedness of the
Governmental Unit payable from substantially the same source as this Loan Agreement have been
or will be issued, sold or delivered within fifteen (15) days prior to or subsequent to the Closing
Date. The Governmental Unit hereby further represents and covenants to comply with Section 7.6
hereof, which designates this Loan Agreement as a “qualified tax-exempt obligation” for purposes
of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code.

(x) Use of Fire Protection Fund Revenues. The Governmental Unit will take
no action with respect to the Project that would constitute a violation of the terms of Sections 59A-
53-7 through 59A-53-10, NMSA 1978, as the same may be amended or recompiled from time to
time.

Loan Agreement »
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-6218



Section 2.2 Representations, Covenants and Warranties of the Finance Authority. The
Finance Authority represents, covenants and warrants for the benefit of the Governmental Unit as
follows: '

(a) Authorization of Loan Agreement and Intercept Agreement. The Finance
- Authority is a public body politic and corporate constituting a governmental instrumentality,
separate and apart from the State, duly organized, existing and in good standing under the laws of
the State, has all necessary power and authority to enter into and perform .and observe the
covenants and agreements on its part contained in this Loan Agreement and the Intercept
Agreement and, by proper action, has duly authorized the execution and delivery of this Loan
Agreement and the Intercept Agreement based upon the Finance Authority’s findings that:

1) The Governmental Unit is a disadvantaged qualified entity in that
its median household income is $47,300, which is less than one hundred percent (100%) of the
State median household income of $54,020.

(i) The Project is important to the overall capital needs of the State and
directly enhances the health and safety of the residents of the Governmental Unit.

(b) Assignment of Rights. The Finance Authority may not pledge or assign the
Pledged Revenues, the Loan Agreement Payments or any of its other rights under this Loan
Agreement and the Intercept Agreement except to the Trustee pursuant to the Indenture.

(© No Breach or Default Caused by Loan Agreement or Intercept Agreement.
Neither the execution and delivery of this Loan Agreement or the Intercept Agreement, nor the
fulfillment of or compliance with the terms and conditions of this Loan Agreement or the Intercept
Agreement, nor the consummation of the transactions contemplated in this Loan Agreement or the
Intercept Agreement, conflicts with or results in a breach of the terms, conditions and provisions
of any restriction or any agreement or instrument to which the Finance Authority is a party or by
which the Finance Authority is bound or constitutes a default under any of the foregoing and will
not conflict with or constitute a violation of any constitutional or statutory provision or order, rule,
regulation, decree or resolution of any court, government or governmental authority having
jurisdiction over the Finance Authority or its property and which conflict or violation will have a
material adverse effect on the Finance Authority or the financing of the Project.

(d) No Litigation. To the knowledge of the Finance Authority, there is no
litigation or proceeding pending or threatened against the Finance Authority or any other person
affecting the right of the Finance Authority to execute or deliver this Loan Agreement or the
Intercept Agreement or to comply with its obligations under this Loan Agreement or the Intercept
‘Agreement. Neither, the execution and delivery of this Loan Agreement or the Intercept
Agreement by the Finance Authority, nor compliance by the Finance Authority with its obli gations
under this Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement requires the approval of any regulatory
body, or any other entity, which approval has not been obtained.

(e) Legal, Valid and Binding Obligations. This Loan Agreement and the
Intercept Agreement constitute the legal, valid and binding obligations of the Finance Authority
enforceable in accordance with their terms.

10
Loan Agreement
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-6218



® Tax-Exempt Reimbursement of Amount Loaned. The Finance Authority
intends to reimburse the public project revolving fund (as defined in the Finance Authority Act)
for the amount of the Loan from the proceeds of tax-exempt bonds which the Finance Authority
expects to issue within eighteen (18) months of the Closing Date.

- ARTICLE III
LOAN AGREEMENT TERM

The Loan Agreement Term shall commence on the Closing Date and shall not terminate
until this Loan Agreement has been paid in full or provision for the payment of this Loan
Agreement has been made pursuant to Article VIII hereof.

ARTICLE IV
LOAN; APPLICATION OF MONEYS

On the Closing Date, the Finance Authority shall transfer the Loan Agreement Principal
Amount as follows: -

(a) To the Trustee, the amount shown on the Term Sheet as the Program
Account Deposit shall be deposited in the Governmental Unit’s Program Account to be disbursed
by the Trustee pursuant to the Indenture and disbursed pursuant to Section 6.2 hereof at the
direction of the Governmental Unit as needed by the Governmental Unit for the Project; and

(b) To the Finance Authority, the amount shown on the Term Sheet as the
Finance Authority Debt Service Account deposit shall be deposited into the Finance Authority
Debt Service Account to be maintained by the Finance Authority or its assignee and utilized as
provided in Section 5.2 hereof; and

| ARTICLE V
LOAN TO THE GOVERNMENTAL UNIT;
PAYMENTS BY THE GOVERNMENTAL UNIT

Section 5.1  Loan to the Governmental Unit; Payment Obligations Limited to Pledged
Revenues; Pledge of Pledged Revenues. The Finance Authority hereby lends to the Governmental
Unit and the Governmental Unit hereby borrows from the Finance Authority an amount equal to
the Loan Agreement Principal Amount. The Governmental Unit promises to pay, but solely from
the sources pledged herein or special reserve funds of the Finance Authority (as determined by the
Finance Authority, and subject to repayment from the Pledged Revenues), the Loan Agreement
Payments as herein provided. The Governmental Unit does hereby convey, assign and pledge unto
the Finance Authority and unto its successors in trust forever all right, title and interest of the
Governmental Unit in and to: (i) the Pledged Revenues to the extent required to pay the Loan
Agreement Payments on parity with the Parity Obligations; (ii) the Finance Authority Debt Service
Account, such account being held by the Finance Authority; (iii) the Program Account, such
accounts being held by the Trustee; and (iv) all other rights hereinafter granted, for the securing of
the Governmental Unit’s ébligations under this Loan Agreement, including payment of the Loan
Agreement Payments and Additional Payment Obligations; provided, however, that if the
Governmental Unit, its successors or assigns, shall well and truly pay, or cause to be paid, all Loan

11
Loan Agreement
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-6218



Agreement Payments at the time and in the manner contemplated by this Loan Agreement,
according to the true intent and meaning hereof, or shall provide, as permitted by Article VIII of
this Loan Agreement for the payment hereof and shall pay all other amounts due or to become due
under this Loan Agreement in accordance with its terms and provisions, then, upon such final
payment or provision for payment by the Governmental Unit, this Loan Agreement and the rights
created thereby shall terminate; otherwise, this Loan Agreement shall remain in full force and
effect. The Loan Agreement Payments shall, in the aggregate, be sufficient to pay the Principal
Component and Interest Component when due, the payment schedule of which is attached hereto
as Exhibit “B.”

The pledge of the Pledged Revenues and the lien thereon shall be effective upon the
Closing Date. The Governmental Unit and the Finance Authority acknowledge and agree that the
Loan Agreement Payments of the Governmental Unit hereunder are limited to the Pledged
Revenues, and that this Loan Agreement shall constitute a special, limited obligation of the
Governmental Unit. No provision of this Loan Agreement shall be construed or interpreted as
creating a general obligation or other indebtedness of the Governmental Unit within the meaning
of any constitutional or statutory debt limitation. No provision of this Loan Agreement shall be
construed to pledge or to create a lien on any class or source of Governmental Unit moneys other
than the Pledged Revenues, nor shall any provision of this Loan Agreement restrict the future
issuance of any bonds or obligations payable from any class or source of Governmental Unit
moneys other than the Pledged Revenues. In addition, to the extent not required for the payment
of obligations of the Governmental Unit hereunder, the Pledged Revenues may be utilized by the
Governmental Unit for any other purposes permitted by law.

Section 5.2 Payment Obligations of Governmental Unit. As provided in the Intercept
Agreement, the Distributing State Agency shall cause to be transferred from the Pledged Revenues
or special reserve funds of the Finance Authority (as determined by the Finance Authority, and
subject to repayment from the Pledged Revenues) the amounts provided in subsections (2)(i) and
(i1) of this Section 5.2 for deposit into the Finance Authority Debt Service Account. The Finance
Authority Debt Service Account shall be established and held by the Finance Authority on behalf
of the Governmental Unit. All Pledged Revenues received by the Finance Authority pursuant to
the Intercept Agreement shall be accounted for and maintained on an ongoing basis by the Finance
Authority in the Finance Authority Debt Service Account or used for repayment of Loan
Agreement Payments paid by the special reserve funds of the Finance Authority, and all Loan
Agreement Payments shall be remitted to the Trustee. The amounts on deposit in the Finance
Authority Debt Service Account shall be expended and used by the Finance Authority or the
Trustee, as the case may be, only in the manner and order of priority specified below.

(a) As a first charge and lien, but not an exclusive first charge and lien, on the
Pledged Revenues (on a parity with the lien on the Pledged Revenues created by any outstanding
Parity Obligations), the Governmental Unit shall remit to the Finance Authority and the Finance
Authority shall transfer and deposit into the Finance Authority Debt Service Account the following
from the Pledged Revenues received pursuant to the Intercept Agreement from the Governmental
Unit, which the Finance Authority shall transfer to the Trustee in accordance with the Indenture:

12
Loan Agreement
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-6218



6)) Interest Components. Amounts necessary to pay the Interest
Components coming due on this Loan Agreement on May 1 and November 1 of each Fiscal Year
beginning with the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2026, as described in Exhibit “B;”

(i1) Principal Payments. Amounts necessary to pay the Principal
Components coming due on this Loan Agreement on May 1 of each Fiscal Year beginning with
the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2026, as described in Exhibit “B.”

(b) Each Loan Agreement Payment shall be transferred by the Finance
Authority from the Finance Authority Debt Service Account to the Trustee.

(c) Subject to the foregoing deposits, the Finance Authority or the Trustee shall
annually use the balance of the Pledged Revenues received, if any, at the request of the
Governmental Unit: (i) to credit against upcoming Loan Agreement Payments; or (ii) to distribute
to the Governmental Unit’s account in the Fire Protection Fund maintained by the State Treasurer
for any purpose permitted by law.

Section 5.3  Manner of Payment. All payments of the Governmental Unit hereunder
shall be paid in lawful money of the United States of America to the Finance Authority at the
address designated in Section 11.1 herein, for remittance to the Trustee. The obligation of the
Governmental Unit to make payments hereunder, from and to the extent of the available Pledged
Revenues, shall be absolute and unconditional in all events, except as expressly provided
hereunder, and payment hereunder shall not be abated through accident or unforeseen
circumstances. Notwithstanding any dispute between the Governmental Unit, the Finance
Authority, the Trustee, any vendor or any other person, the Governmental Unit shall make all
deposits hereunder, from and to the extent of the available Pledged Revenues, when due and shall
not withhold any deposit hereunder pending final resolution of such dispute, nor shall the
Governmental Unit assert any right of set- off or counterclaim against its obligation to make such
depos1ts required hereunder.

Section 5.4 Disposition of Payments by the Trustee. The Trustee shall deposit all
moneys received from the Finance Authority under this Loan Agreement in accordance with the
Indenture.

Section 5.5  Additional Parity Obligations. No provision of this Loan Agreement shall
be construed in such a manner as to prevent the issuance by the Governmental Unit of additional
Parity Obligations payable from the Pledged Revenues, nor to prevent the issuance of bonds or
other obligations refunding all or a part of this Loan Agreement; provided, however, that before
any such additional Parity Obligations are actually issued (excluding refunding bonds or refunding
obligations which refund Parity Obligations but including parity refunding bonds and obligations
which refund subordinate obligations as provided in Section 5.6 hereof), the Governmental Unit
shall obtain the written consent of the Finance Authority and it must be determined that:

(a) The Governmental Unit is then current in all of the accumulations
required to be made into the Finance Authority Debt Service Account [as provided herein.

13
Loan Agreement
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-6218



(b) No default shall exist in connection with any of the covenants or
requirements of the Resolution or this Loan Agreement.

(c) The Pledged Revenues received by or credited to the Governmental Unit
for the Fiscal Year or for any twelve (12) consecutive months out of the twenty-four (24) months
preceding the date of the issuance of such additional Parity Obligations (the “Historic Test Period”)
shall have been sufficient to pay an amount representing two hundred percent (200%) of the
combined maximum Aggregate Annual Debt Service Requirement coming due in any subsequent
Fiscal Year on the then outstanding Parity Obligations and the Parity Obligations proposed to be
issued (excluding the accumulation of any reserves therefor).

(d) A written certification or opinion by the Governmental Unit’s Treasurer
or chief financial officer or by an Independent Accountant that the Pledged Revenues for the
Historic Test Period are sufficient to pay said amounts, shall be conclusively presumed to be
accurate in determining the right of the Governmental Unit to authorize, issue, sell and deliver the
Parity Obligations proposed to be issued.

(e) With prior written notice to Finance Authority, no provision of this Loan
Agreement shall be construed in such a manner as to prevent the issuance by the Governmental
Unit of additional bonds or other obligations payable from the Pledged Revenues constituting a
lien upon such Pledged Revenues subordinate and junior to the lien of this Loan Agreement nor to
prevent the issuance of bonds or other obligations refunding all or part of this Loan Agreement as
permitted by Section 5.6 hereof.

) The Governmental Unit shall not issue bonds or other obligations payable
from the Pledged Revenues having a lien thereon prior and superior to this Loan Agreement.

Section 5.6  Refunding Obligations. The provisions of Section 5.5 hereof are subject to
the following exceptions:

(a)  Ifatany time after the Closing Date, while this Loan Agreement, or any part
thereof, is outstanding, the Governmental Unit shall find it desirable to refund any outstanding
bonds or other outstanding obligations payable from the Pledged Revenues, this Loan Agreement,
such bonds or other obligations, or any part thereof, may be refunded (but the holders of this Loan
Agreement or bonds to be refunded may not be compelled to surrender this Loan Agreement or
their bonds, unless this Loan Agreement, the bonds or other obligations, at the time of their
required surrender for payment, shall then mature, or shall then be callable for prior redemption at
the Governmental Unit’s option), regardless of whether the priority of the lien for the payment of
the refunding obligations on the Pledged Revenues is changed, except as provided in subparagraph
() of Section 5.5 hereof and in subparagraphs (b) and (c) of this Section.

(b)  No refunding bonds or other refunding obligations payable from the Pledged
Revenues shall be issued on a parity with this Loan Agreement unless:

) The outstanding obligations so refunded are Parity Obligations and
the refunding bonds or other refunding obligations do not increase any aggregate annual principal
and interest obligations evidenced by such refunded obligations; or

14
Loan Agreement
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-6218



(i1) The refunding bonds or other refunding obligations are issued in
compliance with Section 5.5 hereof.

(c)  The refunding bonds or other obligations so issued shall enjoy complete
equality of lien on the Pledged Revenues with the portion of this Loan Agreement or any bonds or
other obligations of the same issue which is not refunded, if any; and the holder or holders of such
refunding bonds or such other refunding obligations shall be subrogated to all of the rights and
privileges enjoyed by the holder or holders of this Loan Agreement or the bonds or other
obligations of the same issue refunded thereby. If only a part of this Loan Agreement or the
outstanding bonds and any other outstanding obligations of any issue or issues payable from the
Pledged Revenues is refunded, then such obligations may not be refunded without the consent of
the holder or holders of the unrefunded portion of such obligations, unless:

1) The refunding bonds or other refunding obligations do not increase
any aggregate annual principal and interest obligations evidenced by such refunded obligations
and by the outstanding obligations not refunded on and prior to the last maturity date of such
unrefunded obligations; or

. (i1) The refunding bonds or other refunding obligations are issued in
compliance with Section 5.5 hereof; or

(iii) The lien on the Pledged Revenues for the payment of the refunding
obligations is subordinate to each such lien for the payment of any obligations not refunded.

(d)  Any refunding bonds or other refunding obligations payable from the
Pledged Revenues shall be issued with such details as the Governmental Unit may provide by
ordinance or resolution, but without any impairment of any contractual obligations imposed upon
the Governmental Unit by any proceedings authorizing the issuance of any unrefunded portion of
such outstanding obligations of any one or more issues (including, but not necessarily limited to,
this Loan Agreement). ‘

Section 5.7  Investment of Governmental Unit Funds. Money on deposit in the Finance
Authority Debt Service Account established by the Finance Authority may be invested by the
Finance Authority in Permitted Investments at the discretion of the Finance Authority. Money on
deposit in the Program Account held by the Trustee and created hereunder may be invested by the
Trustee in Permitted Investments at the written direction of the Finance Authority or at the
discretion of the Trustee. Any earnings on any of said accounts shall be held and administered in
each respective account and utilized in the same manner as the other moneys on deposit therein.

Section 5.8 Governmental Unit May Budget for Payments. The Governmental Unit
may, in its sole discretion, but without obligation and subject to the Constitution of the State,
governing laws, and its budgetary requirements, make available properly budgeted and legally
available funds to defray any insufficiency of the Pledged Revenues to pay Loan Agreement
Payments; provided, however, the Governmental Unit has not covenanted and cannot covenant to
make such funds available and has not pledged any of such funds for such purpose.

15
Loan Agreement
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-6218



ARTICLE VI
THE PROJECT

Section 6.1  Agreement To Acquire and Complete the Project. The Governmental Unit
hereby agrees that to effectuate the purposes of this Loan Agreement and to effectuate the
acquisition of the Project, it shall make, execute, acknowledge and transmit any contracts, orders,
receipts, writings and instructions with any other persons, firms or corporations and, in general, do
all things which may be requisite or proper to complete the Project. The Governmental Unit agrees
to acquire the Project through the application of moneys to be disbursed from the Program Account
pursuant to Section 6.2 of this Loan Agreement.

Section 6.2  Disbursements From the Program Account. So long as no Event of Default
shall occur, the Trustee shall disburse moneys from the Program Account in accordance with
Section 6.2 of the Indenture upon receipt by the Trustee of a requisition substantially in the form
of Exhibit “/C” attached hereto signed by an Authorized Officer of the Governmental Unit.

No disbursement shall be made from the Program Account without the approval of Bond
Counsel: (i) to reimburse the Governmental Unit’s own funds for expenditures made prior to the
Closing Date; (ii) to refund or advance refund any tax-exempt obligations issued by or on behalf
of the Governmental Unit; (iii) to be used, directly or indirectly, to finance a project used or to be
used in the trade or business of a person who is not a “governmental unit,” within the meaning of
Section 141(b)(6) of the Code; or (iv) to expend funds after the date that is three (3) years after the
execution and delivery of this Loan Agreement.

Section 6.3 ~ Completion of Acquisition of the Project. Upon completion of the
acquisition of the Project, an Authorized Officer of the Governmental Unit shall deliver a
certificate to the Finance Authority and the Trustee substantially in the form of Exhibit “D”
attached hereto stating that, to the best of his or her knowledge, the Project has been completed
and accepted by the Governmental Unit, and all costs have been paid. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, such certificate shall state that it is given without prejudice to any rights against third
parties which exist at the date of such certificate or which may subsequently come into being.

Section 6.4  Application of Loan Agreement Proceeds Subsequent to Completion of the
Project. Upon completion of the Project as signified by delivery of the completion certificate
contemplated in Section 6.3 hereof, or in the event that the Finance Authority and the Trustee shall
not have received a certificate of completion as required by Section 6.3 hereof by the date three
(3) years from the Closing Date (or such later date as is approved in writing by Bond Counsel),
the Trustee shall transfer the amounts remaining in the Program Account (except amounts
necessary for payment of amounts not then due and payable) to the Finance Authority Debt Service
Account and such amounts shall be used for the payment of Loan Agreement Payments.

ARTICLE VII
COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS
AND RULES; OTHER COVENANTS

Section 7.1  Further Assurances and Corrective Instruments. The Finance Authority and
the Governmental Unit agree that they will, from time to time, execute, acknowledge and deliver,

16
Loan Agreement
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-6218



or cause to be executed, acknowledged and delivered, such supplements hereto and such further
instruments as may reasonably be required for correcting any inadequate or incorrect description
of the Project or of the Pledged Revenues, or for otherwise carrying out the intention hereof.

Section 7.2 Finance Authority and Governmental Unit Representatives. Whenever
under the provisions hereof the approval of the Finance Authority or the Governmental Unit is
required, or the Governmental Unit or the Finance Authority is required to take some action at the
request of the other, such approval or such request shall be given for the Finance Authority or for
the Governmental Unit by an Authorized Officer of the Finance Authority or the Governmental
Unit, as the case may be, and any party hereto shall be authorized to act on any such approval or
request.

Section 7.3  Requirements of Law. During the Loan Agreement Term, the
Governmental Unit and the Finance Authority shall observe and comply promptly with all current
and future orders of all courts having jurisdiction over the parties hereto, the Project or the Pledged
Revenues. '

Section 7.4 First Lien; Equality of Liens. The Loan Agreement Payments constitute an
irrevocable first lien (but not necessarily an exclusive first lien) upon the Pledged Revenues. The
Governmental Unit covenants that the Loan Agreement Payments and any Parity Obligations
herein authorized to be issued and from time to time outstanding shall be equitably and ratably
secured by a first lien on the Pledged Revenues and shall not be entitled to any priority one over
the other in the application of the Pledged Revenues regardless of the time or times of the issuance
of such obligations, it being the intention of the Governmental Unit that there shall be no priority
between the Loan Agreement Payments and any such Parity Obligations regardless of the fact that
they may be actually issued and delivered at different times.

Section 7.5  Expeditious Completion. The Governmental Unit shall complete the
Project with all practical dispatch. :

Section 7.6 Bank Designation of Loan Agreement. For purposes of and in accordance
with Section 265 of the Code, the Governmental Unit hereby designates this Loan Agreement as
an issue qualifying for the exception for certain qualified tax-exempt obligations to the rule
denying banks and other financial institutions 100% of the deduction for interest expenses which
is allocable to tax-exempt interest. The Governmental Unit reasonably anticipates that the total
amount of tax exempt obligations (other than obligations described in Section 265(b)(3)(C)(ii) of
the Code) which will be issued by the Governmental Unit and by any aggregated issuer during the
current calendar year will not exceed $10,000,000. For purposes of this Section 7.6, “aggregated
issuer” means any entity which: (i) issues obligations on behalf of the Governmental Unit;
(i1) derives its issuing authority from the Governmental Unit; or (iii) is controlled directly or
indirectly by the Governmental Unit within the meaning of Treasury Regulation Section 1.150-
1(e). The Governmental Unit hereby represents that: (a) it has not created and does not intend to
create and does not expect to benefit from any entity formed or availed of to avoid the purposes of
Section 265(b)(3)(C) or (D) of the Code; and (b) the total amount of obligations so designated by
the Governmental Unit, and all aggregated issuers for the current calendar year does not exceed
$10,000,000.

17
Loan Agreement
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-6218



Section 7.7  Arbitrage Rebate Exemption. The Governmental Unit hereby certifies and
warrants, for the purpose of qualifying for the exception contained in Section 148(f)(4)(D) of the
Code, to the requirement to rebate arbitrage earnings from investments of the proceeds of the Loan
Agreement (the “Rebate Exemption”), that: (i) this Loan Agreement is issued by the Governmental
Unit which has general taxing powers; (ii) neither this Loan Agreement nor any portion thereof is
a private activity bond as defined in Section 141 of the Code (“Private Activity Bond”); (iii) all of
the net proceeds of this Loan Agreement are to be used for local government activities of the
Governmental Unit (or of a governmental unit, the jurisdiction of which is entirely within the
jurisdiction of the Governmental Unit); and (iv) neither the Governmental Unit nor any aggregated
issuer has issued or is reasonably expected to issue any Tax-Exempt Bonds other than (A) Private
Activity Bonds (as those terms are used in Section 148(f)(4)(D) of the Code) and (B) issued to
refund (other than to advance refund (as used in the Code)) any bond to the extent the amount of
the refunding bond does not exceed the outstanding amount of the refunded bond, during the
current calendar year, which would in the aggregate amount exceed $5,000,000. For purposes of
this paragraph, “aggregated issuer” means any entity which: (a) issues obligations on behalf of the
Governmental Unit; (b) derives its issuing authority from the Governmental Unit; or (c)is
controlled directly or indirectly by the Governmental Unit within the meaning of Treasury
Regulation Section 1.150-1(e). The Governmental Unit hereby represents that it has not created,
does not intend to create and does not expect to benefit from any entity formed or availed of to
avoid the purposes of Section 148(f)(4)(D) of the Code.

Accordingly, with respect to the Loan Agreement, the Governmental Unit will qualify for
the rebate exemption granted under Section 148(f)(4)(D) of the Code and the Governmental Unit
shall be treated as meeting the requirements of paragraphs (2) and (3) of Section 148(f) of the Code
relating to the required rebate of arbitrage earnings to the United States.

The Governmental Unit hereby further represents and covenants that if it is determined that
rebatable arbitrage, as that term is defined under Section 148 of the Code and related regulations,
is required to be paid to the United States, that it will pay such rebatable arbitrage.

ARTICLE VIII
PREPAYMENT OF LOAN AGREEMENT PAYMENTS

Section 8.1  Prepayment. The Governmental Unit is hereby granted the option to prepay
any of the Principal Components of this Loan Agreement in whole or in part on any day on or after
one (1) year following the Closing Date without penalty or prepayment premium. The
Governmental Unit may designate the due dates of any Principal Components being prepaid in the
event of a partial prepayment. Notice of intent to make such prepayment shall be provided to the
Finance Authority and the Trustee by the Governmental Unit no less than forty-five (45) days prior
to the prepayment date. The Trustee shall recalculate the Loan Agreement Payments due under
this Loan Agreement in the event of a partial prepayment in a manner which is consistent with the
manner in which the Bonds, if any, are prepaid.

Section 8.2 Defeasance. Should the Governmental Unit pay or make provision for
payment of the Loan such that all amounts due pursuant to this Loan Agreement shall be deemed
to have been paid and defeased, then the Loan Agreement Payments hereunder shall also be
deemed to have been paid, the Governmental Unit’s payment obligations hereunder shall be

18
Loan Agreement
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-6218



terminated, this Loan Agreement and all obligations contained herein shall be discharged and the
pledge hereof released. Such payment shall be deemed made when the Governmental Unit has
deposited with an escrow agent, in trust, (i) moneys sufficient to make such payment, and/or (ii)
noncallable Governmental Obligations maturing as to principal and interest in such amount and at
such times as will ensure the availability of sufficient moneys to make such payment and when all
necessary and proper expenses of the Finance Authority have been paid or provided for. In the
event the Governmental Unit makes provisions for defeasance of this Loan Agreement, the
Governmental Unit shall cause to be delivered (1) a report of an independent nationally recognized
certified public accountant verifying the sufficiency of the escrow established to pay this Loan
Agreement in full when due or upon an irrevocably designated prepayment date, and (2) an opinion
of Bond Counsel to the effect that this Loan Agreement is no longer outstanding, each of which
shall be addressed and delivered to the Finance Authority. Governmental Obligations within the
meaning of this Section 8.2, unless otherwise approved by the Finance Authority, shall include
only (1) cash, (2) U.S. Treasury Certificates, Notes and Bonds (including State and Local
Government Series — “SLGs”), and (3) obligations the principal of and interest on which are
unconditionally guaranteed by the United States of America.

ARTICLE IX
INDEMNIFICATION

From and to the extent of the Pledged Revenues, and to the extent permitted by law, the
Governmental Unit shall and hereby agrees to indemnify and save the Finance Authority and the
Trustee harmless against and from all claims, by or on behalf of any person, firm, corporation or
other legal entity arising from the acquisition or operation of the Project during the Loan
Agreement Term, from: (i) any act of negligence or other misconduct of the Governmental Unit
or breach of any covenant or warranty by the Governmental Unit hereunder; and (ii) the incurrence
of any cost or expense in connection with the acquisition or operation of the Project in excess of
the Loan Agreement proceeds and interest on the investment thereof. The Governmental Unit
shall indemnify and save the Finance Authority and the Trustee harmless, from and to the extent
of the available Pledged Revenues, from any such claim arising as aforesaid from (i) or (ii) above,
or in connection with any action or proceeding brought thereon and, upon notice from the Finance
Authority or the Trustee, shall defend the Finance Authority or the Trustee, as applicable, in any
such action or proceeding.

ARTICLE X
EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES

Section 10.1  Events of Default Defined. Any one of the following shall be an Event of
Default under this Loan Agreement:

(a) Failure by the Governmental Unit to pay any amount required to be paid under
this Loan Agreement on the date on which it is due and payable;

(b) Failure by the Governmental Unit to observe and perform any covenant,
condition or agreement on its part to be observed or performed under this Loan Agreement, other
than as referred to in paragraph (a), for a period of thirty (30) days after written notice specifying
such failure and requesting that it be remedied is given to the Governmental Unit by the Finance
Authority or the Trustee unless the Finance Authority and the Trustee shall agree in writing to an

19
Loan Agreement
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-6218



extension of such time prior to its expiration; provided, however, if the failure stated in the notice
can be wholly cured within a period of time not materially detrimental to the rights of the Finance
Authority or the Trustee but cannot be cured within the applicable thirty (30) day period, the
Finance Authority and the Trustee will not unreasonably withhold their consent to an extension of
such time if corrective action is instituted by the Governmental Unit within the applicable period
and diligently pursued until the failure is corrected; and provided, further, that if by reason of force
majeure the Governmental Unit is unable to carry out the agreements on its part herein contained,
the Governmental Unit shall not be deemed in default under this paragraph (b) during the
continuance of such inability (but force majeure shall not excuse any other Event of Default);

(c) Any warranty, representation or other statement by or on behalf of the
Governmental Unit contained in this Loan Agreement or in any instrument furnished in
compliance with or in reference to this Loan Agreement is false or misleading in any material
respect;

(d) A petition is filed against the Governmental Unit under any bankruptcy,
moratorium, reorganization, arrangement, insolvency, readjustment of debt, dissolution or
liquidation law of any jurisdiction, whether now or hereafter in effect, and is not dismissed within
thirty (30) days after such filing, but the Finance Authority and the Trustee shall have the right to
intervene in the proceedings prior to the expiration of such thirty (30) days to protect their interests;

(¢) The Governmental Unit files a petition in voluntary bankruptcy or seeking
relief under any provision of any bankruptcy, moratorium, reorganization, arrangement,
insolvency, readjustment of debt, dissolution or liquidation law of any jurisdiction, whether now
or hereafter in effect, or consents to the filing of any petition against it under any such law; or

() The Governmental Unit admits insolvency or bankruptcy or its inability to
pay its debts as they become due or is generally not paying its debts as such debts become due, or
becomes insolvent or bankrupt or makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors, or a custodian
(including, without limitation, a receiver, liquidator or trustee) of the Governmental Unit for any
of its property is appointed by court order or takes possession thereof and such order remains in
effect or such possession continues for more than thirty (30) days, but the Finance Authority and
the Trustee shall have the right to intervene in the proceedings prior to the expiration of such thirty
(30) days to protect their interests.

Section 10.2 Remedies on Default. Whenever any Event of Default has occurred and is
continuing and subject to Section 10.3 hereof, the Finance Authority or the Trustee may take any
or all of the following actions as may appear necessary or desirable to collect the payments then
due and to become due or to enforce performance of any agreement of the Governmental Unit in
this Loan Agreement or the Intercept Agreement:

(a) By mandamus or other action or proceeding or suit at law or in equity to
enforce the rights of the Finance Authority and the Trustee under this Loan Agreement and the
Intercept Agreement against the Governmental Unit, and compel the Governmental Unit to
perform or carry out its duties under the law and the agreements and covenants required to be
performed by it contained herein; or

20
Loan Agreement
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-6218



(b) By suit in equity to enjoin any acts or things which are unlawful or violate
the rights of the Finance Authority or the Trustee; or

(c) Intervene in judicial proceedings that affect this Loan Agreement or the
Pledged Revenues; or

(d) Cause the Governmental Unit to account as if it were the trustee of an
express trust for all of the Pledged Revenues; or

(e) Take whatever other action at law or in equity may appear necessary or
desirable to collect amounts then due and thereafter to become due under this Loan Agreement or
to enforce any other of its rights thereunder; or

® Apply any amounts in the Program Account toward satisfaction of any of
the obligations of the Governmental Unit under this Loan Agreement.

Section 10.3  Limitations on Remedies. A judgment requiring a payment of money
entered against the Governmental Unit may reach only the available Pledged Revenues.

Section 10.4 No Remedy Exclusive. Subject to Section 10.3 hereof, no remedy herein
conferred upon or reserved to the Finance Authority or the Trustee is intended to be exclusive, and
every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy given
hereunder as now or hereafter existing at law or in equity. No delay or omission to exercise any -
right or power accruing upon any default shall impair any such right or power or shall be construed
to be a waiver thereof, but any such right and power may be exercised from time to time and as
often as may be deemed expedient. In order to entitle the Finance Authority or the Trustee to
exercise any remedy reserved in this Article X, it shall not be necessary to give any notice, other
than such notice as may be required in this Article X.

Section 10.5 Waivers of Events of Default. The Finance Authority or the Trustee may
in its discretion waive by written waiver any Event of Default hereunder and the consequences of”
such an Event of Default provided, however, that there shall not be waived: (i) any Event of
Default in the payment of the principal of this Loan Agreement at the date when due as specified
herein; or (ii) any default in the payment when due of the interest on this Loan Agreement, unless
prior to such waiver or rescission, all arrears of interest, with interest at the rate borne by this Loan
Agreement on all arrears of payments of principal and all expenses of the Finance Authority or the
Trustee, in connection with such Event of Default shall have been paid or provided for, and in case
of any such waiver or rescission, or in case any proceeding taken by the Finance Authority or the
Trustee on account of any such Event of Default shall have been discontinued or abandoned or
determined adversely, then and in every such case, the Finance Authority and the Trustee shall be
restored to their former positions and rights hereunder, respectively, but no such waiver or
rescission shall extend to any subsequent or other Event of Default, or impair any right consequent
thereon.

Section 10.6 No Additional Waiver Implied by One Waiver. In the event that any
agreement contained herein should be breached by either party and thereafter waived by the other

21
Loan Agreement
_Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-6218



party, such waiver shall be limited to the particular breach so waived and shall not be deemed to
waive any other breach hereunder.

Section 10.7 Agreement to Pay Attorneys’ Fees and Expenses. In the event that the
Governmental Unit shall default under any of the provisions hereof and the Finance Authority or
the Trustee shall employ attorneys or incur other expenses for the collection of payments
hereunder, or the enforcement of performance or observance of any obligation or agreement on
the part of the Governmental Unit herein contained, the Governmental Unit agrees that it shall on
demand therefor pay to the Finance Authority or the Trustee, as applicable, the fees of such
attorneys and such other expenses so incurred, to the extent that such attorneys’ fees and expenses
may be determined to be reasonable by a court of competent jurisdiction; provided, however, that
the obligation of the Governmental Unit under this Section shall be limited to expenditures from
and to the extent of the available Pledged Revenues.

ARTICLE XI
MISCELLANEOUS

Section 11.1 Notices. All notices, certificates or other communications hereunder shall
be sufficiently given and shall be deemed given when delivered as follows: 700 East Roosevelt,
Grants, New Mexico 87020, Attention: County Manager, if to the Finance Authority, New Mexico
Finance Authority, 207 Shelby Street, Santa Fe, New Mexico 87501, Attention: Chief Executive
Officer; and if to the Trustee, BOKF, NA, 100 Sun Avenue N.E., Suite 500, Albuquerque, New
Mexico 87109, Attention: Trust Division. The Governmental Unit, the Finance Authority, and
the Trustee may, by notice given hereunder, designate any further or different addresses to which
subsequent notices, certificates or other communications shall be sent.

Section 11.2  Binding Effect. This Loan Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and shall
be binding upon the Finance Authority, the Governmental Unit and their respective successors and
assigns, if any.

Section 11.3  Amendments. The Governmental Unit agrees that this Loan Agreement
will not be amended without the prior written consent of the Finance Authority, and, if the Loan
has been pledged under the Indenture (as defined herein), without the prior written consent of the
Trustee (as defined herein), the Finance Authority and the Governmental Unit, pursuant to the
Indenture.

Section 11.4 No Liability of Individual Officers, Directors or Trustees. No recourse
under or upon any obligation, covenant or agreement contained in this Loan Agreement shall be
had against any member, employee, director or officer, as such, past, present or future, of the
Finance Authority, either directly or through the Finance Authority, or against any officer,
employee, director, trustee or member of the Governing Body, past, present or future, as an
individual so long as such individual was acting in good faith. Any and all personal liability of
every nature, whether at common law or in equity, or by statute, constitution or otherwise, of any
such officer, employee, director, trustee or member of the Governing Body or of the Finance
Authority is hereby expressly waived and released by the Governmental Unit and by the Finance
Authority as a condition of and in consideration for the execution of this Loan Agreement.

22
Loan Agreement
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-6218



Section 11.5  Severability. In the event that any provision of this Loan Agreement, other
than the requirement of the Governmental Unit to pay hereunder, shall be held invalid or
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holdmg shall not invalidate or render
unenforceable any other provision hereof.

Section 11.6  Execution in Counterparts. This Loan Agreement may be simultaneously
executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute
but one and the same instrument.

Section 11.7  Assignment by the Finance Authority. Pursuant to the Indenture, this Loan
Agreement and the Intercept Agreement may be assigned and transferred by the Finance Authority
to the Trustee, which assignment and transfer is hereby acknowledged and approved by the
Governmental Unit.

Section 11.8  Compliance with Governing Law. It is hereby declared by the Governing
Body that it is the intention of the Governmental Unit by the execution of this Loan Agreement to
comply in all respects with the provisions of the New Mexico Constitution and statutes as the same
govern the pledge of the Pledged Revenues to payment of all amounts payable under this Loan
Agreement.

Section 11.9  Applicable Law. This Loan Agreement shall be governed by and construed
in accordance with the laws of the State.

Section 11.10 Captions. The captions or headings herein are for convenience only and in
no way define, limit or describe the scope or intent of any provisions or sections of this Loan
Agreement.

[Signature pages follow]

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]

23
Loan Agreement
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-6218



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Finance Authority, on behalf of itself, and as approved by
the Board of Directors of the Finance Authority on March 28, 2024, has executed this Loan
Agreement in its corporate name by its duly authorized officer; and the Governmental Unit has
caused this Loan Agreement to be executed in its corporate name and the seal of the Governmental
Unit affixed and attested by its duly authorized officers. All of the above are effective as of the
date first above written.

NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY

By

Marquita D. Russel, Chief Executive Officer

PREPARED FOR EXECUTION BY OFFICERS OF
THE NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY:
Sutin, Thayer & Browne A Professional Corporation
As Loan Counsel

By

Suzanne Wood Bruckner

APPROVED FOR EXECUTION BY OFFICERS OF THE
NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY:

By

‘Daniel C. Opperman, Chief Legal Officer

S-1
Loan Agreement
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-6218



CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO

[SEAL] By

Christine Lowrey, Chairman of the Board of
County Commissioners

ATTEST:

By

Michelle Dominguez, County Clerk

4932777

S-2
Loan Agreement
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-6218



Governmental Unit:

Project Description:

Loan Agreement
Principal Amount:

EXHIBIT “A”

TERM SHEET
New Mexico Finance Authority Loan No. 6218
Cibola County, New Mexico

To purchase a firefighting apparatus and related equipment

$210,600

Disadvantagéd Funding Amount: ~ $150,000

Pledged Revenues:

The distribution of State Fire Protection Funds to the
Governmental Unit made periodically by the State Treasurer
pursuant to Section 59A-53-7, NMSA 1978.

Coverage Ratio: 200%

Distributing State Agency: State Treasurer

Currently Outstanding Parity

Obligations: : N/A

Additional Parity Bonds Test: 125%

Authorizing Legislation: Resolution No. adopted on May 23, 2024
Closing Date: July 5, 2024

Blended Interest Rate: 2.167566%

Program Account Deposit: $210,600

Finance Authority Debt Service

Account Deposit: $0.00

First Interest Payment Date:‘ November 1, 2025
First Principal Payment Date: May 1, 2026

Final Payment Date: May 1, 2038

Loan Agreement

A-1

Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-6218



PROGRAM ACCOUNT DEPOSITS MUST BE USED WITHIN THREE YEARS UNLESS A
THE FINANCE AUTHORITY APPROVES A LONGER PERIOD IN WRITING

A-2
Loan Agreement
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-6218



EXHIBIT “B”
DEBT SERVICE SCHEDULE FOR LOAN REPAYMENT

[SEE ATTACHED]

B-1
Loan Agreement
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-6218



EXHIBIT “C”

FORM OF REQUISITION

RE:  $210,600 Loan Agreement by and between the Cibola County, New Mex1co and the
New Mexico Finance Authority (the “Loan Agreement”).

TO: BOKF, NA
c/o New Mexico Finance Authority
PPRF@nmfa.net

You are hereby authorized to disburse from the Program Account - Cibola County, New Mexico
(2024 Fire Equipment Loan), with regard to the above-referenced Loan Agreement the following:

LOAN NO. PPRF-6218 CLOSING DATE: July 5, 2024

REQUISITION NUMBER:

NAME AND ADDRESS OF PAYEE:

AMOUNT OF PAYMENT: §$

PURPOSE OF PAYMENT:

Each obligation, item of cost or expense mentioned herein is for costs of the Project, is due and
payable, has not been the subject of any previous requisition and is a proper charge against the
Program Account — Cibola County, New Mexico (2024 Fire Equipment Loan).

All representations contained in the Loan Agreement and the related closing documents remain
true and correct and (the) Cibola County, New Mexico, is not in breach of any of the covenants
contained therein.

If this is the final requisition, payment of costs of the Project is complete or, if not complete, (the)
Cibola County shall and understands its obligation to complete the acquisition of the Project from
other legally available funds.

Capitalized terms used herein, are used as defined or used in the Loan Agreement.

DATED: By
Authorized Officer
Title
(Print Name and Title)
C-1

Loan Agreement
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-6218



EXHIBIT “D”

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION
RE:  $210,600 Loan Agreement by and between the Cibola County, New Mexico, and the
New Mexico Finance Authority (the “Loan Agreement”).

TO:  New Mexico Finance Authority
PPRF@nmfa.net

Susen Ellis

Assistant Vice President, Corporate Trust
BOKF, NA

100 Sun Avenue NE, Suite 500
Albuquerque, New Mexico 87109

LOAN NO.: PPRF-6218 CLOSING DATE: July 5, 2024

In accordance with Section 6.3 of the Loan Agreement, the undersigned states, to the best of his
or her knowledge, that the acquisition of the Project has been completed and accepted by the
Governmental Unit, and all costs have been paid as of the date of this Certificate. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, this certification is given without prejudice to any rights against third parties which
exist at the date of this Certificate or which may subsequently come into being.

Capitalized terms used herein, are used as defined or used in the Loan Agreement.

DATED: By
Authorized Officer of Governmental Unit
Title
Print Name and Title
D-1

Loan Agreement
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-6218



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CIBOLA COUNTY

The Board of County Commissioners (the “Governing Body”) of Cibola County,
New Mexico, met in regular session in full conformity with law and the rules and regulations of the
Governing Body at 700 East Roosevelt, Suite 50, Grants, NM 87020, New Mexico being the meeting
place of the Governing Body for the regular meeting held on the May 23, 2024, at the hour of 5:00
p-m. Upon roll call, the following members were found to be present:

‘

Present:

Absent:

Also Present:

Thereupon, there was officially filed with the County Clerk a copy of a proposed resolution
in final form.

Authorizing Resolution
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-6218



CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-34

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A LOAN AGREEMENT
AND INTERCEPT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW
MEXICO (THE “GOVERNMENTAL UNIT”) AND THE NEW MEXICO
FINANCE AUTHORITY (THE “FINANCE AUTHORITY”), EVIDENCING A
SPECIAL, LIMITED OBLIGATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL UNIT TO PAY
A PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $210,600 TOGETHER WITH INTEREST
THEREON, FOR THE PURPOSE OF PURCHASING A NEW FIREFIGHTING
APPARATUS AND RELATED EQUIPMENT FOR THE CIBOLA COUNTY, EL
MORRO VALLEY VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT WITHIN THE
GOVERNMENTAL UNIT; PROVIDING FOR THE PLEDGE AND PAYMENT OF
THE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST DUE UNDER THE LOAN AGREEMENT
SOLELY FROM THE STATE FIRE PROTECTION FUND REVENUES
DISTRIBUTED BY THE STATE TREASURER TO THE GOVERNMENTAL
UNIT PURSUANT TO SECTION 59A-53-7, NMSA 1978; PROVIDING FOR THE
DISTRIBUTION OF STATE FIRE PROTECTION FUND REVENUES TO BE
REDIRECTED BY THE STATE TREASURER TO THE FINANCE AUTHORITY
OR ITS ASSIGNS FOR THE PAYMENT OF PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST DUE
ON THE LOAN AGREEMENT PURSUANT TO AN INTERCEPT AGREEMENT;
APPROVING THE FORM AND TERMS OF, AND OTHER DETAILS
CONCERNING THE LOAN AGREEMENT AND INTERCEPT AGREEMENT;
SETTING THE MAXIMUM INTEREST RATE OF THE LOAN; RATIFYING
ACTIONS HERETOFORE TAKEN; REPEALING ALL ACTION INCONSISTENT
WITH THIS RESOLUTION; AND AUTHORIZING THE TAKING OF OTHER
ACTIONS IN CONNECTION WITH THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF
THE LOAN AGREEMENT AND INTERCEPT AGREEMENT.

Capitalized terms used in the following recitals have the same meaning as defined in Section
1 of this Resolution unless the context requires otherwise.

WHEREAS, the Governmental Unit is a legally and regularly created, established, organized
and existing county under the general laws of the State; and

WHEREAS, the Governing Body has determined and hereby determines that the Project may
be financed with amounts borrowed under the Loan Agreement and that it is in the best interest of the
Governmental Unit and its residents that the Loan Agreement and Intercept Agreement be executed
and delivered and that the financing of the acquisition of the Project take place by executing and
delivering the Loan Agreement and Intercept Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Governmental Unit may use the Pledged Revenues to finance the Project;
and

WHEREAS, the Governing Body has determined pursuant to the Act that it may lawfully
pledge the Pledged Revenues for the payment of amounts due under the Loan Agreement; and

. 2
Authorizing Resolution
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-6218



WHEREAS, other than as described in Exhibit “A” to the Loan Agreement, the Pledged
Revenues have not been pledged to secure the payment of any obligation which is currently
outstanding; and

WHEREAS, the Loan Agreement shall be a special, limited obligation of the Governmental
Unit, payable solely from the Pledged Revenues and shall not constitute a general obligation of the
Governmental Unit, or a debt or pledge of the full faith and credit of the Governmental Unit or the
State; and

WHEREAS, the Governmental Unit desires to provide that distributions of the Pledged
Revenues be redirected to the Finance Authority or its assigns pursuant to the Intercept Agreement
between the Governmental Unit and the Finance Authority (the “Intercept Agreement”) for the
payment of amounts due under the Loan Agreement; and

WHEREAS, there have been presented to the Governing Body and there presently are on file
with the County Clerk this Resolution and the forms of the Loan Agreement and Intercept Agreement,
which are incorporated by reference and considered to be a part hereof; and

WHEREAS, the Governing Body hereby determines that the Project to be financed by the
Loan is to be used for governmental purposes of the Governmental Unit and will not be used for
purposes which would cause the Loan Agreement to be deemed a “private activity bond” as defined
by the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended; and

WHEREAS, the Governing Body intends by this Resolution to authorize the execution and
delivery of the Loan Agreement in the amount and for the purposes set forth herein; and

WHEREAS, all required authorizations, consents and approvals in connection with (i) the use
and pledge of the Pledged Revenues to the Finance Authority (or its assigns) for the payment of the
amounts due under the Loan Agreement, (ii) the use of the proceeds of the Loan Agreement to finance
the Project, and (iii) the authorization, execution and delivery of the Loan Agreement and Intercept
Agreement which are required to have been obtained by the date of this Resolution, have been
obtained or are reasonably expected to be obtained.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF CIBOLA
COUNTY, NEW MEXICO:

Section 1. Definitions. As used in this Resolution, the following terms shall, for all
purposes, have the meanings herein specified, unless the context clearly requires otherwise (such
meanings to be equally applicable to both the singular and the plural forms of the terms defined):

“Act” means the general laws of the State, Sections 4-62-1 through 4-62-10 for county, NMSA
1978, as amended, Sections 59A-53-1 through 59A-53-19, NMSA 1978, as amended, and enactments
of the Governing Body relating to the Loan Agreement and Intercept Agreement, including this
Resolution.

Authorizing Resolution
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-6218



“Aggregate Annual Debt Service Requirement” means the total principal and interest
payments due and payable pursuant to the Loan Agreement and on all Parity Obligations secured by
a pledge of the Pledged Revenues for any one Fiscal Year.

“Authorized Officers” means the Chairman, Vice Chairman, Finance Director, County
Manager, and County Clerk.

“Bonds” means public project revolving fund revenue bonds, if any, issued hereafter by the
Finance Authority to fund or reimburse the Loan Agreement.

“Closing Date” means the date of execution, delivery and funding of the Loan Agreement.

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the applicable regulations
- thereunder.

“Completion Date” means the date of final payment of the cost of the Project.

“District” means the El Morro Valley Volunteer Fire Department within the Governmental
Unit.

“Distributing State Agency” means the department or agency of the State, as described on the
Term Sheet, authorized to distribute the Pledged Revenues on behalf of the Governmental Unit.

“Expenses” means the cost of issuance of the Loan Agreement and the costs of issuance of
the Bonds, if any, and the periodic and regular fees and expenses incurred by the Finance Authority
in administering the Loan Agreement, including legal fees.

“Finance Authority” means the New Mexico Finance Authority.

“Finance Authority Debt Service Account” means the debt service account in the name of the
Governmental Unit established under the Indenture and held by the Finance Authority to pay principal
and interest, if any, on the Loan Agreement as the same become due.

“Fiscal Year” means the period commencing on July 1 in each calendar year and ending on
the last day of June of the next succeeding calendar year, or any other twelve-month period which
any appropriate authority may hereafter establish for the Governmental Unit as its fiscal year.

“Governing Body” means the Board of County Commissioners of the Governmental Unit, or
any future successor governing body of the Governmental Unit.

“Governmental Unit” means Cibola County, New Mexico.
“Herein,” “hereby,” “hereunder,” “hereof,” “hereinabove” and “hereafter” refer to this entire

Resolution and not solely to the particular section or paragraph of this Resolution in which such word
is used.

Authorizing Resolution
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-6218



“Indenture” means the General Indenture of Trust and Pledge dated as of June 1, 1995, as
amended and supplemented, by and between the Finance Authority and the Trustee, as successor
trustee, or the Subordinated General Indenture of Trust and Pledge dated as of March 1, 2005, as
supplemented, by and between the Finance Authority and the Trustee, as successor trustee, as
determined by the Finance Authority pursuant to a Pledge Notification or Supplemental Indenture (as
defined in the Indenture).

“Intercept Agreement” means the Intercept Agreement, dated the Closing Date, between the
Governmental Unit and Finance Authority providing for the direct payment by the Distributing State
Agency to the Finance Authority of Pledged Revenues in amounts sufficient to pay principal and
interest due on the Loan Agreement, and any amendments or supplements to the Intercept Agreement.

“Loan” means the funds to be loaned to the Governmental Unit by the Finance Authority
pursuant to the Loan Agreement.

“Loan Agreement” means the Loan Agreement dated the Closing Date between the Finance
" Authority and the Governmental Unit which provides for the financing of the Project and requires
payments by or on behalf of the Governmental Unit to the Finance Authority and/or the Trustee and
any amendments or supplements thereto, and including the exhibits attached to the Loan Agreement.

“Loan Agreement Principal Amount” means the original principal amount of the Loan
Agreement as shown on the Term Sheet.

“NMSA” means the New Mexico Statutes Annotated, 1978, as amended and supplemented.

“Parity Obligations” means the Loan Agreement and any other obligations, now or hereafter
issued or incurred, payable from or secured by a lien or pledge of the Pledged Revenues and issued
with a lien on the Pledged Revenues on parity with the Loan Agreement, including those obligations
described on the Term Sheet.

“Pledged Revenues” means the State Fire Protection Fund revenues distributed to the
Governmental Unit for the District, which is utilizing the Project and benefiting from the Loan
Agreement, which distribution is made periodically by the State Treasurer pursuant to Section 59A-
53-7, NMSA 1978, as amended, in the amount certified by the State Fire Marshal.

“Program Account” means the account in the name of the Governmental Unit established
pursuant to the Indenture and held by the Trustee for the deposit of the net proceeds of the Loan
Agreement for disbursal to the Governmental Unit for payment of the costs of the Project.

“Project” means the project described in Exhibit “A” to the Loan Agreement.

“Resolution” means this Resolution No. 2024-34 adopted by the Governing Body on May 23,
2024 approving the Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement and pledging the Pledged Revenues
to the payment of the Loan Agreement as shown on the Term Sheet, as supplemented and amended

from time to time.

“State” means the State of New Mexico.

Authorizing Resolution
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-6218



“Term Sheet” means Exhibit “A” to the Loan Agreement.

“Trustee” means BOKF, NA, Albuquerque, New Mexico, or any successor trustee company,
national or state banking association or financial institution at the time appointed Trustee by the
Finance Authority.

Section 2. Ratification. All actions heretofore taken (not inconsistent with the provisions
of this Resolution) by the Governing Body and officers of the Governmental Unit directed toward the
acquisition of the Project and the execution and delivery of the Loan Agreement and the Intercept
Agreement, be, and the same hereby are, ratified, approved and confirmed.

Section 3. Authorization of the Project, the Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement.
The acquisition of the Project and the method of financing the Project through execution and delivery
of the Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement are hereby authorized and ordered. The Project
is for the benefit and use of the Governmental Unit.

Section 4. Findings. The Governmental Unit hereby declares that it has considered all
relevant information and data and hereby makes the following findings:

A. The Project is needed to meet the needs of the Governmental Unit and its
residents and the issuance and delivery of the Loan Agreement is necessary and advisable.

B. Moneys available and on hand for the Project from all sources other than the
Loan are not sufficient to defray the cost of acquiring the Project.

C. The Pledged Revenues may lawfully be pledged to secure the payment of
amounts due under the Loan Agreement.

D. It is economically feasible to defray, in whole or in part, the costs of the Project
by the execution and delivery of the Loan Agreement.

E. The Project and the execution and delivery of the Loan Agreement and the
Intercept Agreement pursuant to the Act to provide funds for the financing of the Project are necessary
and in the interest of the public health, safety and welfare of the residents of the Governmental Unit.

F. The Governmental Unit will acquire the Project, in whole or in part, with the
net proceeds of the Loan. ‘

G. Other than as described in the Term Sheet, the Governmental Unit does not
have any outstanding obligations payable from the Pledged Revenues which it has incurred or will
incur prior to the initial execution and delivery of the Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement.

H. The net effective interest rate on the Loan does not exceed twelve percent
12.0%) per annum, which is the maximum rate permitted by State law.
p y

Section 5. Loan Agreement and Intercept Agreement - Authorization and Detail.
6

Authorizing Resolution :
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-6218



A. Authorization. This Resolution has been adopted by the affirmative vote of at
least a two thirds (2/3) majority of all of the members of the Governing Body. For the purpose of
protecting the public health, conserving the property, protecting the general welfare and prosperity of
the residents of the Governmental Unit and acquiring the Project, it is hereby declared necessary that
the Governmental Unit, pursuant to the Act, execute and deliver the Loan Agreement and the Intercept
Agreement evidencing a special, limited obligation of the Governmental Unit to pay a principal
amount of $210,600 plus interest thereon, and the execution and delivery of the Loan Agreement and
the Intercept Agreement are hereby authorized. The Governmental Unit shall use the proceeds of the
Loan to (i) finance the acquisition of the Project; or (ii) make a deposit to the Finance Authority Debt
Service Account. The Project will be owned by the Governmental Unit.

B. Detail. The Loan Agreement and Intercept Agreement shall be in substantially
the forms of the Loan Agreement and Intercept Agreement presented at the meeting of the Governing
Body at which this Resolution was adopted. The Loan shall be in an original aggregate principal
amount of $210,600, shall be payable in installments of principal due on May 1 of the years designated
in Exhibit “B” to the Loan Agreement and bear interest payable on May 1 and November 1 of each
year, beginning on November 1, 2025 at the rates designated in Exhibit “B” to the Loan Agreement.

Section 6. Approval of Loan Agreement and Intercept Agreement. The forms of the Loan
Agreement and the Intercept Agreement, as presented at the meeting of the Governing Body at which
this Resolution was adopted are hereby approved. Authorized Officers are hereby individually
authorized to execute, acknowledge and deliver the Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement,
with such changes, insertions and omissions that are consistent with this Resolution as may be
approved by such individual Authorized Officers, and the County Clerk is hereby authorized to affix
the seal of the Governmental Unit on the Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement and attest the
same. The execution of the Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement by an Authorized Officer
shall be conclusive evidence of such approval.

Section 7. Special Limited Obligation. The Loan Agreement shall be secured by the
pledge of the Pledged Revenues as set forth in the Loan Agreement and shall be payable solely from
the Pledged Revenues. The Loan Agreement, together with other obligations of the Governmental
Unit thereunder, shall be a special, limited obligation of the Governmental Unit, payable solely from
the Pledged Revenues as provided in this Resolution and the Loan Agreement and shall not constitute
a general obligation of the Governmental Unit or the State, and the holders of the Loan Agreement
may not look to any general or other fund of the Governmental Unit for payment of the obligations
thereunder. Nothing contained in this Resolution or in the Loan Agreement, or any other instruments,
shall be construed as obligating the Governmental Unit (except with respect to the application of the
Pledged Revenues), as incurring a pecuniary liability or a charge upon the general credit of the
Governmental Unit or against its taxing power, nor shall a breach of any agreement contained in this
Resolution, the Loan Agreement, or any other instrument impose any pecuniary liability upon the
Governmental Unit or any charge upon its general credit or against its taxing power. The Loan
Agreement shall never constitute an indebtedness of the Governmental Unit within the meaning of
any State constitutional provision or statutory limitation and shall never constitute or give rise to a
pecuniary liability of the Governmental Unit or a charge against its general credit or taxing power.
Nothing herein shall prevent the Governmental Unit from applying other funds of the Governmental

Authorizing Resolution
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-6218



Unit legally available therefore to payments required by the Loan Agreement, in its sole and absolute
discretion.

Secﬁon 8. Disposition of Proceeds: Completion of Acquisition of the Project.

A. Program Account, Finance Authority Debt Service Account. The
Governmental Unit hereby consents to creation of the Finance Authority Debt Service Account to be
held by the Finance Authority and to the Program Account, to be held by the Trustee pursuant to the
Indenture, each in connection with the Loan. The Governmental Unit hereby approves: (i) the deposit
of a portion of the proceeds of the Loan Agreement in the Program Account and the Finance Authority
Debt Service Account all as set forth in Exhibit “A” to the Loan Agreement.

The proceeds derived from the execution and delivery of the Loan Agreement shall be
deposited promptly upon the receipt thereof in the Program Account, Loan Agreement Reserve
Account and Finance Authority Debt Service Account shall be paid to the Finance Authority, all as
provided in the Loan Agreement and the Indenture.

Until the Completion Date, the money in the Program Account shall be used and paid
out solely for the purpose of acquiring the Project in compliance with applicable law and the
provisions of the Loan Agreement and the Indenture.

The Governmental Unit will acquire the Project with all due diligence.

B. Completion of Acquisition of the Project. Upon the Completion Date, the
Governmental Unit shall execute and send to the Finance Authority a certificate stating that
acquisition of and payment for the Project have been completed. As soon as practicable, and, in any
event, not more than sixty (60) days from the Completion Date, any balance remaining in the Program
Account shall be transferred and deposited into the Finance Authority Debt Service Account, as
provided in the Loan Agreement and the Indenture.

C. Finance Authority and Trustee Not Responsible. The Finance Authority and
the Trustee shall in no manner be responsible for the application or disposal by the Governmental
Unit or by its officers of the funds derived from the Loan Agreement or of any other funds herein
designated.

Section 9. Deposit of Pledged Revenues, Distributions of the Pledged Revenues and Flow
of Funds.

A. Deposit of Pledged Revenues. Pursuant to the Intercept Agreement, Pledged
Revenues shall be paid directly by the Distributing State Agency to the Finance Authority for deposit
in the Finance Authority Debt Service Account and remittance to the Trustee in an amount sufficient
to pay the principal and interest due under the Loan Agreement.

B. Termination on Deposits to Maturity. No payment shall be made into the
Finance Authority Debt Service Account if the amount in the Finance Authority Debt Service
Account totals a sum at least equal to the entire aggregate amount to become due as to principal,
interest on, and any other amounts due under, the Loan Agreement in which case moneys in such

8

Authorizing Resolution
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-6218



account in an amount at least equal to such principal and interest requirements shall be used solely to
pay such obligations as the same become due, and any moneys in excess thereof in such accounts
shall be transferred to the Governmental Unit and used as provided below.

C. Use of Surplus Revenues. After making all the payments hereinabove required
to be made by this Section and any payments required by outstanding Parity Obligations, any moneys
remaining in the Finance Authority Debt Service Account shall be transferred to the Governmental
Unit on a timely basis and shall be applied to any other lawful purpose, including, but not limited to,
the payment of any Parity Obligations or bonds, or obligations subordinate and junior to the Loan
Agreement, or other purposes authorized by the Governmental Unit, the Constitution and laws of the
State, as the Governmental Unit may from time to time determine.

Section 10.  Lien on Pledged Revenues. Pursuant to the Loan Agreement, the Pledged
Revenues are hereby authorized to be pledged to, and are hereby pledged to, and the Governmental
Unit grants a security interest therein for, the payment of the principal, interest and any other amounts
due under the Loan Agreement, subject to the uses hereof permitted by and the priorities set forth in
this Resolution. The Loan Agreement constitutes an irrevocable and first lien, but not necessarily an
exclusive first lien, on the Pledged Revenues as set forth herein and therein and the Governmental
Unit shall not create a lien on the Pledged Revenues. superior to that of the Loan Agreement.

Section 11.  Authorized Officers. Authorized Officers are hereby individually authorized
and directed to execute and deliver any and all papers, instruments, opinions, affidavits and other
documents and to do and cause to be done any and all acts and things necessary or proper for carrying
out this Resolution, the Loan Agreement, the Intercept Agreement and all other transactions
contemplated hereby and thereby. Authorized Officers are hereby individually authorized to do all
acts and things required of them by this Resolution, the Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement
for the full, punctual and complete performance of all the terms, covenants and agreements contained
in this Resolution, the Loan Agreement and Intercept Agreement, including but not limited to, the
execution and delivery of closing documents in connection with the execution and delivery of the
Loan Agreement, Intercept Agreement and the publication of the summary of this Resolution set out
in Section 17 of this Resolution (with such changes, additions and deletions as may be necessary).

Section 12.  Amendment of Resolution. Prior to the date of the initial delivery of the Loan
Agreement to the Finance Authority, the provisions of this Resolution may be supplemented or
amended by resolution of the Governing Body with respect to any changes which are not inconsistent
with the substantive provisions of this Resolution. This Resolution may be amended without receipt
by the Governmental Unit of any additional consideration, but only with the prior written consent of
the Finance Authority.

Section 13'. Resolution Irrepealable. After the Loan Agreement and Intercept Agreement
have been executed and delivered, this Resolution shall be and remain irrepealable until all obligations
due under the Loan Agreement shall be fully paid, canceled and discharged, as herein provided.

Section 14.  Severability Clause. If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this
Resolution shall for any reason be held to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or
unenforceability of such section, paragraph, clause or provision shall not affect any of the remaining
provisions of this Resolution.

9

Authorizing Resolution
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-6218



Section 15.  Repealer Clause. All bylaws, orders, resolutions, and ordinances, or parts
thereof, inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed to the extent only of such inconsistency. This
repealer shall not be construed to revive any bylaw, order, resolution or ordinance, or part thereof,
heretofore repealed.

Section 16.  Effective Date. Upon due adoption of this Resolution, it shall be recorded in
the book of the Governmental Unit kept for that purpose, authenticated by the signatures of the
Chairman and County Clerk of the Governmental Unit, and the title and general summary of the
subject matter contained in this Resolution (set out in Section 17 below) shall be published in a
newspaper which maintains an office and is of general circulation in the Governmental Unit, or posted
in accordance with law, and said Resolution shall be in full force and effect thereafter, in accordance
with law.

Section 17.  General Summary for Publication. Pursuant to the general laws of the State,
the title and a general summary of the subject matter contained in this Resolution shall be published
in substantially the following form:

(Form of Summary of Resolution for Publication)

Cibola County, New Mexico
Notice of Adoption of Resolution

Notice is hereby given of the title and of a general summary of the subject matter contained
in Resolution No. 2024-34, duly adopted and approved by the Governing Body of Cibola County,
New Mexico, on May 23, 2024. A complete copy of the Resolution is available for public inspection
during the normal and regular business hours of the County Clerk, 700 East Roosevelt Avenue,
Grants, New Mexico 87020.

The title of the Resolution is:

CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-34

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A LOAN AGREEMENT
AND INTERCEPT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW
MEXICO (THE “GOVERNMENTAL UNIT”) AND THE NEW MEXICO
FINANCE AUTHORITY (THE “FINANCE AUTHORITY”), EVIDENCING A
SPECIAL, LIMITED OBLIGATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL UNIT TO PAY
A PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $210,600 TOGETHER WITH INTEREST
THEREON, FOR THE PURPOSE OF PURCHASING A NEW FIREFIGHTING
APPARATUS AND RELATED EQUIPMENT FOR THE CIBOLA COUNTY, EL
MORRO VALLEY VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT; PROVIDING FOR THE
PLEDGE AND PAYMENT OF THE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST DUE UNDER
THE LOAN AGREEMENT SOLELY FROM THE STATE FIRE PROTECTION
FUND REVENUES DISTRIBUTED BY THE STATE TREASURER TO THE
GOVERNMENTAL UNIT PURSUANT TO SECTION 59A-53-7, NMSA 1978;

10
Authorizing Resolution
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-6218



PROVIDING FOR THE DISTRIBUTION OF STATE FIRE PROTECTION FUND
REVENUES TO BE REDIRECTED BY THE STATE TREASURER TO THE
FINANCE AUTHORITY OR ITS ASSIGNS FOR THE PAYMENT OF PRINCIPAL
AND INTEREST DUE ON THE LOAN AGREEMENT PURSUANT TO AN
INTERCEPT AGREEMENT; APPROVING THE FORM AND TERMS OF, AND
OTHER DETAILS CONCERNING THE LOAN AGREEMENT AND INTERCEPT
AGREEMENT; SETTING THE MAXIMUM INTEREST RATE OF THE LOAN;
RATIFYING ACTIONS HERETOFORE TAKEN; REPEALING ALL ACTION
INCONSISTENT WITH THIS RESOLUTION; AND AUTHORIZING THE
TAKING OF OTHER ACTIONS IN CONNECTION WITH THE EXECUTION
AND DELIVERY OF THE LOAN AGREEMENT AND INTERCEPT
AGREEMENT. '

A general summary of the subject matter of the Resolution is contained in its title. This
notice constitutes compliance with Section 6-14-6, NMSA 1978.

(End of Form of Summary for Publication)

11
Authorizing Resolution
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-6218



PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS MAY 23, 2024.

CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO

By:

Christine Lowrey, Chairman of
the Board of County Commissioners

[SEAL]
ATTEST:

By:
Michelle Dominguez, County Clerk

12

Authorizing Resolution
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-6218



Commissioner then moved adoption of the foregoing Resolution, duly
seconded by Commissioner

The motion to adopt said Resolution, upon being put to a vote, was passed and adopted on the
following recorded vote:

Those Voting Aye:

Those Voting Nay:

Those Absent:

(_ ) members of the Governing Body having voted in favor of said motion, the
Chairman declared said motion carried and said Resolution adopted, whereupon the County Clerk
signed the Resolution upon the records of the minutes of the Governing Body.

13

Authorizing Resolution
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-6218



After consideration of matters not relating to the Resolution, the meeting on the motion duly
made, seconded and unanimously carried, was adjourned.

CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO

By:

Christine Lowery, Chairman of
the Board of County Commissioners
[SEAL]

ATTEST:

By:

Michelle Dominguez, County Clerk

14
Authorizing Resolution
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-6218



EXHIBIT “A”

Meeting Agenda
of the May 23, 2023
Board of County Commissioners Meeting

(See attached)

Authorizing Resolution
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-6218



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CIBOLA COUNTY

I, Michelle Dominguez, the duly qualified and acting County Clerk of Cibola County, New
Mexico (the “Governmental Unit”), do hereby certify:

1. The foregoing pages are a true, perfect, and complete copy of the record of the
proceedings of the Board of County Commissioners of Cibola County, New Mexico (the
“Governing Body™), constituting the governing body of the Governmental Unit had and taken at a
duly called regular meeting held at 700 East Roosevelt, Grants New Mexico 87020, on May 23,
2024, at the hour of 5:00 p.m., insofar as the same relate to the execution and delivery of the
proposed Loan Agreement and Intercept Agreement, a copy of each of which is set forth in the
official records of the proceedings of the Governing Body kept in my office. None of the action
taken has been rescinded, repealed, or modified.

2. Said proceedings were duly had and taken as therein shown, the meeting therein was
duly held, and the persons therein named were present at said meeting, as therein shown.

3. Notice of said meeting was given in compliance with the permitted methods of giving
notice of regular meetings of the Governing Body as required by the Governmental Unit’s open

meetings standards presently in effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this 5th day of July, 2024.

CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO

By:

Michelle Dominguez, County Clerk

[SEAL]

6976650

Authorizing Resolution
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-6218



EXHIBIT “B”

NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY TAX REPRESENTATIONS CERTIFICATE

The undersigned hereby certifies as follows with respect to the $210,600 Loan Agreement' |
dated July 5, 2024 (the “Loan”) from the New Mexico Finance Authority (the “Finance
Authority”) to Cibola County, New Mexico (the “Governmental Unit”);

1. The Finance Authority is making the Loan for its own account (and not on behalf
of another) in the principal amount of $210,600, without accrued interest. The Finance Authority
is not acting as an Underwriter with respect to the Loan. The Finance Authority has no present
intention to sell, reoffer, or otherwise dispose of the Loan (or any portion of the Loan or any interest
in the Loan). The Finance Authority has not contracted with any person pursuant to a written
agreement to have such person participate in the initial sale of the Loan and the Finance Authority
has not agreed with the Governmental Unit pursuant to a written agreement to sell the Loan to
persons other than the Finance Authority, therefore the “issue price” of the Loan is $210,600.

2. The Arbitrage Yield on the Loan, calculated in accordance with the applicable U.S.
Treasury Regulations from interest to be paid on the Loan, is 2.1204%.

3. The Weighted Average Maturity of the Loan, calculated in accordance with the
applicable U.S. Treasury Regulations, is 8.2745 years. ‘

4. The undersigned understands that the statements made herein will be relied upon
by the Governmental Unit in its effort to complete the Information Return for Tax-Exempt
Governmental Obligations (Form 8038-G), required to be filed for the Loan pursuant to the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and with regard to establishing facts and
circumstances relied on by the Governmental Unit and bond counsel in connection with the
execution and delivery of the Loan and the exclusion of interest on the Loan from gross income
for federal income tax purposes. Such reliance is hereby authorized and approved.

Dated this July 5, 2024.

NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY

By:

Marquita D. Russel, Chief Executive Officer
6976649

PPRF-6218



May 6, 2024 3:02 pm Prepared by New Mexico Finance Authority _ (Finance 8.700 clients:CCIBOLA-PPRF6218) Page 4

BOND DEBT SERVICE

Cibola County
2024 Fire Equipment Loan

Period

Ending Principal Coupon  Interest Debt Service
05/01/2025
05/01/2026 9,878 3.170% 8,715.66 18,593.66
05/01/2027 14,446 3.010% 4,469.86 18,915.86
05/01/2028 14,931 2.880% 4,035.02 18,966.02
05/01/2029 15,418 - 2.840% 3,605.02 19,023.02
05/01/2030 15,919 ** o 3,167.14 19,086.14
05/01/2031 16,312 2.000% 2,800.16 19,112.16
05/01/2032 16,639 2.000% 2,473.92 19,112.92
05/01/2033 16,971 2.000% 2,141.14 19,112.14
05/01/2034 17,311 2.000% 1,801.72 19,112.72
05/01/2035 17,657 2.000% 1,455.50 19,112,50
05/01/2036 18,010 2.000% 1,102.36 19,112.36
05/01/2037 18,370 2.000% 742.16 19,112.16
05/01/2038 . 18,738 2.000% 374.76 19,112.76

210,600 36,884.42 247,484.42

Note: The County of Cibola is 87.56% of the State of NM MHI




o 8038-G

(Rev. October 2021) » Under Internal Revenue Code section 149(e)

» See separate instructions.

Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

Information Return for Tax-Exempt Governmental Bonds

OMB No. 1545-0047

Caution: /f the issue price is under $100,000, use Form 8038-GC.
» Go to www.irs.gov/F8038G for instructions and the latest information.

Reporting Authority

Check box if Amended Return » [ ]

1 Issuer’s name

Cibola County

2 Issuer’s employer identification number (EIN)

85-0291095

3a Name of person (other than issuer) with whom the IRS may communicate about this return (see instructions)

3b Telephone number of other person shown on 3a

4 Number and street (or P.O. box if mail is not delivered to street address) Room/suite

700 East Roosevelt Ave., Suite 50

5 Report number (For IRS Use Only)

|31 |

6 City, town, or post office, state, and ZIP code
Grants, New Mexico 87020

7 Date of issue

07/05/2024

8 Name of issue

Loan Counsel, Cibola County, Fire Equipment, PPRF-6218

9 CUSIP number

10a Name and title of officer or other employee of the issuer whom the IRS may call for more information

Paul Ludi, Finance Director

10b Telephone number of officer or other
employee shown on 10a

505-285-2516

m Type of Issue (Enter the issue price.) See the instructions and attach schedule.

11 Education . 11
12  Health and hospltal 12
13  Transportation 13
14  Public safety . . 14 210,600
15  Environment (including sewage bonds) 15
16  Housing 16
17  Utilities . 17
18  Other. Describe P 18
19a If bonds are TANs or RANSs, check only box 19a . > []

b If bonds are BANs, check only box 19b . > [
20 If bonds are in the form of a lease or installment sale check box > []
Pa Description of Bonds. Complete for the entire issue for WhICh thls form is bemg filed.

(a) Final maturity date (b) Issue price © S'tiz:aegtrri‘:ir;i?;on av(:r)a\cfgv::'ggﬁcrii ty (e) Yield
21 05/01/2038 $ 210,600|$ 210,600 8.2745 years 2.1204 %
Pa Uses of Proceeds of Bond Issue (including underwriters’ discount)
22  Proceeds used for accrued interest . 22 210,600
23  Issue price of entire issue (enter amount from line 21 column (b)) . 23
24  Proceeds used for bond issuance costs (including underwriters’ discount) 24
25 Proceeds used for credit enhancement . 25
26  Proceeds allocated to reasonably required reserve or replacement fund 26
27  Proceeds used to refund prior tax-exempt bonds. Complete Part V . 27
28  Proceeds used to refund prior taxable bonds. Complete Part V 28
29 Total (add lines 24 through 28) . 29
Nonrefunding proceeds of the issue (subtract Ilne 29 from Ilne 23 and enter amount here) 30 210,600
Description of Refunded Bonds. Complete this part only for refunding bonds.

31 Enter the remaining weighted average maturity of the tax-exempt bonds to be refunded . | 2 years
32  Enter the remaining weighted average maturity of the taxable bonds to be refunded . > years
33  Enter the last date on which the refunded tax-exempt bonds will be called (MM/DD/YYYY) . >
34 _ Enter the date(s) the refunded bonds were issued » (MM/DD/YYYY)

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see separate instructions. Cat. No. 63773S

Form 8038-G (Rev. 10-2021)



Form 8038-G (Rev. 10-2021)

Page 2

- 1g8"f Miscellaneous

35  Enter the amount of the state volume cap allocated to the issue under section 141(b)(5) .
36a Enter the amount of gross proceeds invested or to be invested in a guaranteed investment contract

(GIC). See instructions . . .

b Enter the final maturity date of the GIC » (MM/DD/YYYY)
¢ Enter the name of the GIC provider b
37 Pooled financings: Enter the amount of the proceeds of this issue that are to be used to make loans
to other governmental units . . . . .
38a If this issue is a loan made from the proce

36a

37

eds of another tax-exempt issue, check box B [] and enter the following information:

b Enter the date of the master pool bond » (MM/DD/YYYY)

¢ Enter the EIN of the issuer of the master pool bond »

d Enter the name of the issuer of the master pool bond P
39  If the issuer has designated the issue under section 265(b)(3)(B)(i)(Ill) (small issuer exception), check box > [
40  If the issuer has elected to pay a penalty in lieu of arbitrage rebate, check box . > []
41a If the issuer has identified a hedge, check here » [ ] and enter the following information:

b Name of hedge provider »

¢ Type of hedge b

d Term of hedge
42  If the issuer has superintegrated the hedge, check box . S om e e e e A e e et s . > [
43  If the issuer has established written procedures to ensure that all nonqualified bonds of this issue are remediated

according to the requirements under the Code and Regulations (see instructions), check box . > [

44  If the issuer has established written procedures to monitor the requirements of section 148, checkbox . . . . . » []

45a If some portion of the proceeds was used to reimburse expenditures, check here » [ ] and enter the amount
of reimbursement . . . >

b Enter the date the official intent was adopted B (MM/DD/YYYY)

Under penalties of perjury, | declare that | have examined this return and accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge

osure of the issuer’s return information, as necessary to

- and belief, they are true, correct, and complete. | further declare that | consent to the IRS’s discl

Slgnature process this return, to the person that | have authorized above.

and

Consent 71512024
} Signature of issuer’s authorized representative Date } Type or print name and title

Pai d Print/Type preparer’s name Preparer’s signature Date Check D if | PTIN

Preparer Suzanne Wood Bruckner self-employed P01629036

Use on'y Firm’s name » Sutin, Thayer & Browne A Professional Corporation Firm’s EIN B 85-0225124
Firm’s address ™ 6100 Uptown Blvd, NE, Suite 400, Albuquerque, NM 87110 Phone no. 505-883-2500

Form 8038-G (Rev. 10-2021)



$210,600
CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO
EL MORRO VALLEY VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT
NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY LOAN

STATE OF NEW MEXICO )
)ss.  ARBITRAGE AND TAX
- CIBOLA COUNTY ) CERTIFICATE

On behalf of the Cibola County, New Mexico (the “Governmental Unit”), and in
connection with the Loan Agreement dated July 5, 2024 (the “Loan Agreement”), relating to the
financing the cost of purchasing a new firefighting apparatus and related equipment for use by the
Governmental Unit (the “Project”) as described in the Loan Agreement, and evidencing the
Governmental Unit’s obligation in the aggregate principal amount of $210,600, the Governmental
Unit hereby certifies as follows:

Capitalized terms used in this Certificate have the same meanings as defined in
Resolution No. 2024-34 adopted on May 23, 2024, unless otherwise defined in this Certificate or
the context requires otherwise.

1. The Project. The Governmental Unit is entering into the Loan Agreement
simultaneously with delivery of this Certificate. The Loan Agreement evidences the loan (the
“Loan”) made by the New Mexico Finance Authority (the “Finance Authority”) to provide funds
to pay the costs of acquiring the Project described in Exhibit “A” attached to the Loan Agreement
and to pay certain costs incurred in connection with the execution and delivery of the Loan
Agreement.

2. Security for the Loan Agreement. Debt service on the Loan Agreement will be
secured by the pledged revenues described in Exhibit “A” attached to the Loan Agreement (the
“Pledged Revenues”) sufficient to pay debt service due in connection with the Loan, which
Pledged Revenues have been pledged to the Finance Authority pursuant to the Loan Agreement.

3. Finance Authority Public Project Revolving Fund Program. The Governmental
Unit acknowledges that the Finance Authority may assign and transfer the Loan Agreement to the
BOKF, NA, as successor trustee (the “Trustee”) pursuant to the Indenture, as defined in the Loan
Agreement, and all Supplemental Indentures thereto, between the Finance Authority and the
Trustee (collectively, the “Indenture”). Pursuant to the Indenture, the Loan Agreement may be
pledged as an Additional Pledged Loan to the Trustee as additional security for the payment of
amounts due on the Finance Authority’s Public Project Revolving Fund Revenue Bonds
outstanding at the time of such pledge.

4. Sources and Uses of Loan Funds. The Governmental Unit has received Loan
proceeds from the public project revolving fund, as defined in the New Mexico Finance Authority
Act, Sections 6-21-1, et seq., NMSA 1978, as amended and supplemented, in the amount of
$210,600 from the Finance Authority (the “Proceeds”). The Proceeds do not exceed the amount
reasonably necessary for the purposes for which the Loan Agreement was entered into.

Arbitrage and Tax Certificate
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-3218



5. Expenditure Expectations. The Governmental Unit expects to incur a substantial
binding obligation within six (6) months of the date hereof with regard to the Project, which
obligation involves the expenditure of no less than five percent (5%) of the Proceeds. The
Governmental Unit reasonably expects that the $210,600 of Proceeds deposited into ‘the
Governmental Unit’s Program Account in the Program Fund together with other legally available
funds and anticipated earnings from the investment of such Proceeds until they are spent, are
expected to be expended within three (3) years of the date hereof.

The estimated total costs of the Project will not be less than $210,600 plus investment
earnings thereon during the acquisition period.

Proceeds in the amount of $0.00 will be deposited into the Finance Authority Debt Service
Account to be maintained by the Finance Authority or its assignee and utilized as provided in
Section 5.2 of the Loan Agreement. ‘

6. Investment of Proceeds. Except for the investment of the Proceeds (i) in the
Program Account established under the Indenture with respect to the Loan Agreement pending the
payment of the costs of the Project, and (ii) in the Finance Authority Debt Service Account
established and administered by the Finance Authority pending the payment of debt service on the
Loan Agreement, there will be no investment of the Proceeds.

7. Bona Fide Debt Service Fund. Debt service payments on the Loan Agreement will
be paid from the Pledged Revenues of the Governmental Unit deposited to the Finance Authority
Debt Service Account created with respect to the Loan Agreement. Because the Pledged Revenues
of the Governmental Unit for any year will exceed debt service on the Loan Agreement, it is
assumed that current debt service paid by the Governmental Unit for deposit in the Finance
Authority Debt Service Account will be derived entirely from the current Pledged Revenues. The
Finance Authority Debt Service Account will be depleted at least once a year except for an amount
not to exceed the greater of the earnings on the Finance Authority Debt Service Account for the
immediately preceding bond year or one-twelfth (1/12") of debt service on the Loan for the
immediately preceding bond year. The Governmental Unit has not created or established, nor does
it expect to create or establish, any debt service fund, redemption fund, replacement fund, sinking
fund or other similar fund which is reasonably expected to be used to pay principal or interest on
the Loan Agreement or pledged therefor, except for the Finance Authority Debt Service Account

8. No Disposition of Project. The undersigned reasonably expect that no part of the
Project acquired with the Proceeds will be sold or otherwise disposed of, in whole or in part, during
the term of the Loan Agreement.

9. General Tax Covenant. The Governmental Unit has covenanted in the Loan
Agreement that no use will be made of the Proceeds, or any funds or accounts of the Governmental
Unit which may be deemed to be Gross Proceeds (as defined in Treasury Regulation
Section 1.148(b)) of the Loan Agreement, which use, if it had been reasonably expected on the
date hereof, would have caused the Loan Agreement to be classified as an “arbitrage bond” within
the meaning of Section 148 of the Code. The Governmental Unit has further obligated itself in the
Loan Agreement to comply throughout the term of the Loan Agreement with the requirements of

2

Arbitrage and Tax Certificate
Cibola County, loan No. PPRF-3218



Sections 103 and 141 through 150 of the Code and regulations proposed or promulgated with
respect thereto.

10.  Private Business Use Limitations. None of the Proceeds will be used by a private
business or any entity other than a governmental unit or secured by payments from or property of
a private business or any entity other than a governmental unit except pursuant to a management
contract which conforms with Revenue Procedure 2017-13 of the United States Treasury. For
purposes of the preceding sentence a governmental unit does not include the United States
Government or any agency or instrumentality thereof. '

11. No Common Plan of Financing. There are no other obligations which are being
issued or sold at substantially the same time as the Loan Agreement pursuant to a common plan of
financing with the Loan Agreement and that will be paid out of the Pledged Revenues or will have
substantially the same claim to be paid out of the Pledged Revenues as the Loan Agreement.

12. No Federal Guarantees. The Loan is not federally guaranteed within the meaning
of Section 149(b) of the Code.

13.  Information Filing. Loan Counsel for the Finance Authority, on behalf of the
Governmental Unit, will timely file the Form 8038-G with respect to the Loan Agreement attached
hereto as Exhibit “A” with the Internal Revenue Service. The Finance Authority has verified
certain information necessary to complete the Form 8038-G as shown on the Finance Authority
Certificate attached hereto as Exhibit “B”.

14. Hedge Bonds. The Loan is not a hedge bond as defined in Section 149 of the Code.

15. No Reimbursement. None of the Proceeds will be used to reimburse the
Governmental Unit for costs paid for the Project more than sixty (60) days prior to the date hereof.

16.  No Refunding. Proceeds of the Loan are not being used to refund any other
~ obligation of the Goveérnmental Unit.

17.  Economic Life of Project. The weighted average maturity of 8.2745 years of the
Loan Agreement does not exceed 120% of the reasonably expected economic life of the Project,
which is 10 years.

18.  Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligations. The Loan Agreement is a “qualified tax-
exempt obligation” for purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code. The Governmental Unit
represents that the reasonably anticipated amount of qualified tax-exempt obligations which will
be issued by the Governmental Unit during the current calendar year does not exceed $10,000,000
and the Governmental Unit will not designate more than $10,000,000 of “qualified tax-exempt
obligations” for purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code. For purposes of this Section,
“aggregated issuer” means any entity which: (i) issues obligations on behalf of the Governmental
Unit; (ii) derives its issuing authority from the Governmental Unit; or (iii) is controlled directly or
indirectly by the Governmental Unit within the meaning of Treasury Regulation Section 1.150-

1(e).

Arbitrage and Tax Certificate
Cibola County, loan No. PPRF-3218



19.  Rebate Exception. The Governmental Unit is a governmental unit with general
taxing powers, no part of the Loan Agreement is a private activity bond, ninety-five percent (95%)
or more of the proceeds are to be used for local governmental activities of the Governmental Unit
and, the aggregate face amount of all tax-exempt obligations issued by the Governmental Unit
during the current calendar year is not reasonably expected to exceed $5,000,000. There are no
subordinate entities of the Governmental Unit which are authorized to issue tax-exempt
obligations. If the Governmental Unit fails to satisfy all of the provisions of this paragraph 19 for
any reason, as provided in the Loan Agreement and consistent with the covenants of the
Governmental Unit contained therein, any rebate owed to the United States Treasury will be paid
in the amounts and at the times provided in Section 148 of the Code.

20.  Record Retention. The Governmental Unit will manage and retain records related
to the Loan as follows:

A. Records will be retained for the life of the Loan, including any refunding
loans related thereto, plus three (3) years. Records may be in the form of documents or electronic
copies of documents, appropriately indexed to the Loan and compliance functions;

B. Basic records relating to the Loan transaction, including transcript
documents executed in connection with the issuance of the Loan (i.e., the authorizing documents,
Form 8038-G, the tax certificate, and any elections made with respect to the Loan, if applicable),
any amendments, and copies of rebate calculations and records of payments, including Forms
8038-T;

C. Records pertaining to the use of Loan-financed facilities by public and
private sources including copies of management agreements and research agreements;

D. Records pertaining to expenditures of Loan proceeds including requisitions,
appraisal and property purchase contracts, account statements, invoices, payment vouchers, and
the final allocation of proceeds to expenditures;

E. Records pertaining to all sources of payment or security for the Loan; and

F. Records pertaining to investments including guaranteed investment contract
documents under the Treasury Regulations, records of purchase and sale of other investments, and
records of investment activity sufficient to permit calculation of arbitrage rebate or demonstration
that no rebate is due.

[Signature page follows]

Arbitrage and Tax Certificate
Cibola County, loan No. PPRF-3218



This certificate is being executed and delivered to establish the reasonable expectations of
the Governmental Unit for purposes of Sections 103 and 141 through 148 of the Code, and the
undersigned officers of the Governmental Unit are the officers of the Governmental Unit charged
with the responsibility of entering into the Loan Agreement. The foregoing is based upon the
reasonable expectations of the undersigned on the date hereof, and to the best of our knowledge,
information and belief, the above expectations are reasonable.

Dated: July 5, 2024

CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO

[SEAL]
By

Christine Lowery, Chairman of
the Board of County Commissioners

By

Paul Ludi, Finance Director

By

Kate Fletcher, County Manager

6976644

Arbitrage and Tax Certificate
Cibola County, loan No. PPRF-3218



$210,610

CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO

NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY
PUBLIC PROJECT REVOLVING FUND LOAN
Loan No. PPRF-6218 )
Closing Date: July 5, 2024

TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS

INDEX
1. Open Meeting Act Resolution No. 24-05 adopted January 25, 2024

2. Loan Resolution No. 2024-34, adopted May 23, 2024, Agenda, and the Affidavit of
Publication of the Notice of Adoption of Resolution in Cibola Citizen

3. Loan Agreement
4.  Intercept Agreement
5. General and No Litigation Certificate

6.  Arbitrage and Tax Certificate with Form 8038-G and evidence of filing and Finance
Authority Tax Representations Certificate '

7. Delivery, Deposit and Cross-Receipt Certificate

8. Approving Opinion of Sutin, Thayer & Browne A Professional Corporation, Loan
Counsel to the Finance Authority

9.  Finance Authority Application and Project Approval (informational only)

TRANSCRIPT DISTRIBUTION LIST

Cibola County, New Mexico
New Mexico Finance Authority
BOKF, NA
Sutin, Thayer & Browne A Professional Corporation

6981016



RFP 2024-004

Selection of Quartz Hill System Trail
Construction Firm




\

7
A 977NN

PraLiNeE TRAILS

DESIGN - BUILD - MAINTAIN

VETERAN OWNED AND OPERATED

Proposal for:

Quartz Hill Trail System
RFP No. 2024-004

Prepared by Kyle Jones, owner/operator
Proline Contracting LLC Do Business as Proline Trails
Mesa, AZ

C: 480-318-5577 Email: prolinetrails@outlook.com

ProlineTrails.com

SERVING THE SOUTHWEST SINCE 1992



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Proposal of Offeror........vccerrarcercneeee e seeraseessescvrmsensensnes e resanan s ssrern s e PE 3
Acknowledgment of AQAENAR.c e eesseemres e SRR pg. 4
Qualifications, Resume, Past PerfOrmMance........u e reeonesensessussenssssreseseessenens w.pg. 5
Certificate Of INSUFANCE..wu i ssis s s i snsese s sessssstssssssessssssnssssens s PBs B
Campaign Contributions DiSClOSUre FOrM... s cnsmismsesssmssssassassmsersessessssenss DEs 7

Proline Trails Proposal......c.mrsimisimm e st s D8 8



PROPOSAL OF OFFEROR

THIS FORM MUST BE COMPLETED AND RETURNED BY ALL OFFERORS

* Do not reference another section within your Proposal Offer as a response.

The following proposal is made for furnishing the following service for Cibola County, New Mexico.
RFP 2024-004, for the Quartz Hill Trail System Construction

The undersigned declares that the amount and nature of the service to be furnished is understood and
that the nature of this proposal is in strict accordance with the conditions set forth and is a part of this
Proposal, and that the undersigned Offeror has read and understands the specifications and conditions of
the Proposal.

The undersigned, in submitting this proposal, represents that the Offeror is an equal opportunity
employer, and will not discriminate with regard to race, age, religion, color, national origin, ancestry, sex,
sexual orientation, gender identity, spousal affiliation, physical or mental handicap or serious medical
condition as specified in N.M.S.A. 1978, §§ 28-1-7 (as amended) in the performance of this contract.

The undersigned hereby proposes to perform necessary professional services upon the conditions stated
in this proposal after notice of award and execution of a contract.

= If applicable, acknowledges receipt of the following Addendum(s):

Addendum No: 2 Date: 5/1/2024

Addendum No: Date:
Respectfully submitted,

By (Individual authorized to contractually bind the Offeror):

Kyle Jones /
(Printed Name) Signgfure)

Owner 5/1/2024
(Title) (Date)
Proline Trails 4338 E. Fairbrook Cir

(Offeror/Contractor Name)

Mesa, AZ 85205

(Street Address)

prolinetrails@outlook.com

(City, State & Zip Code)

480-318-5577

(E-Mail Address)

h/a

(Phone No.)

(Facsimile No.)



ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT FORM

RFP NO. 2024-004
BUILD SERVICES for the Quartz Hill Trail System Construction

28 PAGES (INCLUDING ACKNOWLEDGEMENT, CAMPAIGN DISCLOSURE FORM
and EXHIBITS A).

NOTE: ONLY POTENTIAL OFFERORS WHO COMPLETE AND RETURN THIS
FORM WILL RECEIVE COPIES OF ADDENDUMS, IF ISSUED.
PROPOSAL INFORMATION:

In acknowledgement of receipt of the above referenced Proposal Packet, the
undersigned agrees that he/she has received a complete copy.

Proline Trails

OFFEROR NAME

/ Crysas

SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Kyle Jones

PRINTED NAME OF AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ADDRESS: 4338 E. Fairbrook Cir

CITY: Mesa STATE: "AZ ZIP CODE: 85205
PHONE NO.: 480-318-5577 FAX NO.: none
E-MAIL: prolinetrails@outlook.com
RETURN TO:
Wendy Self

Chief of Procurement
PHONE 505-285-2513
FAX 505-285-5434
Wendy.self@co.cibola.nm.us

Faxed copies of the Acknowledgement of Receipt Form will be accepted.
Faxed Proposal responses WILL NOT be accepted.




B. Qualifications/ Resumes

A. Trail Crew Lead: Kyle Jones, owner of Proline Trails

B. Trail Crew size for Quartz Hill Project 2-3

-Resume: Owner/ Operator of Proline Trails, Kyle Jones
-30 years experience in construction industry
-5+ years trail building experience
- 25+ miles of new trail construction/ maintenance

2) Capacity and Capability

A. Proline Trails currently awaiting the start of other trail projects due to wildlife
restriction, that will expire 1 September. Due to these restrictions, we are able to begin work on
the Quartz Hill Project immediately upon approval of contract,

B. Scope of Work: 2 mini excavators will be used to construct requested trail. Depending
on conditions/terrain other equipment may be used, ex. Skid steer or Trail dozer.

3) Past Performance

1. Arizona Trail, Passage 16 Trail Maintenance

~13 miles of moderate trail maintenance to include tread improvements/ repair,
drainage construction, grade reversals, clearing of trail corridor.

-Project Cost: $57,288
-Matt Nelson, Arizona Trail Exec, Director, C: 520-404-7992
2. Highline Trail, Tonto Nat’l Forest, Payson, AZ, New Trail Construction/Maintenance
-5+ miles of new trail construction and maintenance
-Project Cost: $50,000+
-Angie Abel, Tonto Nat’l Forest, C: 304-646-8805

4) Familiarity with Cibola County

-Proline Trails is very familiar with the local area where Quartz Hill Trail System is
located. Owner has lived in several cities across New Mexico to include Rio Rancho, NM.

- Proline Trails is a licensed contractor in the State of Arizona. Proline is capable of

obtaining a New Mexico contractor’s license upon award of this proposal if needed.




! ®
ACORD
‘h.-/

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)
5/1/2024

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDE
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN T|

R THIS
HE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

IF SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.

policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on

this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER. CONTACT Kirsten Walters .
Tnsurance Professionals of Arizona THONE bty (480) 981-6338 [TAIG, oy (480) 981-6339
3521 E Brown Rd. Ste 101 ADDRESS; kirsten@insuranceproaz.com
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
Mesa AZ 85213 INSURER A: SELECTIVE INS CO OF THE SOUTHEAST 39926
INSURED INSURER B: Wellfleet New York Insurance Company 15156
PROLINE CONTRACTING LLC INSURER Gt
4338 E FAIRBROOK. CIR INSURER D';
INSURER E ©
MESA AZ 85205-5103 INSURERF
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLIGY FERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOGUMENT WITH RESPEGT TO WHIGH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS,
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE INSD|WvD POLICY NUMBER (DO ) | (RO P LIMITS
¢ | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENGE $ 1,000,000
| cLaMs-MADE OCCUR PREMISES (Ea ocourrence) _|$ 500,000
- MED EXP(Any-one person) $ 15,000
Al * $ 2502595 06/01/2023 | 06/01/2024 | PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | 1,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 3,000,000
| PRO- "
| X |poLicy DJEQT D Loc PRODUCTS ~ COMP/OP AGG' |$ 3,000,000
OTHER:; |8
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY {E= acodsnt T s
] any auTo BODILY INJURY (Per paraon) | §
T OWNE DU ;
] A0S ONLY Agro =P BODILY INJURY (Per accident) |$
HIRED NON:OWNED A . AGE 3
AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY (Per-accident)
$
umBrRELLALIAB T Toccur EACH OCCURRENCE $
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $
DED ] I RETENTION § - $
GRKERS COMPENSATION P OTFF
IAND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIn X[stawre | [e e
IANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE o WL AT p WU
B [OFFICERIMEMBER EXCLUDED? NIAl | ARX10765100 09/28/2023 | 09/28/2024 (FEACHACORENT IS8
Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE|$ 100,000
If yes, describe under - -
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS belaw E.L. DISEASE » POLICY LIMIT |8 500,000
LIMIT $250,000
LEASED AND RENTED ) i o
A EQUIPMENT S 2502595 06/01/2023 | 06/01/2024 | DEDUCTIBLE $1,000

Certificate of insurance issued as evidence of insurance

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

EVIDENCE OF INSURANCE

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Kireben \Walteys

ACORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo a

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
re registered marks of ACORD




) ®
ACORD
V

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)
5/1/2024

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the <ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>